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Definitions

B=

“2018 CIA Top Hundred Report” the “2018 China Top Hundred Property Management Companies Report”
published by China Index Academy in collaboration with China Property
Management Association (FBI¥Z B2 H# ) in June 2018

[2018 Fr B #5 B 7T b B R R 5 | B RN 2018F 6 A MBI EER & A ETIZE 2018 B %
PRF BB EMAERE)
“1H2018" First half of the financial year 2018, being six months ended 30 June 2018
[20184F 44|~ [ L4 2018 AR F Ry L 4F - BIEIZE 20184 6 A 30 H 1L/ A A
"2H2018" Second half of the financial year 2018, being six months ended 31 December
2018 of the calendar year
[2018F T4 ] - [ FH4 | 2018 BA N EF B0 T4 - BNELZE 2018 6 12 A 31 H /< A
"Board” the board of Directors of our Company
[E£g] RAFEES
“China” or "PRC" the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report
and for geographic reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
[ REARANE  EREXFERERMEL2EMS - TREES  RFIREE
“Company”, Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd (4% 3 AR 7% & B 5 [R 2 7)), an exempted
“Greentown Service Group” or company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 24
“our Company” November 2014
[RAE)] -~ [ARMRTS ] 3k [A AR HPRBEEBR AR - —HER2014F 11 A24 B SEHSEMAZHER
Rl YN
"“Director(s)"” the director(s) of our Company
[E%] RRBES
"Group”, "our Group”, "the Group”, our Company and its subsidiary(ies) from time to time or where the context so
“we", "us"”, or "our” requires, in respect of the period before our Company became the holding

company of our present subsidiaries, the business operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)

(@] [REE] ARRBRENEONERR - MEXEMT - LA [HRF ] RRKREEN
BARNIZERARANHE  EZEHBRRKENF AR GRFERME)

"GFA" Gross Floor Area

[EiE ] A

"Hong Kong” or "HK” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(&% REEBRRITTHR

"HK$" or “HK dollars"” the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[t EBEEER
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Definitions

B

"Reporting Period” or “Period”

[mEMA] - [#A)

IR
(& H A

“Listing"”
[ b

“Listing Date”

[ LB

“"RMB" or “Renminbi”
(AR

"Sq m."”

[ 75K

"Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P |

"US$
E=d

" "

yly

u%u

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12 A31 AL+ =fEA

Investor Relationship

REERBRE

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRABIRD BRI PAEIR £ TR

12 July 2016, on which the Shares were listed and from which dealings in the
Shares are permitted to take place on the Stock Exchange

RODRBE R ETI Bt EEEE A - 201657 A 128

million
BE

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of China

ARBTT  REEEEH

square meter

Tk

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARSMARAR

US dollar
=T

year-on-year

FHEM

percent

B
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Company Overview

NI

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide, and is
based on owners’ full range of life scene and the entire life cycle of real
estate, and provide a wide range of services that are strongly
associated with life, which contains property service, community living
service and consulting service. We differentiate ourselves from other
property management service providers by providing our residents
with access to a broad products and services portfolio that addresses
the evolving everyday and life-style needs of our customers, property
owners and residents. In the “2018 China Property Service Top 100
Enterprises Research Results Conference” organized by China Index
Academy (a professional independent third-party Real Estate Research
Organization in China), we once again won the first place of “China’s
top 100 leading enterprises in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES PORTFOLIO

J Property services. We provide a range of high quality property
management services, such as security, cleaning, gardening, and
repair and maintenance services, which we refer to collectively as
“standard” property management services, and charge the
residents and owners of our managed properties or real estate
developers management fees for such services. As of 31
December 2018, we managed properties located in 137 cities
across 29 provinces, direct-controlled municipalities and
autonomous regions across China with a total contracted GFA
under management of 170.4 million sq m. which covers high-end
residential, government public construction, commercial office
buildings, urban complex.

J Consulting services. We offer consulting services to real estate
developers and local property management companies to
address various needs that arise during each major stage
throughout the course of their property development projects,
capitalizing on our brand equity and expertise. For example, we
provide real estate developers with project planning, design
management, construction management and marketing
management consulting services during the design and
development stages and display unit management services to
facilitate sales of their developed projects. We also provide
management consulting services with respect to delivered
properties to real estate developers and property management
companies.
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Company Overview

DNEHE

Community living services. Based on the needs of the owners of
the owners’ full range of life scene, we provide property owners
and residents of our managed communities with access to an
extensive array of daily necessities complemented by a wide
assortment of life-style products and services through a variety of
channels. Our services under this segment include community
products and services, home living services, community space
services, property asset management services, cultural &
education services. As the needs of our owners and residents for
better living have been evolving, on the basis of innovation and
promotion of traditional service, we will continue to use the
mobile Internet and the smart Community portal, offer a wider
range of services and products to satisfy the customers, and
combine online and offline service, to broaden and accelerate
the flow of life services.
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Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT AR¥TR
Revenue LON 2,204,565 2,918,627 3,721,993 5,140,059 6,709,906
+/-% 2,/ m % 31.9% 32.4% 27.5% 38.1% 30.5%
Gross profit EH 363,086 530,925 716,027 946,390 1,197,653
+~% BB % 49.8% 46.2% 34.9% 32.2% 26.5%
Profit for the year FRFE 149,382 202,567 294,787 392,070 465,734
Net profit attributable to equity NAEERE
shareholders of the Company FE(EEFE 149,189 197,818 285,540 387,483 483,296
+/-% L % 78.2% 32.6% 44.3% 35.7% 24.7%
Earnings per share, FiEEREF
(RMB) after listing (ARHE) - - 0.12 0.14 0.17
% of overall revenue L1 ON
by service line RER
— Property services — MERH 73.7% 71.6% 70.4% 69.3% 66.5%
— Consulting services — AR 19.9% 18.9% 16.6% 13.2% 14.0%
— Community living services — BE RS 6.4% 9.5% 13.0% 17.5% 19.5%
Overall revenue FELON 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Profitability =
Gross margin by service lines REBEIHERE
— Property services — MERS 8.6% 10.2% 10.9% 11.2% 11.4%
— Consulting services — BAR% 35.9% 33.9% 35.5% 36.1% 38.0%
— Community living services — &R 46.7% 47.5% 43.5% 33.5% 25.5%
Gross margin — overall EFE — B 16.5% 18.2% 19.2% 18.4% 17.8%
Net profit margin® FREE 6.8% 6.8% 7.7% 7.5% 7.2%

(i) Net profit margin is calculated as profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by revenue.
0] FFRE R R IAR B s AR AR TR AR o

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

BeHRAEEHBERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

PROFIT OR LOSS B
Revenue — by service line WA — REHK
Property services MERE 1,623,597 2,090,872 2,619,927 3,559,644 4,460,669
+/-% /% % 32.7% 28.8% 25.3% 35.9% 25.3%
Property under HERYE R
construction services 377,847 475,957 522,533 572,730 787,735
+/-% 20w % 35.5% 26.0% 9.8% 9.6% 37.5%
% of total revenue of consulting BRI B A
services % 86.0% 86.4% 84.5% 84.2% 83.8%
Management consulting services B AR 61,568 74,820 95,503 107,612 151,744
+/-% B0,/ 58 % 19.6% 21.5% 27.6% 12.7% 41.0%
% of total revenue of consulting EEARBEEHA %
services 14.0% 13.6% 15.5% 15.8% 16.2%
Consulting services & R 439,415 550,777 618,036 680,342 939,479
+/-% /B % 33.0% 25.3% 12.2% 10.1% 38.1%
Community products and services BE E m R IR 40,862 105,023 113,338 186,361 241,914
+/-% B0,/ 58 % 18.6% 157.0% 7.9% 64.4% 29.8%
Home living services REEERT 84,503 145,691 64,620 71,075 84,432
+/-% 20w % 22.4% 72.4% -55.6% 10.0% 18.8%
Community space services [ Z= AR 16,188 26,264 58,816 121,486 228,654
+/-% B,/ WL % 15.7% 62.2% 123.9% 106.6% 88.2%
Property asset management services ¥ & EEIEIRH - - 236,171 500,986 719,020
+/-% B0,/ 58 % - 112.1% 43.5% 112.1% 43.5%
Cultural & education services MLEE RIS - - 11,085 20,165 35,738
+/-% 2,/ W % - - - 81.9% 77.2%
Community living services BERE 141,553 276,978 484,030 900,073 1,309,758
+/-% 20, m % 20.5% 95.7% 74.8% 86.0% 45.5%

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHERE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEFE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR

OPERATING DATA EgyE
Property services LES RS
Total nos of contracts AEBE - 637 809 1,035 1,236
+/- B/ md - - 172 226 201
+/-% =i,/ md % - - 27.0% 27.9% 19.4%
Reserved GFAs (m sq m) REOR(BEFK) - 89.1 119.4 150.0 192.1
+/- 2,/ 5w - - 303 306 42.1
+/-% 20w % - - 34.0% 25.6% 28.1%
Managed GFAs (m sq m) EEEE(BBTK) 65.9 82.8 105.2 137.8 170.4
+- B/ md 11.2 16.9 224 325 32.6
+/-% B0,/ 58 % 20.5% 25.6% 27.1% 30.9% 23.7%
Terminated GFAs BHEEE(BEEXK) 2.1 2.4 2.0 49 11.4
+/-% 2w % 10.5% 14.3% -16.7% 145% 132.7%
% of managed GFAs in the year HEEEEMEE % 3.2% 2.9% 1.9% 4.6% 6.7%
Avg property service fee FHOMEREE
(RMB/mth/sq m) (AR¥ 8A
BYHXK) 2.94 3.06 3.08 3N 3.15
+/-% B0,/ 58 % 9.3% 4.1% 0.7% 0.97% 1.3%
Operating efficiency BENG
Collection rate & B 95.9% 96.6% 97.4% 98.6% 98.7%

2018 EHE MPRBEBARAR 13



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

BeHRAEEHBERE

FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R

As at 31 December
®12A831H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
T ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Cash & cash equivalents HEeRESEEY 437,419 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021
Trade & other receivables e 437,663 419,952 546,666 789,719 1,202,201
Current assets MEEE 1,068,366 17376874 2853076 2,936,359 3,838,216
Total assets BERE 1,302,315 1,641,885 3,322,719 4,139,784 5,344,193
Current liabilities THaE 1,070,998 1,472,265 1,554,520 2,138,300 2,922,426
Bank loans RITER 100,000 180,000 - - 950
Total liabilities FeR=F 1,085,031 1,493,008 1,576,983 2,148,066 2,939,430
Net assets BEE 217,284 148,877 1,745,736 1,991,718 2,404,763
Financial ratios Mgt =
Current ratio BN & 1.00x 0.94x 1.84x 1.37x 1.31x
Quick ratio RENH R 1.00x 0.93x 1.83x 1.31x 1.22x
Net gearing ratio FEERMEX ©] Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash Net cash
FiR e FIRE FIR FiHe FRE

Net cash per share HER S @ - - 0.79 0.66 0.78
Rates of return B ES
Dividend per share (HK$), EARERIRE (BT

after listing (3) - - 0.04 0.06 0.075
Return on net equity ERER PR (4) 68.5% 132.8% 16.4% 19.5% 20.1%
Return on total assets 488 E B R (5) 11.5% 12.0% 8.6% 9.4% 9.0%
Notes: HsE -

(1) Net gearing ratio is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans, and M FEEABERHENERUBARBAEEYRE
then divided by net assets RITEFR - RERVFEE

2 Net cash per share is calculated as cash and cash equivalents minus bank loans, 2 BIRER SN E R EZRUNRES NB2EEBYRE
then divided by total number of shares in issuance at the date of 31 December 2018 SBITER  REBRUBZE2018F12A31HE #17T
FaliE s

©) This is based on total number of shares issued as at the date of 31 December 2018: 3) EREREZE218F12A3MHE #TH AR E :
2,777,776,000 shares 2,777,776,000 f%

() Return on net equity is calculated as net profit attributable to equity shareholders of ~ (4) SRR BRRAE AR AR B ESRREE G
the Company divided by net assets FIRAFEE

(5) Return on total assets is calculated as profit attributable to equity shareholders of ~ (5) B ERIRETE A AR A R IR R EREF
the Company divided by total assets BABEE

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Historical Financial and Operating Data Highlights

B REESHERE

CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW

RERERE

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A3MBLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AR®ETR
Net cash generated from REREMAE
operating activities 54 R 332,802 510,822 393,661 528,574 656,232
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES(FTR),/
investing activities PRSI €8 (164,138) 131,660 (146,864) (749,803) ~ (199,082)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEH(FR),/
financing activities PSR & %58 (30,686) (243,950) 1,056,525 (71,018)  (119,907)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRReEEY
cash equivalents BHEEE (R 137,978 398,532 1,303,322 (292,247) 337,243
Cash & cash equivalents at the FHNRERAS
beginning of the year ZEY 299,441 437,419 835,897 2,181,692 1,836,467
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFHTE
changes - (54) 42,473 (52,978) 6,311
Cash & cash equivalents EREER
at the end of the year ReZEEY 437,419 835897 2,181,692 1,836,467 2,180,021

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF
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Awards and Honors

RIERRE

2018 China Property Services Top 100 leading
Enterprise in Satisfaction

2018 HEMXBRBE R RRBEERLLE

I

CL=]
% CERTIFICATE %
20185 11047 3k 55 14 48 o

| 2018 Chine TOPI10O Property Mansgement Companies

LT
R, U T R AT R

AR YA TR ]
AEEE 20UR DN S

2018 China Property Service Top 100 Leading
Enterprise in Service Quality

2018 HEMRBE R REXRBEEERLEE

7%

2018+ (5%l Bl 5 15 ik
200% China TOP100 Property Management Compunics

IR SR MRS
. BT S T TR T

| SN AR5
SEEE 2008 o5yl B0 3 S P R

| s o 180 Praparny Mogrmmmt gt

o i gty

Nos?’

2018 China High-end Property Services Market

Leading Enterprise

2018 FEl S mERB T HHNBEELE

A3

g, By

20184 [5¥ 1k I} % 5 78 7k

2018 China TOP1OD Property Managemeni Companies

PRyl 5 UL TR 2]
L 2008 <R GSR  E  ORE

N

i T 98 Prapecty Mgt g

2018 China Property Services Enterprise Growth TOP10
2018 HEIM BB B RIEER RIETOP10

=7%

2018+ [5 ¥y b FIH %5 5 58 4 ok

1018 China TOP108 Property Management Companies
I .
AR BT RS RS

byl WA R ]
AR 2008 (IR TR R I Tor

[
i T 0 P Mg g,

b o v il

2018 China Leading Property Management Companies
in Terms of Social Responsibility

2018 HFEIMERBEELSETRLE

e, B }

20184 [ b % 5 42 e

2018 China TOPI0O Property Munagement Companies
M. EhE
PRI WA T 308 PR & TR,

bR IR AT ) ‘

LR 2008 (RIS

®

China Property Services Enterprise Scale TOP 10
2018 HEM BB AR EXRIERETOP10

2018+ [7% 0k I 5% 12198 45 ke

2018 China TOPIOD Property Management Companies
| SRR MR
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Awards and Honors

RIERRE

2018 TOP 100 Property Management Companies
of China
2018 FMHRMBEEESE N TOPI00 REFE

24w s

RS-

201 8SEPNE 55 1Ml £ 5 9 1 FTOP100

2018 TOPIO0 Praperty Managenment Companies of Cking

RRDHERS AN AL

Best Contribution Award of 2018 National

Smart City Standards
2018 FEERHMRERERRME

2018 China Property Services TOP 100 Enterprise

2018 HEIMERBEERLE
=% %E:
@ CERTIFIC, W
20|srl=li;%!k!ﬂ%i~'iﬁ!ikrﬂ:
| 2018 China TOT100 Froperty Manugement Companies
Y B AT ]

‘ S 2008 P LAY TR

Tl Ty W Frogay s et empi.

2018 China Featured Property Services Leading
Corporate — Intelligent Community Service System

2018 PEIREBMERBAEALLX — E2EERKER

7%
'ﬂgnnéwﬂgagﬁh

2018 ] [7F5 & Py oll: 0 55 5 5 4k

Iessing Fropuny Wassp
HANA A
AN G T 3 B ETAY

ARl B U R 22 )
R 2008 iR i R 5 R —— WARIRIK N e

2018 China Public Property Management
Exceptional Companies

2018 HEIARYEEBEESTLE

A
R o
‘g l.'l‘.lt'll}:(.':ri 14*
20184 9 A JR 5 £ 38 6 o

2018 China TOP100 Property Management Compuanies

. w;
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bl I WAL L 20
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A R
@ &

2018 China Property Services Leading Brand in

Market-Oriented Operation
2018 HEIMERB MBI EL BLmMEDHE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

HEHMH SRR

Dear Shareholders,

2018 was a fleeting year. Looking back on the journey of the past year,
relying on the trust of the property owners and investors, the
management and employees of the Group feel more cherished and
have worked diligently, striving to be steady at every step. We have left
the mark of growth while accumulating intrinsic energy.

In 2017, the downward pressure on China’s economy increased quarter
by quarter, and the real estate industry were also fully regulated. In
such context, Greentown Service responded flexibly and deepened
into the life scenes to expand its scope of services and diversify its
product portfolio, leading to its independent growth that emphasized
the improvement of internal value.

In 2018, the total retail sales of consumer goods in China reached
RMB38.1 trillion, while the proportion of service consumption has
increased to 49.5%. Its growth was obviously faster than commodity
consumption, and the quality of consumption has been further
improved. Personalized, diversified and customized consumptions
have gradually become the new trends. As a small element in the
macro-economy, we are best positioned and active in the “residential
neighbourhood” and "office zone", providing strongly correlated
service products; as significant changes may be seen from a small
beginning, we feel the power driven by the economic trend, which is,
the development data presented by the company continues to match
the main data that drives the economy. For example, to increase the
revenue growth of community living services, we further strengthen the
offline advantage to establish a home service team called “Four
Seasons Housekeeping”, and hire staff for the service with professional
talents introduced from giant companies such as Ali and Huawei; with
respect to the personalized and customized services for high-end
property owners, we have upgraded the original butler service system
and established the training and application function of the E.O
(Experience Organizer), butler brand. Although the current property
owners have more service options, when we walk into their homes and
step into their office, no matter how the world is connected, our service
is closer; just like a movie line saying: beyond seven steps, the gun is
faster; within seven steps, the fist is faster. We can satisfy needs for and
overcome pain points of service consumption only by leveraging our
advantages in locations and human resources and combining various
quality life services.
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The buildings that carry all kinds of consumer services have also
become a refined area for expanding such services; we have signed
contracts with landmark buildings such as Wuxi International Financial
Center (IFC), Xi'an CNNC Chang'an Yin, Taizhou Tiansheng Center; at
the same time, we are expanding our living services to include
comprehensive urban services, and services were also launched for
Shanghai Pudong International Airport, Wenzhou Airport and Yueyang
Airport regarded as the window of cities. The strategy of changing with
the trend has also optimized the value of the project portfolio; coupled
with more than ten years of market-oriented expansion capabilities,
this year, we have newly signed the management contract of 84.2
million square meters.

In our service and expansion, we have also found that the role of
technology empowerment has become more apparent, this is the
result of our early deployment and generous investment in the past
few years. With technology as the underlying layer, the Group has built
a sharing centre to form a data-driven, intelligent and efficient peer-to-
peer management system. The intelligent hardware transformation in
the community and the exploration of the Internet of Things through it
formed a service highlight; the “Green Alliance” business management
area, which is launched as a "hard-core” service in 2018, reached 156.6
million square meters. During the year, consulting services recorded a
38.1% growth. We have grown in quality on a large scale with many
service offerings. We are still proud of that though the market expects
more out of us.

As a company based in Hangzhou, China, we actively integrate
ourselves into this city with a strong Internet gene, and form synergy
with the scientific and planning ecological layout of “urban brain” and
“future community”. In December 2018, we signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Alipay to jointly develop the integrated
community service cloud platform and take advantage of the internet
industry leader.

Talents are the “"Chip” of services. 2018 was also our year to upgrade
our talent strategy. Firstly, with “share options awarded to the middle
layer”, we granted share options to our employees, out of which only
18.1% was awarded to the senior management of the Group, so that
most of the backbone forces constitute a community of undertaking
and destiny with the Company. It is particularly worth mentioning that
we leverage service projects flexibly, to transform them into innovative
platforms for nurturing talents. For example, many of our employees
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volunteered to serve in Hangzhou Jingshan Temple, one of our
projects under management. The serenity and inclusiveness of the
temple have enhanced their peaceful mind and broad vision. We
grandly unveiled the corporate university, named the College of Good
Life, and divided it into management, engineering, housekeeping,
quality, alliance, community and other professional colleges to cultivate
service-oriented talents from basic to high-end. This will help improve
the competence of people for projects under management and
provide sufficient talent for reserved projects. When | took stock of
young talents, | saw that a group of top university graduates from
home and abroad gathered in the company this year, making us feel
gratified and hopeful.

FUTURE EXPECTATIONS

During this year, we will continue to implement the vision of a happy
life service provider continually, with a purpose of further improving
the advantageous entities. In both existing and growth markets, we
have achieved premium appreciation for high-end services. With a
long-term vision, we are committed to expand and to new industries
such as education, health and nursing. Despite diversity and hardships,
all these are part of a good life and something that we must endure.
However, the construction of a wider and deeper "moat” for the
business won't be completed overnight, and we will continue to move
forward in a high quality manner.

Before the release of the Annual Report, it coincided with the National
People’s Congress and the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, the policies from the Prime Minister’s work report on tax
and levy reduction, employment expansion, release of domestic
demand, supply of preschool education, improvement of people’s
livelihood, and regional integration development were all related to
the property service industry, which is a new environment created at
the national level; we also found that relevant policies were introduced
across the country soon afterward. we will take advantage of these
policies, adhere to the values of being people-oriented and service-
oriented, be driven by technological civilization, continue to enhance
the company’s intrinsic value and improve the ecological circle of our
happy life service.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is a leading happy living service provider nationwide. In the
“2018 China Property Service Top 100 Enterprises Research Results
Conference"” organized by China Index Academy (a professional
independent third-party Real Estate Research Organization in China),
we maintain our the first place of “China’s top 100 leading enterprises
in terms of Property Service Satisfaction”, which is the praise of our
services, and is the solid foundation of the continuous expansion of our
management scale and sustained growth of financial performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group achieved:

Revenue

Revenue was RMB6,709.9 million. Compared with that of the same
period of year ended 31 December 2017, which was RMB5,140.1
million, the growth rate on year-on-year basis reached 30.5%.

The Group's revenue comes from three major businesses: (i) property
services, (i) community living services, and (i) consulting services.
During the year, (i) the revenue from the property services is still the
Group's largest source of revenue and profit, which reached
RMB4,460.7 million, accounting for 66.5% of the Group's revenue.
Compared with RMB3,559.6 million in the year of 2017, there's a year-
on-year growth of 25.3%; (ii) community living services revenue reached
RMB1,309.8 million, accounting for 19.5% of the Group's revenue.
Compared with the year of 2017, there was a year-on-year growth of
45.5%, (iii) the revenue of consulting services amounted to RMB939.5
million, which accounted for 14.0% of the Group's revenue, revealing a
year-on-year growth of 38.1% compared with the same period of 2017.
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2018 F 2017 &
% of % of
the total the total
RMB'000 revenue RMB'000 revenue Y/N%
ARETT EHHEBA% ARETFT (HBKA% FHMN%
Property services ES T
Property services Y RTS 4,460,669 66.5% 3,559,644 69.3% 25.3%
4,460,669 66.5% 3,559,644 69.3% 25.3%
Consulting services B R
Property under TEREY) % AR TS
construction services 787,735 11.7% 572,730 11.1% 37.5%
Management consulting B IZE AR
services 151,744 2.3% 107,612 2.1% 41.0%
939,479 14.0% 680,342 13.2% 38.1%
Community living B & R
services
Community products & & [& 2= @ F AR
services 241,914 3.6% 186,361 3.6% 29.8%
Home living services RIEEERE 84,432 1.3% 71,075 1.4% 18.8%
Community space B & Z= A AR 75
services 228,654 3.4% 121,486 2.4% 88.2%
Property asset MEEEEERSG
management services 719,020 10.7% 500,986 9.7% 43.5%
Cultural & education XA R B IRFE
services 35,738 0.5% 20,165 0.4% 77.2%
1,309,758 19.5% 900,073 17.5% 45.5%
6,709,906  100.0% 5,140,059 100.0% 30.5%
Cost of sales SHER A&

During the year, the cost of sales was RMB5,512.3 million, which was an R » &K AN B AREESS5123BHE T &
increase of 31.4% compared with that of RMB4,193.7 million in the 2017 2% AR®4,193.7 B & T BEHEMN
same period of 2017 and it was basically in line with the Group’s ~ 31.4% - B2 £ B Ug A 18 & K 30.5% E AR —
revenue growth rate being 30.5%. This is mainly due to the fact that  Et  E+ 22 R AEFRERERXTH RN H
our cost increased as the scale expanded. We will continue to improve R EFt - B EERETHITAEEEH
and promote the Group's cost control measures while expanding the ~ FXARE TS #E— P RBAT RS BEERE
coverage and increasing the efficiency of automated and intelligent AL RRBERIGIREBETNBEZHENFEH
devices in providing services. R o
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB597.3 million, an
increase of 43.6% compared with RMB416.0 million in 2017. This
growth rate is higher than that of the Group’s revenue. This figure,
however, represents a decline of 7.7 percentage points from 51.3%
over the same period in 2017 and a slight decrease from interim period
of 2018. Obviously, the Group's cost control measures adopted in the
second half of 2018 are effective and our information systems and
sharing center are a continuous contributor to the Group's efficient
operations. Our administrative expenses increased mainly because: (i)
we granted share options to employees in 2018, with accrued option
expenses of RMB26.4 million; (i) rapid revenue growth led to increased
personnel service needs and staff costs increased due to a continuous
rise in the per capita wage in 2018; (iii) we continued to invest in
constructions of intelligent facilities, equipment, and information
systems (for example, project management system improvement,
system software development, and hardware maintenance); (iv) we
invested in the building and maintenance of platform support centers,
including financial, procurement, and human resources sharing
platforms, to facilitate cost control and improve management
efficiency.

Gross profit margin

—  Gross profit has reached RMB1,197.7 million, a growth of 26.5%
compared with RMB946.4 million in 2017. Gross profit margin was
17.8%, decreased by 0.6 percentage points, compared with the
same period of last year; the main reason for the decline of the
gross profit margin was the decline of gross profit margin in the
community living services.

—  Gross profit margin for property service was 11.4%, slightly
increased by 0.2 percentage points compared with 11.2% in 2017.
In 2018, the Group continued to expand rapidly with its high-
quality services and strong market development capability.
Despite increased unit labor cost, the Group has established an
automated, centralized, and standardized management system
by building big data platforms, applying mobile Internet and
investing in intelligent equipment. All these have increased the
efficiency of property management and helped controlling costs
while ensuring high quality service experience to our property
owners.
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—  Gross profit margin for community living services was 25.5%, an
obvious decline as compared to 33.5% in 2017, mainly due to the
decline of gross profit margin for asset management services and

continued losses in cultural education services.

(i)

(i)

Property asset management services: In 2018, these services
remained to be a major source of revenue from community
living services with a contribution of 54.9%. Macro-control
in the real estate market in 2018 resulted in the universally
decreased transaction volume of second-hand housing and
the lower per-capita signing rate of the real estate broker
team. Therefore, gross profit margin for this segment was
down to 20.2% in 2018 from 33.3% in 2017, significantly
diluting the average gross profit margin for community
living services overall.

Cultural and education services: In 2018, we continued to
increase investment in teaching venues. During the year,
more communities were open with occupancy rate still on
the slow rise. All these significantly affected the overall
gross profit margin. Meanwhile, the approval process took
longer than expected due to tighter fire control policies,
slowing down the opening of some communities and
increasing teacher and site costs. In addition, we kept
increasing input in the research and development of
education curriculum systems, hiring of teachers, and
building of a training system to continuously improve our
own quality. The above factors led to a decline in the gross
profit margin for cultural and education services to -52.3%,
greatly diluting the average gross profit margin for
community living services overall.

—  Gross profit margin for consulting service was 38.0%, slightly
higher than 36.1% in 2017 by 1.9 percentage points. The main

reason was that revenue from management consulting services,

such as alliance services and real estate consulting, grew higher

than that from property under construction services that led to
the increase of gross profit margin for consulting service.
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Net Finance income

The finance income during the year was RMB18.1 million, decreasing
by 4.1% compared with that of RMB18.9 million in the same period of
2017. The declining financing income is mainly due to reduced interest
on the deposit of raised funds during the year after the use of the
funds raised by the Company for the listing in Hong Kong.

BMEWAFE
FR - BERARARK181EET » 12017
FRPMARBIBIBETHET41% - &
BRATRNEERAR  AEEREB LT
SEMBESERR  FARBRESELN
TER A SR

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000 Y/N%
AR®T T ARBTT FH %

Interest income on listed debt &K T AR BUA
instruments 3,886 665 484.4%
Interest income on bank deposits $R1T1FFF B UA 14,270 18,239 -21.8%
Interest expenses on bank loans  $R1TEXF B (23) - N/A A A
Net finance income BEWNFEE 18,133 18,904 -4.1%

Share of profits less losses of associates and joint ventures
In 2018, losses of associates amounted to RMB22.8 million, an increase
of RMB30.1 million compared to the profit of RMB7.3 million in the
same period of 2017. This is mainly because three of our associates,
still at the early stages of development or rapid integration, were
remained in loss during the period. The Board expects that these
associates will gradually be on track with fewer losses in 2019.

The share of profit of joint ventures amounted to RMB1.9 million, a
year-on-year increase of 533.3% compared with the profit of RMBO0.3
million in the same period of 2017. This is mainly because some joint
ventures were back on track with growing profits.

Income Tax

The income tax for the year was RMB163.3 million, increased by 39.8%
from RMB116.8 million during the same period of 2017. The tax burden
increased from 23.0% in 2017 to 26.0%. Excluding the effect of the
reversal of withholding taxes for the profit in 2017, the figure grew from
25.1% in 2017 to 26.0%. The main reason is that no deferred tax assets
were recognised in respect of tax losses of some subsidiaries at the
end of the period.

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation for the year reached RMB629.1 million, an
increase of RMB120.2 million from RMB508.9 million in the same period
of 2017, or an 23.6% increase year-on-year.
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Profit for the year

Profits for the year of the Group were RMB465.7 million, an increase of
18.8% compared with the same period in 2017; profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was RMB483.3 million, a growth
of 24.7% compared with the same period in 2017. After deduction of
share-based payment transaction expenses of RMB26.4 million, the
adjusted profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
rose by 31.5% on a year-on-year basis. The net profit margin, being
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by
revenue, was 7.2%, a slight decrease of 0.3 percentage points from
7.5% in the same period last year.

The basic and diluted earnings per share was RMB0.17, a year-on-year
growth of 21.4%.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

The Group maintained a good financial condition during the year. The
current assets for the year was RMB3,838.2 million, increased by 30.7%
compared to RMB2,936.4 million in 2017. The Group's cash and cash
equivalents amounted to RMB2,180.0 million in 2018, increased by
18.7% compared with RMB1,836.5 million in 2017. Net cash inflow from
operating activities remained the stable upward trend, amounting to
RMB656.2 million during the year, grew year-on-year by 24.1% from
RMB528.6 million in 2017. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB199.1 million, down by 73.4% compared with 2017.
Net cash used in financing activities was RMB119.9 million, up 68.9%
from 2017, mainly owing to an increase of RMB41.7 million in dividend
payments.

The Group will continue to strengthen the monitoring of relevant
financial funds and keep optimizing the Group's financial management
and control capabilities and facilitate the maintenance of strong
financial conditions by establishing and continuously upgrading the
financial sharing system and fund management and control system.

Because all of the Group's business is within the PRC, the operating
income and profits for the year are denominated in Renminbi. The
Group's only source of foreign currency is the Hong Kong dollar,
because it witnessed a successful IPO in Hong Kong in 2016. The
foreign currency investment income during the year mainly came from
the interest income on deposits of the money raised for the listing and
investment income from the sale of part of interests in China CVS. The
Group considers that there is no major foreign currency exchange risk.
Therefore the Company will not use the financial instruments to hedge
the risks.
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Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 December 2018, the value of property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB371.9 million, which increased by 22.4% from
RMB303.9 million as at 31 December 2017. This is mainly because there
were extra 201 communities under management (or 19.4%) and
additional equipment and facilities necessary for normal operations
were in place to adapt to the development of our new retail, asset
management services and cultural and educational services.

Trade and other receivables

As at 31 December 2018, trade and other receivables amounted to
RMB1,202.2 million, increased by RMB412.5 million, or 52.2%, from
RMB789.7 million as at 31 December 2017. Trade receivables
amounted to RMB665.7 million, an increase of 45.6% from RMB457.3
million as at 31 December 2017, which was higher than the total
revenue growth rate of 30.5%. This is mainly due to the impact of the
macro environment, the receivable collections of field site, developer
subsidiaries and specialized service have slow down.

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2018, this amount amounted to RMB1,892.2 million,
increased by RMB588.6 million or 45.2% from RMB1,303.6 million as at
31 December 2017. This is mainly because the procurement volume
grew with revenue gains; meanwhile, the payment of procurement
funds is further appropriately controlled due to the launch of the
Procurement Sharing Funds Collection system.

Property Services — accounting for 66.5% of total revenue,
and 42.3% of total gross profit

Property services are the Group's largest revenue and margin source.
The Group has been mainly adopting the overall rationing system for
service charging. Based on our management experience and cost
control capability over the past 20 years, property services provide us
with stable revenue and profit, as well as good reputation. Throughout
2018:

— Revenue reached RMB4,460.7 million, an increase of 25.3%
compared with RMB3,559.6 million in 2017. Our managed GFA
continued to expand and there were sufficient projects, laying
the foundation for the continued growth of revenue from
property services. As mergers and acquisitions continued to
thrive in the property sector, acquisition projects had high
premiums. Given this, we adopted the expansion model of
internal growth and prudent acquisition in 2018 and will stick to
this development strategy in the future. As the revenue base of
property services continues to increase, the growth of this
segment is expected to stabilize in the future.

W BERRE
HE2018F12A31 81 W% BEREE
EAREIINOBE T ®2017F12A318
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Gross profit reaching RMB507.0 million, up 27.0% from RMB399.3
million in 2017 compared to the same period of 2017. Gross
profit margin increased from 11.2% in 2017 to 11.4%.

EFABARKS07.0EE T - R2017F
E2FARBINVIFETLA27.0% E
| % 1B 12017 F A H3 @9 11.2% £ 7t 21
11.4% °

2018 2017
% of property % of % of property % of
service managed service managed
revenue GFA revenue GFA
YR HEE B E RS HEE
WA % HE % WA % 15 %
Contracted GFA AHmEE
— Residential —E= 70.3 78.0 70.6 79.0
— Non-residential —3EE=E 29.7 22.0 29.4 21.0
Total HRET 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

The managed GFA reaching 170.4 million square meters, an
increase of 23.7% compared with 137.8 million square meters in
2017, or net increase of 32.6 million square meters, net increased
by 19.6 million square meters compared with 150.8 million square
meters in the interim period of 2018. The increase in new projects
brings us endogenous growth momentum and is also the main
source of the continued increase in revenue and profits from
property services. At the same time, based on the market
demand for high-end property services, we have also actively
expanded to the existing property market, promoted the
increase of managed GFA during the year, resulting in increased
revenue.

Reserve area, as an important source of the future management
area, reached a new high during the year, at 192.1 million square
meters, an increase of 28.1% compared with 150.0 million square
meters in 2017, or a net increase of 42.1 million square meters.
This is the fifth consecutive year that the Group's reserve area is
higher than the managed GFA, greatly increasing certainty of the
Group's future stable growth.

managed projects reached 1,236, covering 137 cities in 29
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China.
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Regional distribution: as at 31 December 2018, our managed
GFA and revenue by region are distributed as follows:

B8 2 R2018F 128318 F A
NEEmRBMBARRESHOT

2018 2017

% of % of
managed % of managed % of
GFA revenue GFA revenue
HHEEER% LA % EHEEHEE% R A %
— Hangzhou — M 16.6 30.1 17.2 290
— YuHang — &M 6.9 5.6 5.8 5.6
Greater Hangzhou RATM 235 35.7 230 34.6
Ningbo B 6.9 5.7 7.7 6.3
Yangtze River Delta RI=AR 37.0 29.7 37.9 313
Bohai Economic Rim RS R 15.4 14.1 15.2 131
Pearl River Delta HI=AR 6.5 5.5 5.0 55
Others Hits 10.7 9.3 1.2 9.2
100 100 100 100

Community Living Services — accounting for 19.5% of our
total revenue, and 27.9% of our total gross profit
During the year, the community living service continues to grow among

the Group’s many businesses, and has gained revenue of RMB1,309.8
million, an increase of 45.5% compared with RMB900.1 million in 2017.
Among them,

m

The community products and services (accounting for 18.5% of
the community living service income): in 2018, the annual revenue
reached RMB241.9 million, an year-on-year increase of 29.8%
compared with RMB186.4 million in 2017.

Home living services (accounting for 6.4% of the community living
service income): in 2018, the annual revenue reached RMB84.4
million, compared with RMB71.1 million in 2017, increased 18.8%.

Community space services (accounting for 17.5% of the
community living service income): in 2018, the annual revenue
reached RMB228.7 million, a substantial increase of 88.2%,
compared with RMB121.5 million in 2017.

Property asset management services (accounting for 54.9% of the
community living service income): in 2018, the annual revenue
reached RMB719.0 million, increased by 43.5% compared with
RMB501.0 million in 2017.

BEER®E — HHBA19.5%  EHEF
27.9%

FN - BEERRBAEERSEBTREEER
WHEFSKRAARKE13098BETT * 820175
AREE00.1 HETTIERA45.5% ° A :

M

B & E m AR B(EE R RS KA
18.5%) : 2018 F W A B AR #24195H
B RE2017F ARE1864HE T
K 29.8% °

REEERSE (EERRB A 6.4%) :
2018F WA BARESI4BE L Bt
2017 EARE711BETER18.8% °

B [ 22 f R (R R AR A A 17.5% ) «
2018 F WA B AREE2287EEIL Rt
2017 EARBEI121.5B & T T88.2% °

WMEEETERB(LHERERBE WA
54.9%) : 2018 F A B AR 71908
B RE2017F ARES010HE T
#K 43.5% o
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(5)  Cultural and education services (accounting for 2.7% of the (5) X{t#BERE(HEREBEWAL2.7%)

revenue of the community living services): in 2018, the annual 2018 FWARARKEIBTBEETT - AL
revenue reached RMB35.7 million, increase 77.2% compared with 2017 FAREE202HETLIERT7.2% °

RMB20.2 million in 2017.

2018 2017
Revenue % of Y/Y Revenue % of
RMB’000 total % RMB'000 total
A 1L Bl WA hHB%E
AR®T T % % ARBFIT %
Community products & B[R E m A iR 7%

services 241,914 18.5 29.8 186,361 20.7
Home living services REEERTS 84,432 6.4 18.8 71,075 7.9
Community space services &l [& 225 iR 1% 228,654 17.5 88.2 121,486 135

Property asset management ¥ ¥ & EEERA
services 719,020 54.9 43.5 500,986 55.7
Cultural & education services X{tL#H B R 35,738 2.7 77.2 20,165 2.2
Total 85t 1,309,758 100 45.5 900,073 100

Community living services are the fastest growing business of the ERRBFKACAEBLRRE KIRAET -
Group. Community living services offer systematic product and service ERBREBERETNELEERBSSMNEE
solutions for all life service scenes of property owners throughout the — #)2 4 #n B BRI (1 R4t 1 B9 @A RIS R 5
life cycle of real estate. They are an extension of property services and % - R ERBNLERH - BRI [EEEE
an important part of our strategic vision of “"being a happy living R#%E | BESBESHNEZHKID - R F
service provider”. During the year, we adjusted and continuously fItRIEE R ZNBEERMERRBE D A
improved the community living services segment based on our  &F#E1T T A FEE(L -

strategic planning and according to situation.
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Community products and services

The growth of community products and services slowed down
compared with 2017. We considered that this is a result of our
rapid business expansion and some of our community products
and services still being at the development stage. During the
year, we launched products of “"Happiness Series”,
seasonal fruits, fresh produce, and traditional holiday products,

including rice,

based on property owners’ living and quality needs. We also
expanded our client base to include property owners and
companies in communities and inhabitants outside our
communities and extended our services from offline to online
("Happy Greentown” app) to new retail stores and the "Green
Lightning” distribution system. We hope to maintain and improve
the stickiness of property owners and other customers with
quality product and service experience, so as to continuously
improve our customer satisfaction. In 2018, we have also reached
strategic cooperation with third-party platforms, such as Longfor's
Qianding smart community platform and will work with more
quality partners to improve output capabilities of our community
products and service platforms and expand our customer base.

Community space services

This year, we intensified the integration of community space
resources and diversified the contents of space service products,
leading to both better bargaining power over our partners and
greatly higher revenue. While our revenue rose significantly, we
increased the investment in the infrastructure for space services,
such as installation of mobile interactive screens in some
communities, resulting in a slight decrease in gross profit margin
of this segment. In the future, we will provide the property
owners with products and services that meet the needs of life,
improve the conversion rate of the advertisements in the
communities, and further drive the development of our
community space services, through community-based media
convergence according to the analysis of the consumer behaviour
patterns of the property owners.

BEEE RN RE
lEEuufDEEﬁ%i‘ﬁE@ PEL 2017 B R
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MR EREA - AR #B0 B R E R MR

BINEEREBEMAE - £ RAER
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R UERBLA CERAMEE
xR BEFEEREMNERS L&

TERE  ZEEEHapp (EREF)H
1T BRI RHTEFE  [HE]
foxfg s BMFEMBENER MR

Bk ERLRERSEIREPHK
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Property asset management services

As shown in the Interim Report 2018, the second-hand housing
market had witnessed a significant drop in its activity as affected
by the overall real estate environment, and continued to
deteriorate in the second half of 2018. However, the National
Greentown Rental and Sales Centre, which was rolled out in the
first half of the year, was still in its infancy. The majority of our
revenue remained with our second-hand stores in the property
agency segment throughout the year, resulting in a significantly
lower gross profit. In addition, our other asset management
service (e.g. parking space business) continued its growth trend

MEEEEERK

M2018 FHRHAREFTR * XEHEAXR
B2 —FERSEREMRERE -
B2018 T FHRFERL - MBMK ¥
FEHRNZESHEBESRODERES
PEER 2 FEMRIFEZWATIRIIK
BRZFME  FEERREENEE
TR o AN RPN EAE EE RS
(WNEEfU25) » A 7 2018 L FryiE
EBZ 2FKAR017TFE R
211.5%  BEERERE R L IBERE M

since the first half of 2018, with its annual revenue increased by LASMNMBIE - FRAEFI R BT T © &
over 211.5% compared with 2017. However, the gross profit o BMEBRE— —A8KERERT
margin decreased due to the expansion of the business coverage MELZEEEREMELRE  EKET
beyond Hangzhou. In the future, we will focus on the R EEEEL -

management and operation services for high-quality property

assets in Tiers 1 and 2 cities to develop a stable business

operation model.

Cultural and education services — XEHER®E

We will focus on the high-end service market of early childhood
education. Through communications and cooperation with
reputable early childhood education service institutions at home
and abroad, we will keep improving the core competitiveness of
culture and education services and build our Greentown Service
into a well-known early childhood education brand, by
implementing our strategy “Standardized institutional setup,
scientific education system, diversified curriculum design and
. During the year, the schooling policy
was tightened, longer approval period for kindergartens, higher

personalized care service”

requirements on the teacher reserve and other factors caused the
revenue and gross profit margin in the cultural and education
services below our expectations. In the future, as the policy tends

HPEHBERHSHRBE TS - BB
HENIMEFEHRFEBOIRES
15 BB [HEREFREL  BEBRM
2 REZBZ T - HERBFENL
ft] TERBXIEHE REHZLHEF
N BEEPRBEFRRE - FA K
BHERNE - FE P AT HIE AR ET
RAREHEMFEOFTREAER  EX
XAEHE RBRAMERN K TZIRH -
R BEE PR AR (2019F BT T
TERE I ST 2 E M ZERE - R
BERZEVANEY ZRERT - FHF
e N EERTE RIGEE - ﬂﬂ%ﬁ?ﬂi

to be more favourable (2019 Report on the Work of the TRIR[E - ZRBEIEANE ﬁl‘%ﬁ(éﬂ =
Government pointed out: In response to the new demands EHE L ARERRNEE - ?—r./:.\;?i\
created by the full implementation of the two-child policy, we will ZE.IRESE - %{%Eﬁl/u BT b 2

move faster to develop various types of infant and child care
services, encourage private actors to run childcare and early
childhood education agencies, and provide better protection for
the safety of our children. We will increase the supply of pre-
school education through multiple avenues. The government will
support all kindergartens that meet safety standards, charge
reasonable fees, and earn the trust of parents, regardless of
whether they are public or private), we expect that the revenue
and gross profit margin will gradually return to normal levels.
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Consulting services — accounting for 14.0% of the total
revenue, 29.8% of the total gross profit

As discussed in the Annual Report 2017, we are actively responding to
changes in the consulting service market and continuously
implementing service innovation. In 2018, we continued to enrich the
core competitiveness of the “Green Alliance” service, and worked with
China Quiality Certification Centre to build a closed-loop from standard
setting, promotion, implementation to accreditation, thus improving
the awareness and recognition of the “Green Alliance” service in the
market. At the same time, to match the needs of real estate
developers, we introduced professional consulting services relating to
fine decoration and landscaping during the development and
construction stage of properties and managed to further mine
customer value. For the whole year of 2018:

—  The revenue reached RMB939.5 million, an increase rate of 38.1%
compared with the same period of 2017, and compared with the
growth rate of 24.5% in mid-year of 2018, there has been a further
increase, which also verified that new strategy for our consulting
services is effective.

—  Our gross profit increased by 45.6% to RMB357.2 million from
RMB245.4 million in 2017. Our gross profit margin increased
slightly to 38.0% from 36.1% in the same period of 2017,
remaining at a high level.

BHRE — HHEWA14.0% 0 HEER
29.8%

w2017 FFRATE R - T MIIEGIE E AR
BB RES( - THEHERGEAIFH - 2018
FRMBERE (58] REOZLBS
B EFFHEERETL - BETREE
HIE  IZEH T ZEE IS ERENER
PAIRMIE  |RA T [ 488 | R M5 A
EERBAE: B CESHESESK &
EiERZEEPAEAREE  SHEEE
BHARYE BRTEFEEMNREREZE - R
2018 F 2 4F :

— WAZEARISHEE L H20174F
2 EHLIER38.1%  HE R 2018 F &
Hi24 5% M RE - F T#E— SRR -
ELBRETBRMEARESTRETZE
A e

— EHAAREII2EEITL H20174F
AR 2454 5 & TAALE EFH45.6% °
ERELE2017 FREIAI61%EEIRFAE
38.0% ' KARIFE AT ©

2018 2017
Revenue % of Y/Y  Revenue % of
RMB’'000 total % RMB’000 total
A CEE Bt WA (EECE:S
ARBTR % % AR¥ETT %
Project under construction HEZYERS
services 787,735 83.8 BI85 572,730 84.2
Management consulting EIRTE AR
services 151,744 16.2 41.0 107,612 15.8
Total “as 939,479 100 38.1 680,342 100
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2018 2017

Average Average

No. of revenue/ No. of revenue/

Projects project Projects project

Year end Y/Y% RMB'000 VYearend Y/Y%  RMB'000

F19 Fi5

HEEH At WA EE THH Rtk WA THR

FXR % ARBTRT (EHFR % ANRETTT
Project under construction  EEY)E RS

services 438 47.5 1,798 297 22.7 1,928
Management consulting B AR

services 407 49.6 373 272 29.5 396

In face of market changes, we have continued to implement the
corresponding our transformation strategy for consulting services
from three perspectives of management, products and
marketing. We have further strengthened our capability of
consulting service product design and quality control, upgraded
traditional field services to better life experience services, and
enhanced customer experience and perception about our field
services by cultural and technological means, so that more real
estate developers are willing to engage us in provision of the
above services, thus bringing more service contracts and driving
the growth of revenue and profits.

Property Under Construction Services

Our revenue increased substantially by 37.5% and 23.0% to
RMB787.7 million compared respectively with the same period of
2017 and the mid of 2018. This is mainly due to the fact that after
our traditional field services have been upgraded to better life
experience services, we have further empowered our employees
through a hierarchical training system, centralised accreditation
and live training among others. We focus on creating a team of
"better life designers”, who are confident, keen, altruistic and
yearning for a better life. From the perspective of prospective
property owners, we have continuously innovated and upgraded
various service points of contact to provide customized service
experience for house purchasers. As a result, our services have
achieved high perception and recognition, and our business has
developed rapidly.
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— Management Consulting Services

Our revenue increased substantially by 41.0% and 32.5% to
RMB151.7 million compared respectively with the same period of
2017 and the mid of 2018. This is mainly because the "Green
Alliance” has a focused position as an alliance of quality services,
which gives full play to our leading advantage in quality over the
property service sector, and develops obvious differences from
products of the same kind in the market, thus avoiding
homogeneous competition. On the other hand, on the basis of
the original cooperation mode, we have added more innovative
elements by bringing forward technologies, intelligent
community, training and quality certification. Those further
improved the value chain of “Green Alliance” and developed a
long-term, diversified, stackable and sustainable cooperation
mode. We will identify the needs of third-party property service
providers accurately, make more like-minded ones to establish
cooperative relations with us, and facilitate the growth of
revenue.

Proceeds from listing

On 12 July 2016, the Company was successfully listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange and issued 777,776,000 new shares.
Excluding the underwriting fees and related expenses, the total
proceeds from Listing is HK$1,472 million (equivalent to RMB1,265.8
million). These proceeds will be used in accordance with the
Prospectus and the purpose of the announcement issued on 15
September 2017. For the year ended 31 December 2018:

—  49% for acquiring property services companies and value-added
services providers (44.2% has been used)

— 7% for the development and promotion of the “Smart
Community” project, and community products and services (has
been fully used)

—  19% for repayment of loans (has been fully used)

—  25% for working capital and general enterprise use (has been fully
used)

As for the unused portion of the proceeds from the IPO, our Group will
allocate and use them according to the purposes set forth in the
prospectus and the announcement issued on 15 September 2017,
which is expected to be all allocated and used before 31 December
2019.

— EEBHRE
WAEARBIS1I7EE L HE2017F
FIEAMA L 1 K 41.0% » £22018 4F AR B A
325% A MEEXAERR - EXER
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FEAL TOBEEBETRMEDERB TS
AIEHREELES  AHEmE ENE
HAERMVR TRAPENEZER HE
TRERF - Z—HE BMERE
AEREAERE EERMEHASD
FIEEEEREE L - HIlHEL - M
ERBEZBNEY £ PTET[#
HER | BRISEVEESE - TR 2T
b~ A& A RENEIERRN - BE
ZHMERBECERTKOBELE &
EZEREBEANMERS D ERRIME
KA TERRR - MR R AR

FHRERIE

KRR BR2016F7 B 12 B AT 72 B 2 B £ 4R
T BE1T777,776,000 L F % - BB E
BREERAS%  EMHBHREAEAEE
147288 T (ZERARE1258BETT) ° %
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Dividend distribution

At the Board meeting held on 22 March 2019, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.075 per
ordinary share of the Company. The final dividend will be paid on or
before 16 July 2019.

The Board is of the view that the Group has generated considerable
cash from its remarkable operating performance in the year, and the
Group also keeps large amount of cash in addition to funds required
for its operations. The Board always believes in sharing the positive
return from the Group's growth with its shareholders through dividend
distribution.

DISPOSAL IN RELATION TO A MATERIAL
ASSOCIATE

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 2
November 2018 and 8 November 2018. The Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Xianlife Limited, an independent
third party, pursuant to which Xianlife Limited agreed to acquire and
the Company agreed to sell some of the shares held by the Company
in China CVS (7,983,191 Class A ordinary shares) for a total
consideration of US$14,400,000. After such disposal and new equity
interests issued by China CVS to third parties, the Company’s
shareholdings in China CVS decreased from 34.28% for the year ended
31 December 2017 to 11.47% for the year ended 31 December 2018.
We believe that the equity disposal is based on the Group’s strategic
consideration for its new retail business and is in the interests of the
Group as a whole.

ACQUISITION AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group continued to follow a consistently prudent acquisition
strategy during the year. We adopted different acquisition strategies
based on types of target companies by considering their service
portfolios, geographical markets in which they operate, financial
performance, and synergy with the Group's business. During the year,
the acquisition were as mostly in line with expectations of the Group.

Having considered the continued M&A boom in the property sector
and high premiums for acquisition projects during the year, we
adopted the expansion model of internal growth and prudent
acquisition for the purchase of property service companies. Thanks to
our rich experience and good reputation in the industry, we
continuously worked with high-quality partners, such as local brand real
estate companies and state-owned or large private property
companies, to further expand our business coverage and deliver
quality services.
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For the acquisition of community service companies, we stuck to our
platform strategy. The Group relied on advantages of professional
teams to quickly learn and replicate relevant business models through
acquisition or cooperative operations and improve our community
service system. During the year, two significant acquisitions were
completed in terms of education and elderly care:

(1) The Group acquired 47.73% of equity interest in Tuotuo Network
Technology Co., Ltd (“Tuotuo”, a company mainly engaged in
online music education in China) at a total consideration of
US$10.907 million through acquisition of existing shares and
subscription of new shares. This acquisition has allowed the
Group to strategically expand its business from basic education
to interest-oriented education and from traditional offline
education to a combination of online and offline education.

(2) The Group founded Yule Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yule
Investment”) with Tianjin Dinghui Huyi Equity Investment
Partnership (“Dinghui”) and held 40% of equity interest in Yule
Investment for a consideration of RMB20 million. The new
company is mainly engaged in constructing land for elderly care
purposes and establishing the elderly care service system. Quality
funds will enable the Group to implement its strategy in the
health and eldercare segment and promote the deepening of the
aged care service system as part of its community services.

In the new year, while adhering to our usual acquisition strategy, we
will continue with our internal growth model and seek for new, suitable
acquisition opportunities.

To this end, the Group, as a cornerstone investor, acquired 9,870,000
shares of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the
Main Board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 3316) at
HK$6.96 per share, representing 3.57% of the total issued shares (after
the issuance and allotment of the over-allotment shares (executed in
April 2019) in March 2019. This has made it possible for the Group and
Binjiang Service Group to carry out in-depth cooperation in various
fields in the future. In the same month, the Group signed the Share
Purchase Agreement to acquire approximately 56% of equity interest
in MAG (for details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 29 March 2019 and 11 April 2019). This move has
pushed for the growth of the Group’s cultural and education business
and helped expand its existing education brand system, creating a
development model that is differentiated from and complementary to
its “Wonderful Garden” business.
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Contingent liabilities

For the operation needs, one subsidiary of the Group got loan from
the bank. The total bank loan was RMB4.45 million, and total interest
was RMBO0.02 million. As at 31 December 2018, the balance of bank
loans was RMBO0.95 million. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
bank loans regarded to be recorded. The Group is flush with cash.

The debt ratio (total liabilities/total assets) of the Group was 55.0%, in
line with 51.9% in the same period last year.

ASSET CHARGES

As at the end of 2018, none of the assets of the Group were charged.

BUSINESS RISKS

Staff costs and sub-contracting costs, which are derived from
outsourcing security and cleaning services to sub-contractors,
represent the single largest component in our cost of sales. In most of
the regions we operate, wages have been rising in general. As the
number of communities under our management increases each year,
our headcount and, in turn, total wages go up. Therefore, we attach
great importance to staff and subcontracting costs as well as quality
control to maintain and improve profitability.

Our control measures include: (a) taking the initiative to install
automated management equipment, so as to cut labour cost. For
example, we promoted the upgrade of intelligent gate system and the
application of patrol robots; (b) strengthening the supervision and
control over the quality of outsourced staff and services. Excluding the
increase in headcount resulting from acquisitions, the overall staff
growth (including outsourced service staff) was less than revenue
growth in 2018. The effectiveness of such measures in cost control has
been proven and the Group believes there is plenty of room for further
cost control as it is only in the early stage.

Risks in relation to work safety and occurrence of accidents
There are inherent risks of work-related injury or accidents occurring
due to the nature of property services we perform, for example, when
our employees or employees of our sub-contractors provide repair and
maintenance services to elevators of the residential communities we
manage. During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any work
injury incident or accident in the course of our operations that resulted
in a material and adverse effect on our business, financial position and
results of operations.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ZREE
FRAEE-WBRARELCEEAEEE [
RITHTEN FREFERETEAARK
A45HEBTL EEFEARBORZEET - &
Z2018F12A31H > EFXHEAARKQ0S
BEL - BEMEREN  AEREEMRTE
Ko BSMKAT -

AEBZEELXR(BEBHRUREE) A
55.0% + B22017 F B HIA 51.9% ZAKFF -

BERF
AR EIL S ITIRI A -

B ER
BTMDERAGMRRIEEEZENBRE) =
BV E AT AR — B  MAERFIARSS
MEE SR TEDLE Lk - N ERFAEF
MRGOERBBEN ETHEUNRTIER
BB RIGIN - BT MR EMBRETT BT
N BAEEEREIRSBRAREEE
i e

HPUEHIEERE - QXBEEBILEEN
M R R ERIAAE © BRI E RE B
RIREFOE  WBERBANERSE : (b)
MBRESNBRIFEAB MRBTEENEE MIE
Bl o BREEWBAERNZEABEEL
Sh o R2018FRERFABBRE (ERBINE
AB)BREERERRAZRER - FLEHEHE
FREE ARSI - MASEEREERRER
VLR - NREBREMAZEHINZER -

FREIFERZRBEEBINER
REMEEERBAIELSEHTERESN - Fl
wmERMNEES D EENEE SRFAMEEE
TERNFEBEREE RRERBE - 7
PR ARSI E S| B TR BN R -
RERCSFHAR - RAEELRRTUERELE
FEM THEEFHEIINEBER - MBI L
REZERINERTNEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WA T4

We typically require our sub-contractors to maintain accident personal
injury insurance policies. We also purchase liability insurance such as
general liability, property and machinery insurances for the
communities we manage, in order to protect us from claims due to
negligence or reckless acts of our staff and employees of our sub-
contractors. More importantly, in order to instruct our staff to follow
the standard procedures at work, we provide regular training on safety
and job skills. This prevents and reduces work-related injury or
accidents and the possible claims arise when employees perform their
duties.

We take the community safety seriously. We strengthened the
inspection of the fire and safety system in all communities under our
management. We also invited the fire safety department to educate
employees and property owners on fire safety. This facilitated talents
nurturing and safety management efforts, with the aim of improving
safety and prevention works in the communities we operated.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group conducts substantially its business in mainland China and in
Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is exposed to minimal foreign currency
exchange rate risk. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollar against foreign currencies can affect the Group's
results. The Group currently does not hedge our foreign exchange risk,
but continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure is carried
out and the management will consider hedging the foreign exchange
exposure if it has material impact to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Our Group adheres to its philosophy of “people-oriented and service-
oriented” and regards our employees as its top product. We aim to
add partnership-sourced income to the compensation system, and
provide diversified training and personal development platforms for
employees. The remuneration package offered to the staff was in line
with the duties and the prevailing market terms. Discretionary bonuses
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions. Staff benefits,
including pension, medical coverage, provident funds are also
provided to employees of the Group.
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In 2018, the Group issued share options (Reference is made to the
announcement issued by the Company dated on September 11, 2018
in relation to “lIssuing of share options”. The Company issued a total of
133.5 million share options to a number of directors and employees
(the “Grantees”), subject to acceptance by the grantees. Since some of
the grantees are no longer eligible participants or do not meet the
issuing conditions, 11.1 million share options have automatically lapsed
in accordance with the rules of the Company’s share options plan.), in
order to create an incentive system that share growth and benefits and
to develop employees and our Group into a community of
undertakings and life.

As at 31 December 2018, our group has 24,975 employees, an increase
of 21.0%. The total staff cost is RMB2,093.8 million an increased rate of
25.4% compared with the year of 2017. The increase of contracted GFA
and revenue were 23.7% and 30.5% correspondently.
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OBJECTIVES

Transparency in corporate information forms part of the basis for
investors’ confidence towards listed company, though it is also the
responsibility of a public company. A stable, diversified shareholders
base in which communication is effective, is essential to facilitate
shareholders value creation. And in the process, it could contribute to
a stable share price performance. This is a valuable intangible asset for
the Company. And IR is the very bridge of two-way communication
amongst shareholders, investment institutions and the public at one
end, whilst that of listed company at the other. Externally, in
compliance with the Listing Rules, the Company provides regular, real-
time, accurate and complete corporate information and updates. This
facilitates shareholders and the public alike to understand the
Company'’s operation and value, the state of development. Should this
be well co-ordinated, this should contribute to the establishment of a
long term and mutual relationship between the Company, shareholders
and the public. In the meantime, the Company is able to make known
of its corporate culture, business philosophy, strategy and planning, as
well as industry changes. This would enable investors and the public to
appreciate the Company’s positioning in the industry, business model
and competitive advantages, differentiating the Company from the
peers further. Internally, the Company takes shareholders and the
public's independent and valuable opinion seriously. Through
dialogues, the Company would listen and consider their views, aiming
to enhance the Company'’s corporate governance.

CAPITAL MARKET RECOGNITION

Since listing in 2016, the Company has been researching diligently on
the capital markets and its expectation towards the Company. Through
various communication channels, the Company has built effective and
two-way relationships with shareholders, investors, fund managers and
analysts, and other related parties in the capital markets. The Company
is very honoured to receive many recognitions in the capital market in
the past year:

— In the last year, the Company became the subject of the reports
prepared by 15 domestic and international brokers. Currently, we
were covered by 33 brokers.
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MAJOR COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

1.

"Wechat Official Account” — Company'’s latest news will be
updated weekly

Brokers, investment banks organized investor marketing activities

Reverse roadshows — regularly invite investors to visit our
headquarters and communities we manage to conduct onsite
research

Twice a year results announcement and public briefing

Media reports

Wechat Official Account — “ # 3 iR 7% 2869IR” (only
available in Chinese version)

In order to maintain timely communication with the market, the
Company has set up the Wechat Official Account in 2016,
covering three main aspects: capital market development,
business development, and owner resident feedback. It is to
keep the market and the investors informed of the latest business
development in the business segments of the Company. The
contents include analyst reports, media coverage, awards,
strategic cooperation, takeover, new business plan, development
and growth of existing business etc. We reasonably and strictly
follow the rules to maintain information disclosure and
transparency as possible. Throughout the year of 2018, the
Company published 127 articles on Wechat in total, with an
average of 2.3 articles per week. Currently, We have more than
1,500 followers.

Marketing activities organized by brokers and
investment banks

The Company has participated in various roadshows and
conferences organized by brokers and investment banks in China,
met with a large number of investment institutions, and actively
maintained communication with the market. The Company is
pleased to interact with the investors and keep them informed of
the business development. During the period, the Company met
with 1,104 investors in total (including repeated visits) and met
with 832 investment institutions (including repeated visits),
representing a significant increase in the number of investors and
institutions met compared to 2018. Meanwhile, the Company has
participated in various roadshows internationally, such as in
Singapore and London, to expand the base of overseas investors.
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Date Organizer Events Venue
=R HEE SREH b B

13 December 2018 Haitong Securities 2019 Annual Investment Summit Shanghai
201812 A 13 H ESEECE 019 FERERMES =

4 December 2018 CMS 2019 Annual Investment Summit Shanghai
201812 34 H & T 2019 FEHRERBE &

29 November 2018 Industrial Securities 2019 Annual Summit Shanghai
2018411 A 29 R LR FE S 2019 FEHRBEE &

16 November 2018 Daiwa Investment Conference Hong Kong 2018 Hongkong
2018 11 16 H RFER 2018 BB T A miE BB

15 November 2018 Citi Group China Investor Conference 2018 Macau
20184 11 A 150 TEMEEE 2018 P EIR B IEE R

6 November 2018 Goldman Sachs China Conference 2018 Shenzhen
2018511 A6 H =R EE 2018 P EIR B w18 3l

1 November 2018 CITIC Consumer Stocks Conference Shanghai
201811 A1 H FIERES HETEHTE L

28 June 2018 Citi Group Asia Pacific Property Conference 2018 Hongkong
201846 A28 H TEMEEE 2018 TR EE S S

30 May 2018 Morgan Stanley Fourth Annual China Summit Beijing
201845 H30H JEE AR = PR SE PO fE B AR IE i

16 May 2018 CITIC Interim Summit Hangzhou
201857 16 H RIERE3 REARES S AN

10 April 2018 UBS HK/China small and mid-caps corporate day Hongkong
20184 4108 B 4R BB/ PEPPNEAFR e

5 January 2018 EverBright 2018 Annual Summit Shanghai
201851 A5H KRS 2018 F LGS L
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Reverse Roadshow and Open Day — regularly invite 3. RENENMMAER — EHHE
shareholders and investors to visit our headquarters BER BEARGEBEEEERE
and communities we manage
During the Period, the Company held various Open-Day activities B RRZXBRAMRBEY  £F)
and proactively conducted reverse roadshows, inviting investors, AERMAEBELE  BEREA ES
fund managers, analysts and media to visit our headquarters as IR SATENFIEEE - RAR B RE
well as communities under our management. It is an opportunity EEEREMAMER  AFRGEHMMEE
to showcase our various services and operation openly to capital AFSERNARNKSEER  WHER
market, and follow up with management discussion. Given the BT - BEERE AZ KA N -
increasing demand from investors, throughout 2018, the 201824 - RAI—HAB T BRERE
Company organized 43 on-site visits in total. ER
No. of reverse roadshows
REREHE

2016 2017 2018
No. of activities RN 23 43
No. of visitors 2MAE 19 169 234
Twice a year results announcement and public briefing 4. SFMXI¥ERHES
The two results announcements followed by briefing conducted FBEMNEBNENMBEENB B E
in the financial year, are great opportunities for the Company to EEMME  BLARIMAEMREME
meet with a large number of shareholders and investors, BEARE BEIWREBMER - FTA
discussing business and prospects directly. Therefore the N REBFFFEMBN B MO AR
Company actively engages, with great detail, in presenting our WEEIER URZHEBENELS
core as well as the three service lines business. The impact is W BB EREE -
noticeable.
Investment report from brokers and investment banks 5. 5B BITHRERS

The Company is honoured to be recognized by the capital
market. Having listed for more than two years, the Company
already covered by 34 brokers. In 2018, they issued 50 reports on
us with 46 of them giving investment rating.

No. of issued investment reports

RAVRRERT  BEEAMBER > £
TWFEFZEEFURSFEEE 2018
FRRARGSARENERESD
HAR 46 ()RS RS TR

REBERHBE
2016 2017 2018
No. of total issued report B MRS B 10 39 50
(of which) No. of Buy (Em) B AR 5 30 46
(of which) No. of upgraded () IRAEZE - 19 15
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6. Improvement of Roadshows Information 6. HEEBIUE
Every roadshow represents a valuable opportunity for the B RBEBERFREEARNNE
Company to communicate with the investors. Thus, the Company Efe RARMAZESFR  AIEE
strives to optimize investors education through various methods BHehtCESERS RO MT
including result presentation and corporate video. The Company BEEHRE - AR RIZ2EREERNDOE
revises the presentation regularly and on-time, with reference to RESERTRBENER  THEEE
the feedback from the investors, and the demand of the investors RS -

at different stage.

Brokers e Rating ST AR
1 CITI TEMEEE Buy A
2 HSBC EEEHE Buy BA
3 CICC el Buy A
4 CLSA BRESF Buy A
5 Deutsch Bank mEE Buy BA
6 Everbright Securities HREH Buy gA
7 CITIC FIEES Buy BA
8 SWS RERR Buy EA
9 CMBI IR B Buy A
10 Core Pacific — Yamaichi RE— Buy BA
1" Industrial Securities Bl 5 2R Buy BA
12 CMS B AR Buy EA
13 Eastmoney Securities RAE Buy A
14 Sealand Securities 5 753 Buy BEA
15 First Shanghai Group £ Buy =N
16 BAML FIREM Buy BA
17 Southwest Securities RS Buy I
18 BOCI R B B Buy A
19 China Investment Securities R ES Buy A
20 Sealand Securities =g S Buy EA
21 Guosen Securities B{EE 5 Buy A
22 GF Securities BEE S Buy BA
23 Morgan Stanley JEE AR =+ SR EwW AR
24 Goldman Sachs SREHE Neutral =l
25 CCBI EIRERR Neutral AR
26 China Galaxy International #ROm B Hold L]
Not Rated K& 4%
27 ICBC Aisa THRTEM N/A i
28 Essence International A= B N/A T EA
29  Credit Suisse Iz N/A T EA
30  Guosheng Securities Bl B% 3B 5 N/A i A
31 Essence Securities CAEECE N/A TiEA
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkeRERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Li Hairong (Z=i#§%§), aged 61, was our sole Director from the date
of our incorporation until 26 November 2015 and was re-designated as
our chairman and executive Director on 27 November 2015. From June
1997 to September 1998, Ms. Li held various positions at Greentown
Property Group Co., Ltd. (A3 FEHEEEHR A F]) (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3900), including being its
vice general manager, executive vice general manager and executive
general manager. She joined our Group in October 1998 and has been
responsible for the development strategy and strategic planning of our
Group as well as for making decisions for material operational matters.
Ms. Li has been the Chairman of Greentown Property Management
from October 1998 to March 2018, and was also its general manager
from October 1998 to February 2011, where she was primarily
responsible for its overall management and daily operation. She also
served as the executive general manager of Greentown Holdings
Group Co. Ltd. ("Greentown Holdings”) from January 2006 to
October 2015.

In addition, Ms. Li currently holds directorship in various other
subsidiaries of our Company.

Ms. Li currently is a vice president of China Property Management
Association (FEIYEEIEHE) and the Zhejiang Province Real Estate
Industry Association (34 /I 5 Hb Z 13 &) and the head of its Property
Management Special Committee (¥ % & 2 H ¥ % 8 €). Ms. Li
graduated from the Department of Basic Specialized Training for Party
and Government Officials (2 X & 12 & & & #f & {& &}) of Zhejiang
Radio and Television University (4T /T & # & & K £) in Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (BB E3%), aged 47, has been our executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company since 27 November 2015.
He was appointed as the vice Chairman of the Board and ceased to be
the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 March
2018. He is responsible for making decisions for material operational
matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing the
resolutions of the Board. Mr. Yang joined our Group in February 2002
and has served in various positions in Greentown Property
Management, including the assistant to general manager from April
2002 to March 2003, the vice general manager from March 2003 to
February 2008, the executive vice general manager from February 2008
to January 2009, the executive general manager from January 2009 to
February 2011 and the general manager from February 2011 to March
2018. He also is the chairman of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate
Consulting Co. Ltd (I T4 E HE LA AR A A]) and is in charge its

development strategy and strategic planning.
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In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Yang holds executive president in Hangzhou property
management association (1M T %) % & ¥ #% ). He graduated from
Zhejiang University (#17TA%Z) in Hangzhou, the PRC and Hunan
University (#1EA2) in Changsha, the PRC majoring in real estate
development and management, and business administration,
respectively.

Mr. Wu Zhihua (R %), aged 40, has been our executive Director
and chief executive officer since 27 November 2015 and 23 March 2018
respectively. On 4 August 2018, Mr. Wu was appointed as the Chief
Financial Officer. He is responsible for the overall business operation
and daily management of our Group, making decisions for material
operational matters, participating in Board decisions and implementing
the resolutions of the Board. Before joining our Group, Mr. Wu worked
in Zhejiang Guesthouse Co., Ltd. (#1/ L& 8 A R A A]) from July 2002
to June 2003. Mr. Wu joined our Group in June 2003 and was
subsequently promoted as the executive vice general manager and the
general manager of Zhejiang Lvsheng Property Management Company
Limited (HIA AWM EE IR B R A F]) from April 2008 to August 2008
and from August 2008 to December 2008, respectively. He also served
as the assistant to general manager, the vice general manager, the vice
executive general manager and chairman of Greentown Property
Management from January 2009 to February 2011, from February 2011
to November 2014, from December 2014 to March 2018, and from
March 2018 to present, respectively.

In addition, Mr. Wu currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Mr. Wu is now the president of the Property Management Association
of Xihu District, Hangzhou (#1771 75 8 [ #) % & 2 % 2). Mr. Wu
graduated from Zhejiang University (#T)T X£) in Hangzhou, the PRC
with a bachelor's degree majoring in tourism management, and
obtained his master’s degree in science in quality management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (BA M T AZ) in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Chen Hao (F#’%), aged 49, has been our executive Director since
27 November 2015. He joined our Group in May 2015 as a vice general
manager primarily responsible for the management of community
products and services of the Group. He has been a director of
Greentown Property Management since November 2015 and a director
of Twin Cities Network since April 2015. Mr. Chen has served as a
director of Hong Kong Hung Seun International Resources Limited (&
BREBRREREGR QA
copper, market research and fund investment, since October 2009. He
is also the director of the Ningbo Yule Investment Co. Ltd. (the joint
venture of the Group) from August 2018. Mr. Chen studied in Jiangsu
Xinhai Senior High School (JL##1/8 ) (formerly known as Jiangsu
Xinhai Secondary School (JL#R¥T/8 7 £2)).

, a company primarily engaged in trade of

In addition, Mr. Chen currently holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of our Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shou Bainian (2484 ), aged 65, has been our non-executive Director
since November 27, 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance and
supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group. Mr. Shou
became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown Property
Management in September 2000. Mr. Shou has more than 15 years’
experience in the property development industry. He worked as the
executive vice chairman and the general manager of Greentown Property
Group Co., td. (WM EHESBE BR A
subsidiary of Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange: 3900)) from April 1998 to March 2015 and was primarily
responsible for its overall business operation and financial management.
He is the director of Greentown Holdings from January 2002 and is

Al) (being the wholly-owned

primarily responsible for its overall business operation and financial
management. He also served as the executive Director of Greentown
China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange: 3900)
from July 2006 to April 2018. Mr. Shou is qualified as a senior economist
(BARLHERD) in enterprise operation and management by Zhejiang
Province Human Resources and Social Security Department (/T4 A1
BRMALEREEE). Mr. Shou graduated from Hangzhou University (711
KE) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a bachelor's degree majoring in
history.
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Ms. Xia Yibo (E—i¥), aged 56, has been our non-executive Director
since 27 November 2015, and is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision regarding the business and operation of our Group.
Ms. Xia became an indirect holder of equity interests in Greentown
Property Management in September 2002. Ms. Xia was the chairlady of
Hangzhou Greentown Decorating and Design Co., Ltd. (TN 4735 &
FEF A R 2 7)) from September 1996 to August 2002. She has also
been the chairlady of Shanghai Wanley Insurance Broker Co., Ltd. (&
88 FIR & 42 B BR 2 7)) (wholly owned by Hangzhou Greentown
Capital Holdings Group Co. Ltd) from September 2002 to March 2018.
Ms. Xia has been serving as the director of Greentown Holdings since
September 2002 and is now the chairlady of this company. Ms. Xia
graduated from the Department of Chinese of Zhejiang Radio and
Television University (4 /T & #& & 18 X ) in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (7% R B), aged 57, has been our independent non-
executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgement to our board. He holds a master’s degree
in international accounting, a post-graduate diploma in laws, a bachelor's
degree in laws and a bachelor's degree in business studies. He has over 28
years of experience in regulatory affairs, listed company corporate finance,
listed companies governance and management. He is an executive director,
vice president and company secretary of Huabao International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 336), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of the following
companies listed the main board of the Stock Exchange: Honghua Group
Limited (Stock Code: 196), Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1171), AUX International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 2080), Changan
Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1292), Sany Heavy Equipment
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 631), Sunac China
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1918), Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1249), TUS International Limited (Stock Code: 872), Yuanda
China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2789) and Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 2362). Mr. Poon was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited from 5 January
2018 to 6 June 2018 (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
1609).
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Mr. Poon was awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the
University of London. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws and a
Bachelor degree in Business Studies and a Master degree in
International Accounting. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member of its Technical
Consultation Panel, Mainland China Focus Group and Audit
Committee.

Mr. Wong Ka Yi (E % H), aged 44, has been our independent non-
executive Director since 12 July 2016. He is responsible for supervising
and providing independent judgment to our Board. Mr. Wong
currently serving as a director and investment director of HX Innovation
Capital Management Co. Limited. He is a licensed person to conduct
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. He was
a director and investment director of China Metamorphosis Investment
Limited from June 2017 to October 2017. He was a managing director
of Fundatech Capital Limited from February 2015 to May 2018, worked
as a portfolio manager in HT Capital Management Limited and Munsun
Asset Management (Asia) Limited. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst
by the CFA Institute. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Li Feng (Z=[8l), aged 0, he has rich experience in property management
industry and he currently is the general manager of Shanghai Donghu
Property Management Co., Ltd. ( /85 EIR AR A F]). He served as
management in Honggjiao State Guest Hotel Shanghai (/& #1 1% ¥ & £8),
Dongjiao State Guest Hotel (ERZ0 & £8), Shanghai Lilac Garden Hotel (_E/&
T & IEE & £8). Mr. Li is a vice president of China Property Management
Association (FEIYIE IR 12 ) and the president of the Trade Association
of Shanghai Property Management (/8T ¥ E BTN E). He is also a
member of the National Technical Committee on Property Service of

Standardization Administration of China (& B2 RIFIZE T E E ).
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Mr. Li was awarded as Person of the Year of 2015 in Property Management
Industry (201512 E 1T FE AY) in 2015, Shanghai Brand Strategy
Implementation of 20 Years Influential 50 People (/% 74 HE 8k & & 5 20
BRE50A) in 2014, Shanghai World Expo Advanced Individual (/&
& L@ A) in 2010 and China’s Economy 100 Qutstanding Figures (&
B ACE R BEEH AY)) in 2003. Mr. Li was qualified as a senior economist
by Shanghai Accreditation Committee for the Qualifications of Senior
Professional and Technical Positions Majoring in Commercial and
Industrial in the Economic Field (/8 M4E RS THEESE XS REE
T 8 75 (B & 4% B F Z B ). He was also qualified as a Shanghai
government procurement review expert (/8 TTIRFRBEFTEHR). He
graduated from Shanghai University (=78 X22) in Shanghai, the PRC with
a Master degree majoring in management engineering.

Senior Management
For details of Mr. Wu Zhihua (R &), please refer to the sub-section
headed “"— Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Jin Keli (&RB8), aged 36, has been our chief operating officer
since 23 March 2018. She is responsible for management work relation
to the overall operation of our Group as well as for management of
administration and human resources. Ms. Jin joined our Group in May
2006, and served as administrative president, executive general
manager of Zhejiang Xinhu Lvcheng Property Service Company Limited
(M3 RAR R Y 2 RIS BBR 2 A1) from January 2012 to January 2014,
and from January 2014 to July 2017, respectively. She also worked as
the assistant to president, vice president and president of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited from February 2015 to July 2018,
from August 2018 to March 2018 and from March 2018 to present,
respectively. Ms. Jin graduated from China University of Political
Science and Law (FFBIBUA KR E), with a bachelor's degree majoring in
philosophy.

Mr. Yuan Weidong (JRf 3 ), aged 49, has been our chief technology
officer since 27 November 2015. He is responsible for the coordination
and operation of the “smart community” project of our Group. Prior to
joining our Group in November 2014, Mr. Yuan worked in NEC
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (A E@aA R 2 7]) from July 1992 to May
2002 as the head of the engineering technology department and the
general manager of eastern China region. He also worked as the executive
vice general manager of Zhejiang Ronghui Communications Equipment
Co., Ltd. (I A EB(FERAE AR 2 A]) from May 2002 to May 2014. Mr.
Yuan has been a Senior Engineer in Electronic Information authorized by
Tianjin Municipal Personnel Bureau (X2 A % /@) since October 2001.
He graduated from Jilin University (& #AX22) in Changchun, the PRC in
July 1992 with a bachelor’s degree majoring in electronics and information
systems.
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Mr. Zhou Hong (%), aged 55, he is now our Chief Safety Officer, he
joined the Group in October 1998, he is now also vice president of
Greentown Property Service Company Limited. He is now responsible
for the security management operation of the Group. He has also been
the general manager of Greentown Property Service Company Limited
(Shanghai Branch (4% 3 ¥ % ik %% /8 5 A &) from February 2013 to
August 2018.

Ms. Weng Yafei (§EE7), aged 39, she is now our Chief Quality Officer,
she is now responsible for the management of the service quality and
customer relationship of the Group. Ms. Weng joined the Group since
June 2001, she is now vice president of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited. She has been the general manager of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited (5th branch) since February 2013
and she was the general manager of Greentown Property Service
Company Limited (Chongqing subsidiary) from February 2015 to
November 2016. Ms. Weng graduated from the Program of
Management of Xi'an Jiaotong University (78 % XX i KX £) in Shaanxi
Province, the PRC.

Ms. Xu Yaping (#Z25¥), aged 39, she is now our Chief Marketing Officer,
she is now responsible market development of our Group. Ms. Xu joined
the Group since October 1998, she is now vice president of Greentown
Property Service Company Limited (4% ¥ #) % Ak % & R 2 7). She has
served various position of the Group, including being vice pre5|dent of
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Group O TARF b E b AR
&) (formerly known as Zhejiang Greentown Property Consulting Company
Limited (47 /T 4% 3k ¥ 2 5% 38 & fR 2 7). She has also been the general
manager of Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate Consulting Group with
effective from January 2013. Ms. Xu graduated from the Program of
Marketing of Hangzhou Commercial School (1 /1 % 22 B) in Hangzhou
City, the PRC.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company carried out the global offering on 28 June 2016,
comprising of 777,776,000 Shares at HK$1.99 per Share. For details of
the relevant use of proceeds, please see the section headed "“Use of
Net Proceeds from Listing” below.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the provision of residential
property management services in the PRC, which include three types
of services: property services, consulting services and community living
services. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 146 to 147 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.075
per ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2018. The final dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 14 June 2019 (the "AGM") and
will be paid on 16 July 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 20 June 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend is the embodiment of the operational capability of the
Company, which is also a commitment to share the results of the
Company'’s growth with all shareholders. The payment and the amount
of dividends (if any) depend on our results of operation, cash flows,
financial position, future prospects, and other factors that we may
consider relevant. Pursuant to the dividend policy of the Company
disclosed in the Prospectus, and combined with the payments of the
dividends after Listing, we intend to pay dividends in the amount of
25% of our profit after tax for each year. Annual dividend is subject to
the approval of general meeting of shareholders. The payment of
dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman
Islands, the laws of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing, a discussion on the Group's future
business development and an analysis of the Group's performance
during the Reporting Period using financial key performance indicators
are contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 23
to 42 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been working on sustainable development and
environmental protection. We spare no effort in making the most out
of resources in our business. Laws and regulations in terms of
environment and health are strictly complied. Meanwhile, the Group
holds various activities to promote environmental protection in our
business. Our goal is to educate proprietor and all walks of life on
creating a green city for the future.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group clearly understands the importance of regulatory
compliance and the risk of non-compliance. To the best of the Board's
knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years are set out on pages 11 to 15 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 July 2016, issuing 777,776,000 new shares, raising a
total of HK$1.472 billion (equivalent to RMB1.2658 billion) net of
underwriting costs and related expenses.
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In order to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of allocating the
net proceeds from the Global Offering, the Board resolved to make
the following changes to the intended use of proceeds from the Global
Offering (please refer to the announcement of the Company released
on 15 September 2017 for details):

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$721.3 million to be used for acquisition of target companies,
without the limitation on the types of company, whether property
management or those that provide value-added services, in
supporting the Company’s business development and expansion
strategy;

2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$368.0 million (i.e. increased by 15 percentage points from
10% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose, and in particular, for the
purpose of repayment of debts for the target companies to be
acquired, the development of such target companies following
the acquisition and the additional costs expected to be incurred
by the Company for the management of such target companies;
and

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds or approximately
HK$103.0 million (i.e. decreased by 15 percentage points as
compared to the 22% as disclosed in the Prospectus) to be used
to develop and promote our “smart community” project and our
community products and services.

During the Reporting Period, the uses of net proceed were distributed
as following:

1. approximately 49% of the net proceeds to be used for acquisition
of target companies (44.2% has been used)

2. approximately 25% of the net proceeds to be used for working
capital and general corporate purpose (has been fully used)

3. approximately 7% of the net proceeds to be used to develop and
promote our “smart community” project and our community

products and services (has been fully used)

4. approximately 19% were used to repay loan (has been fully used)
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 2.0% (31 December 2017: 4.5%) of the
Group's total revenue and our single largest customer accounted for
0.8% (31 December 2017: 3.4%) of the Group's total revenue.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 8.7% (31 December 2017: 15.5%) of the
Group's total purchases and our single largest supplier accounted for
5.3% (31 December 2017: 6.0%) of the Group's total purchases.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out on page 150 to 151 in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution (including share premium, share option reserve and
retained earnings of the Company), amounted to approximately
RMB1,136,420,000 (as at 31 December 2017: RMB1,162,505,000).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

For the operation needs, one subsidiary of the Group got loan from
the bank. The total bank loan was RMB4.45 million, and total interest
was RMBO0.02 million. As at 31 December 2018, the balance of bank
loans was RMBO0.95 million. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
bank loans regarded to be recorded. The Group is flush with cash.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”), Mr. Wu Zhihufa, Mr. Chen Hao and Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok (“Mr. Poon”) shall retire by rotation, and being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Mr. Poon serves as the independent non-executive director (“INED")
of over seven listed companies. The Company considers that Mr. Poon
has been and will continue to fulfill his roles and obligations diligently
as an INED of our Company. INED is not required to take executive
role in the management and operations of our Group but to supervise
the management of our Group and to attend board meetings and
special committee meetings (either physically or by other means of
communications) as and when required. Mr. Poon’s strong proven
record of attendance and participation in the Company’s board
meetings upon his first joined our Company fully demonstrates his
proactive commitments to the Company.

Mr. Poon possesses good academic and professional qualifications,
diverse experiences and knowledge across a wide range of industries
together with a broad understanding of culture in China. He has been
able to bring about strategic business, governance and capital market
insights to the Board which were critical and complementary to
effective board decision. The Company and the Directors are of the
view, and as confirmed by Mr. Poon, that Mr. Poon will be able to
devote sufficient time to discharge his duties as INED of our Company.

Mr. Poon has also demonstrated that he understands his duties and
obligations as required by the relevant laws and regulations, including
the Listing Rules, while in the course of discharging his duties and
obligation, Mr. Poon, same as other Directors, is fully supported by our
company secretary and the legal team. We really appreciate that Mr.
Poon has offered himself for re- election as INED.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular to the Shareholders dated 26 April 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 48 to 54 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to
be independent throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years, which may be renewable subject to both parties’
agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or entity connected
with director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals during the Reporting Period are set out in note 7 and 8 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company are set out in note 5(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR’S AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S INFORMATION

On 6 June 2018, Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok resigned as non-executive
director of Chong Kin Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1609).

On 6 April 2018, Mr. Shou Bainian resigned as executive director of
Greentown China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange: 3900).

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirmed that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

On 4 August 2018, due to the Company'’s internal job rotation, Mr. Ho,
Kenneth Kai Chung resigned as the joint Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. At the same day, Mr. Wu Zhihua (RE2E),
the executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company has
been appointed and concurrently serves as the Chief Financial Officer.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FERR
FHEBR RIS EREARE I EEE
@ EERELEREZAARARTELR
ZHSENBEAERENEERERERE
2 SR R -

BERRNBEHAEERAUSSFHMA LN
BN AR A B A IRRMITET M8 -

BRAKESENE

ARBRAK R EEBATEFITHN R G W
HERMEESD) °

FRESRSREEENEREZE

ERBELADT 20186 A6 HEHTAIZEE
(ZEBR)BRAR(—RPB AT ETAAR
P& RER - 1609) Z FEBITE BRBLFS ©

ERFLEDR2018F 4 A 6 HEHI AR+
(—RKREE S EAYAR] - BRDASER  3900)
ZHITEERIE -

B LRS- EEWRMEERARE LW
FRBIFE13.51B(1) IEIEE I EE -

R2018F8A4H - ARAARINEEAIFHS -
MREEEEREARBZBERARWERE
FHBE 2B - REB - NRABMITESR
TRASRREELECEZELREERME

=

B °



Report of Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests in Shares of the Company
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Ms. Xia Yibo Notes2.3) Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position
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Notes:

Mr. Shou Bainian holds all issued shares in Lily International Investment
Company Limited (“Lily International Investment”), which holds 39% of the
issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment Company Limited (“Orchid
Garden Investment”).

Ms. Xia Yibo holds all issued shares in Shenalan International Investment
Company Limited (“Shenalan International Investment”), which holds 21%
of the issued shares in Orchid Garden Investment. Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse
of Mr. Song Weiping.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited (“Osmanthus
Garden Investment”), Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through
Orchid Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International
Investment and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties
acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together
with their respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden
Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment), are all deemed to be interested in the total Shares directly held
by Orchid Garden Investment (being 1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Ms. Li Hairong holds all issued shares in Lilac International Investment
Company Limited (“Lilac International Investment”). Accordingly, Ms. Li
Hairong is deemed to be interested in the total Shares directly held by Lilac
International Investment (being 563,334,000 Shares in total).

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Ju Jianhua is interested in.
Mr. Ju Jianhua is one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme.

Mr. Yang Zhangfa is a beneficial owner of the Shares.

Mr. Wu Zhihua is a beneficial owner of the Shares.
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(i) REEEEER

(i) Interests in associated corporations

Number of  Approximate
Nature of Name of associated issued share percentage of
Name interest corporation capital interest  shareholding
28T BARR
HE EmtE HEEEAE RAEZHE Bot
(%)
Mr. Yang Zhangfa Beneficial interest Shenyang Greentown N/A 20.00
Property Services
Company Limited
BERSEE BamtEn S B YRGB R AR AN jE 20.00
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Br ESCRTIEEE & AN 0 7R 20184 12 A 31

Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFQO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to
subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO:

FERRRRS R ARG DA
BmRAR

201812 A31H » REEMRA - THAL
(XFEFHARAZHTRAR)RARBK
0 BRI D h A R IBCRE R B 1R H1)F
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Approximate
Percentage of

Shareholding in Long/short

Capacity/Nature Number of  the Company position/

Name of Interest Shares (%) Lending pool

RARQ R

BRBR  #A %R

i 54 EEtE ROEE BOL (%) AHEEHNRS

Orchid Garden Investment Mete N#/ED Beneficial interest 1,020,000,000 36.72  Long position

a3 R

Osmanthus Garden Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment (Notes 1. 2T - 2) corporation HE
Rt EE R

Mr. Song Weiping MNotes 1.2 Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

R 4 A T 2) corporation R
Xt EEER

Lily International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment MNotes 1. 3T - 3) corporation e
Xt EEER

Ms. Yao Huanjing Mo 4 Interest of spouse 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

PhmE L e FiBfEs LSy

Shenalan International Interest of a controlled 1,020,000,000 36.72 Long position

Investment Motes 1. ST - 5) corporation 3y}
X EEER

Lilac International Investment Nee&#=6) Beneficial interest 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

EafEs R

Mr. Ju Jianhua Nete”) Interest of spouse 563,334,000 20.28 Long position

B e D FoiBtEs R

Beneficial interest 28,000,000 1.07 Long position
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Notes:

%

Orchid Garden Investment is owned as to 40.0%, 39.0% and 21.0% by Osmanthus
Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan International
Investment, respectively.

Given Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment and Shenalan
International Investment are indirectly interested in the Shares through Orchid
Garden Investment, Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment
and Shenalan International Investment are deemed to be parties acting in concert.

As such, Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo, together with their
respective holding companies (being Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily
International Investment and Shenalan International Investment), are all deemed to
be interested in the total Shares directly held by Orchid Garden Investment (being
1,020,000,000 Shares in total).

Osmanthus Garden Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song
Weiping is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Osmanthus Garden
Investment for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Song Weiping is the spouse
of Ms. Xia Yibo.

Lily International Investment is wholly-owned by Mr. Shou Bainian. Mr. Shou Bainian
is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lily International Investment for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Yao Huanjing is the spouse of Mr. Shou Bainian. Therefore, Ms. Yao Huanjing is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which Mr. Shou Bainian is interested in.

Shenalan International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Xia Yibo. Ms. Xia Yibo is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shenalan International Investment.
Ms. Xia Yibo is the spouse of Mr. Song Weiping.

Lilac International Investment is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Hairong. Ms. Li Hairong is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Lilac International Investment for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Ju Jianhua is the spouse of Ms. Li Hairong. Therefore, Mr. Ju Jianhua is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. Li Hairong is interested in. Mr. Ju Jianhua is
one of the grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the

register referred to therein.
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39.0% ;& 21.0% s °
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Share Options
The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 May 2018.

Reference is made to the circular of the Company dated 24 April 2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties who are working for the interests of the Group an
opportunity to obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus aligning
their interest with the interests of the Group and thereby providing
them with an incentive to work better for the interests of the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the employees of the Group
(including Directors and Senior Management) and such other persons
as the Board may consider appropriate may be granted options which
entitle them to subscribe for Shares representing, when aggregated
with any Shares subject to any other scheme(s) of the Company, up to
a maximum of 10% of the Shares in issue of the Company as of 25 May
2018, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from the
Shareholders to renew the said limit or the Shareholders specifically
approve the grant.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company, the
amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of a grant of the option is
HK$1.00 (or its equivalent in RMB or any other currency acceptable to
the Company).

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted and to be granted pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
to each participant in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of grant of the options must not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options which would result in the
number of the Shares issued as aforesaid exceeding the said 1% limit
must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting at which
such participant and his or her associates must abstain from voting.

Any grant of share options to a participant who is a Director, chief
executive, or substantial Shareholder or any of their respective
associate must be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors, excluding any independent non-executive Director who is
the grantee of the share options.
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The exercise periods of the share options may be specified by the
Company at the time of the grant, and the share options shall expire
no later than 10 years from the relevant date of the grant. On 11
September 2018, the Company issued a total of 133.5 million share
options to a number of directors and employees (the “Grantees”),
subject to acceptance by the grantees. Since some of the grantees are
no longer eligible participants or do not meet the issuing conditions,
11.1 million share options have automatically lapsed in accordance with
the rules of the Company’s share options plan. Please refer to the
announcement issued by the Company dated on 11 September 2018.
As at the date of the report, total number of shares available for issue
under Share Option Scheme was 266,687,600 Shares (representing
approximately 9.60% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the report (i.e. 2,777,776,000 shares)) remained outstanding.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and notified
to a participant, provided that such price shall be at least and the
highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of a share
option which must be a trading day; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five consecutive trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on a Black-Scholes model. Reference is made to the note 25 of
the financial statements of the annual report. Regard to the subjectivity
and uncertainty of the values of options to the effect that such values
are subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the
limitation of the model.

The Share Option Scheme will expire on 25 May 2028.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors’ and senior HZE2018F 12 A3 BLEE  EBREELS
management’s movements and particulars of the share options were &R EERENFISREFHFHISHOT

as follow:
Closing
price of
the shares
Exercise ~ on the date Number of share options
Name position Date of grant prce  ofgrant BREHE
Balance Balance
as at Cancelled/ asat
1 January Exercise lapsed 31 December
2018 Granted during during 2018
RRE R2018E during  theperiod  theperiod 120185
RENRA 1818 theperiod HREHE HA%Y/ 12A%A
#e -1l RHAH kg Wi B HARL  BAAE it i
Li Hairong Executive Director (chairman) 11 September 2018 HKS6.116 HKS5.71 - 800,000 - - 800,000
£l and substantial shareholder N18F9A11H b16EL  STIAT
of the Company
RTEZ(EE2IR) RAKRE
Yang Zhangfa Executive Director (vice chairmen) 11 September 2018 HKS6.116 HKS5.71 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
REE $1785(22802R) b16%T  STIET
Wu Zhihua Executive Director, 11 September 2018 HK$6.116 HKS5.1 - 4500000 - - 4500000
REE Chief Executive Officer, N18F9A1E bIGET  STIET
Chief Financial Officer
RTEE BRAAE
BEHEE
Chen Hao Executive Director 11 September 2018 HK$6.116 HKS5.1 - 2500000 - - 2500000
R #178% WIBE9ANER b116%T  STUET
JinKeli Chief Operations Officer 11 September 2018 HKS6.116 HK$5.71 - 2250000 - - 2250000
£HE ERELR 018E9A11R b16%T  STIET
Weng Yafei Chief Quality Officer 11 September 2018 HK$6.116 HKS5.1 - 1750000 - - 1,750,000
BER ERERE M8E9A11R 616k STIER
Xu Yaping Chief Marketing Officer 11 September 2018 HKS6.116 HKS5.71 - 1750000 - - 1,750,000
fEs ERTRE M18E9A11R bI6%T  STIET
Yuan Weidong Chief Technology Officer 11 September 2018 HK$6.116 HKS5.1 - 1450000 - - 1450000
RER ARRE WIBE9ANER b116%T  STUET
Zhou Hong Chief Security Officer 11 September 2018 HKS6.116 HKS5.71 - 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
BE ERE2E M18E9A11R b16%T  STIET
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme and Share Option Scheme,
the Company has no equity-linked agreements that were entered into
or subsisted during the year of 2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

POTENTIAL COMPETING BUSINESSES

Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza

As at 31 December 2018, Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza Property
Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza”)
is indirectly owned by Greentown Holdings (which is indirectly owned by
Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian and Ms. Xia Yibo as to 40%, 39%
and 21%, respectively) as to 98.75%. Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza
is engaged in the business of property management, housing and
building facilities maintenance and repair, the provision of gardening
services, cleaning services, home services, renovation services and
parking services. The business operated by Zhejiang Greentown Century
Plaza is subject to a non-competition undertaking executed by Zhejiang
Greentown Century Plaza in favour of our Company on 13 January 2016
(as supplemented by a confirmation letter dated 7 March 2016) (the
“Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking”).

For further details of Zhejiang Greentown Century Plaza and the
Century Plaza Non-Competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Excluded Group
The below entities (together, the "Excluded Group”) have limited
competition with the Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i)  Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance”)
Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
is wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company
Limited (the “Hangzhou Dangui Investment”, a company that
51% of shares is held by Greentown Holdings and 49% of shares
is held by a company owned by Ms. Li Hairong and her family)
prior to 14 December 2018. Reference is made on page 89 of this
annual report.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
is engaged in the business of the provision of repair services for
air-conditioning systems and equipment as well as regular
maintenance services of air-conditioning systems and equipment.

Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited
("Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2018, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering is engaged in the business of the provision
of greening services including the provision of landscape
planning services, as well as carrying out relevant landscaping
construction works.

Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company Limited
("Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering”)

As at 31 December 2018, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering is a company established under the laws of the PRC
in September 2005 and owned as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui
Investment and 50% by Hangzhou Guangri Elevator Engineering
Co., Ltd., an independent third party. Zhejiang Gelingtong
Elevator Engineering is engaged in the business of elevator
repair and maintenance services as well as carrying out actual
repair work. Our Group's property management services relating
to elevators are limited to regular inspection of the normal
operation of elevators and supervision of maintenance and repair
work relating to elevators.

Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural Decoration Design and
Engineering Company Limited (“Hangzhou Lvzhen
Architectural”)

As at 31 December 2018, Hangzhou Lvzhen Architectural is
wholly-owned by Hangzhou Dangui Investment. Hangzhou
Lvzhen Architectural is engaged in the business of the provision
of all-inclusive and customized renovation services, including
design and renovation work, and architectural design services.

On 1 April 2016, each of the members of the Excluded Group has
executed a non-competition undertaking in favor of our Company
(as subsequently amended on 30 April 2016).

For further details of the Excluded Group, please refer to the
Prospectus.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors was engaged or had
interest in any business, apart from the business of our Group,
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business, which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Pursuant to the deed of non-competition undertakings entered into
amongst Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo,
Osmanthus Garden Investment, Lily International Investment, Shenalan
International Investment and Orchid Garden Investment (the
“Covenantors”) on 13 June 2016 (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
each of the Covenantors has irrevocably and unconditionally
undertaken, jointly and severally, with the Company that he/she/it shall
not, and shall procure that its/his/her associates (other than members
of the Group) shall not directly carry on, engage in, invest in,
participate in, attempt to participate in, render any services to, provide
any financial support to or otherwise be involved in or interested in,
whether alone or jointly with another person and whether directly or
indirectly or on behalf of or to assist or act in concert with any other
person, any business or investment activities in the PRC and Hong
Kong which is the same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in
competition with the business carried on or contemplated to be carried
on by any member of the Group from time to time.

For details of the Non-competition Undertaking, please refer to the
Prospectus.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
Shareholders confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the Reporting Period for disclosure in this annual
report.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the
Reporting Period based on the information and confirmation provided
by or obtained from the controlling Shareholders, and were satisfied
that the controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the Non-
competition Undertaking.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Advance to an entity under Rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules
and financial assistance and guarantees to affiliated
companies under Rule 13.16 of the Listing Rules

The Company and China CVS entered into a convertible note purchase
agreement (the “Convertible Note Purchase Agreement”) and a
convertible promissory note (the “Convertible Note”) and revised on
2 November 2018, pursuant to which, the Company has agreed to
purchase the Convertible Note in the principal amount of
US$54,000,000 against payment by the Company to China CVS of such
amount. The Convertible Note bears an interest at 6% per annum and
has a two-year conversion period (the “Conversion Period”). Subject
to the terms and conditions set out in the Convertible Promissory
Note, the Company may, at any time during the Conversion Period,
convert all the Convertible Note into ordinary shares of China CVS at a
conversion price determined in accordance with the terms of the
Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the Convertible Note.
Please refer to the announcement dated 29 October 2017 and 2
November 2018 for further details.

The maturity date of the Convertible Note is 27 October 2020, subject
to an automatic extension of an additional two year immediately
thereafter unless the Convertible Note has been converted into
ordinary shares of China CVS during the Conversion Period or unless
the maturity of the Convertible Note is accelerated upon the
occurrence of any Event of Default (as defined in the Convertible
Note).

The proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Note by China CVS
were for the purpose of payment of the purchase price for the
acquisition by China CVS of the entire equity interest in Idea Thrive
Limited.

As at 31 December 2018, the loan in the amount of US$54,000,000
provided by the Company to China CVS, an affiliated company of the
Company (as defined under Rule 13.11(2) of the Listing Rules), pursuant
to the Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the Convertible
Note exceeds 8% of the assets ratio of the Company as defined under
Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules.

According to the Convertible Note Purchase Agreement and the
revised Convertible Note Purchase Agreement, China CVS provided
100% equity of IDEA thrive Limited (¥ABBFR A F]) as the warranty of
US$54,000,000 mentioned above, and has been registered of mortgage
on 7 December 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following parties are our connected persons.

REBRERS
ToEH ARMOBEAL -

1. Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering Company Limited EEEEERMIEARAE
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering, a company established in EIGIREEMTEANFTREKZAAER
the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged in the provision N EEBEEBAEPRIRHIREE
of environmental maintenance, gardening services in the PRC. & BERK - BEREEEMIESAM
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is wholly-owned by MAEEE2EHEAE BERTERK
Hangzhou Dangui Investment, a company established in the PRC 3o HS1%RANKE R B AR IE RIS A
with 51% of its equity interest being held by Greentown Holdings, Hep 4% A RO EREERELE
and the remaining 49% equity interest being held by Ningbo TPERERER)HE  ZEHBEX
Ronghua Investment LLP (B R K ER E S B P E(ER G ®)), + R 28 E -+ 5 Bl A 80% & 20% -
which is in turn held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao (¥§%%) and MAYABEZFEZTHREKE - BUE
Ms. Li Haizhi (2= )8 Z) (both family members of Ms. Li Hairong). GIREEMIEARTEEERTEE
Therefore, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering is an associate of REZMEA  TEREAARRRZHE
Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong and hence a connected AT e
person of our Company.

2. Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering Company IR BEEERTIREARLATE
Limited
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering, a company MIREBEBRIEANFEKLINE
established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally engaged RAR TEXBRAETERHESE
in the provision of elevator maintenance services in the PRC EIRTS - H50% M #EmAMMNAERE
which is held as to 50% by Hangzhou Dangui Investment, BE WARGELERTEELLZ
therefore, it is an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li B A - MELARAR ZBEAL -
Hairong and hence a connected person of our Company.

3. Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment MMNEBEAREEERBTER2

Maintenance Services Company Limited

Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance,
a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is
principally engaged in the provision of air-conditioning
equipment maintenance services in the PRC, it is an associate of
Mr. Song Weiping and Ms. Li Hairong, and still a connected
person of our Company prior to 14 December 2018.
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Lansong Supply Chain

Before the acquisition of 27% of the equity interest in Lansong
Supply Chain by Zhejiang Greentown Property Community
Service Company Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) from
Bluetown Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd., on 5 June 2018 (the
“Acquisition”), Lansong Supply Chain was held as to 76% by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology Co. Ltd.. Bluetown Agricultural
Technology Co. Ltd. is wholly-owned by Bluetown China
Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta House
Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by Mr.
Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment
Company Limited, a controlling Shareholder which holds
approximately 36.72% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a
non-executive Director. Lansong Supply Chain was therefore an
associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence was a connected
person (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of the
Company before the Acquisition. For details of the Acquisition,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 June
2017.

Zhejiang Greentown Football Club

Zhejiang Greentown Football Club is 50%-owned by Greentown
Holdings and Zhejiang Greentown Education Investment, it is
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian
and Ms. Xia Yibo and hence a connected person of the Company.

Bluetown Agriculture Technology

Bluetown Agricultural Technology is wholly-owned by Bluetown
China Holdings Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Delta
House Limited, whereas Delta House Limited is wholly-owned by
Mr. Song Weiping. Mr. Song Weiping, through his wholly-owned
company Osmanthus Garden Investment Company Limited, is
indirectly interested in 40% of Orchid Garden Investment
Company limited, a controlling Shareholder which holds
approximately 36.72% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. Mr. Song Weiping is also the spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo, a
non-executive Director. Bluetown Agriculture Technology is
therefore an associate of Mr. Song Weiping and hence a
connected person of the Company.
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Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
28 December 2018 in relation to renewal of continuing connected
transactions. Considering of the Existing Supplemental
Advertising Services Agreement and the Existing Supplemental
Elevator Maintenance Services Agreement would expire at the
same time on 31 December 2018, the Board has resolved to
renew the related agreements (New Supplemental Advertising
Services Agreement and New Supplemental Elevator
Maintenance Services Agreement) . Under the Supplemental
Advertising Services Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2021 the annual caps will not exceed
RMB24,000,000, RMB28,800,000 and RMB34,560,000, respectively;
under the Supplemental Elevator Maintenance Services
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
the annual caps will not exceed RMB20,795,334, RMB25,612,493
and RMB31,545,528, respectively.

The Group has entered into a number of continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons in the ordinary and usual
course of business, which are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules:

1. Provision of Ancillary Services to the Group
The Group engages ancillary property management services
from certain connected persons in the ordinary course of
business.

(a) Provision of Elevator Maintenance Services by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to our Group
We engage the elevator maintenance services of Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering in the ordinary course of
our business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering entered into an elevator maintenance services
framework agreement (the "Elevator Maintenance
Services Framework Agreement”) with our Company and
renewed on 28 December 2018, pursuant to which Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering agreed to provide
elevator maintenance services, including but not limited to
conducting annual inspections, safety maintenance, and
providing repair services to our Group for the properties
projects managed by our Group (“Elevator Maintenance
Services”), for a term commencing from 1 January 2019
until 31 December 2021.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Elevator Maintenance Services
provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering to
our Group was determined based on (i) cost of raw
materials and wages needed for carrying out the Elevator
Maintenance Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quote provided by Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator
Engineering to our Group with the fee quotes provided by
other independent third party elevator maintenance
companies engaged by our Group for its other property
management projects. When comparing the fee quotes,
our Group considered factors including the price, scope of
services and the efficiency and ability of the service provider
to perform such services in a timely manner. The Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Elevator
Maintenance Services to be provided by Zhejiang
Gelingtong Elevator Engineering under the Elevator
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2018 would not exceed
RMB12,600,000, RMB 18,084,000 and RMB21,727,000,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee paid by the
Group for the elevator maintenance services provided by
Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering amounted to
RMB16,343,446 and the payment for the same period last
year was RMB15,142,960.
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(b)

Provision of Gardening Services by Shenyang Yiniji
Greenery Engineering to our Group

We engage the gardening services of Shenyang Yinji
Greenery Engineering in the ordinary course of business.

Description of the Transaction

On 10 June 2016, Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
entered into a gardening services framework agreement
(the "Gardening Services Framework Agreement”) with
our Company, pursuant to which Shenyang Yinji Greenery
Engineering agreed to provide to our Group gardening
services, including but not limited to turfing, watering and
trimming lawns, fertilization and pest removal for property
projects managed by our Group (the “Gardening
Services”), for a term commencing from the Listing Date
until 31 December 2018.

Consideration

The fees charged for the Gardening Services provided by
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering to our Group were
determined based on (i) the total area covered by the
Gardening Services; and (ii) the comparison of the fee
quotes provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
to our Group with the fee quotes provided by other
independent third party contractors providing similar
services engaged by our Group for its other gardening
projects. When comparing the fee quotes, our Group
considered factors including the price, scope of services
and the efficiency and ability of the service provider to
perform such services in a timely manner. The Gardening
Services Framework Agreement was entered into on normal
commercial terms.
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(c)

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Gardening Services
to be provided by Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering
under the Gardening Services Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ended 31 December 2018 would
not exceed RMB3,295,000, RMB4,563,000 and
RMB4,741,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee paid by the
Group for the gardening services provided by Shenyang
Yinji Greenery Engineering amounted to RMB897,826 and
the payment for the same period last year was RMB77,751.

Provision of Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
Services by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance to our Group

We engage the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services of Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance in the ordinary course of business.

Transaction Detail

On 10 June 2016, Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance entered into an air-conditioning
equipment maintenance services framework agreement (the
"Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services
Framework Agreement”) with our Company, pursuant to
which Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance agreed to provide air-conditioning equipment
maintenance services and the procurement of air-
conditioners units and other parts of air-conditioners,
including but not limited to conducting regular inspections,
providing cleaning, repair and maintenance services for the
property projects managed by our Group ("Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services”), for a
term commencing from the Listing Date until 31 December
2018.
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Consideration

The fees charged for the Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services provided by Hangzhou Greentown
Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group
were determined based on (i) the quantity and type of air-
conditioning equipment covered; and (i) the comparison of
the fee quote provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to our Group with
the fee quotes provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance to other independent
third party customers for the provision of similar services
and also the fee quotes obtained from other third party
suppliers of our Group which provide similar services. For
the purpose of such fee quote comparison, apart from
comparing the price quoted, our Group also considers
other factors, including the supplier’s efficiency and ability
to provide such services in a timely manner. The Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement was entered into on normal commercial terms.

Annual Caps

Our Directors estimate that the maximum annual fee
payable by our Group in relation to the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services to be provided by
Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance to our Group under the Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ended 31 December 2018 would
not exceed RMB1,173,000, RMB8,048,000 and
RMB?9,193,000, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee paid by the
Group for the air-conditioning equipment maintenance
services provided by Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance amounted to RMB4,439,545 and
the payment for the same period last year was
RMB5,520,196.

RE

TNARIRZE SRR M L R AN R
HE kA 72 8 % 8 A v AR 75 17 A B A9
BRROAEENTEAZBHE
N FBHR ¢ Fo (i) LB M AR = 38 R
18 e v [7) 7R SR B R 1 O S B ERATLMN
R ERREREEREMELE =
778 P LR AR LR 75 i r0 S (E
DA 4R AR AR5 ) 7R SR [ E A
=T HEFDESHNREMEE -
HZEEARELRME @ RE®
FrmERSN  REBITEBEMLEA
= BRHEERRESRMA RS
BV KRB N o ZE R AR MR AR TS
TEZR B T2 — A R IRRET AL -

FELR

EEMAE B E20184F12A31H
IF=AFESSF  NEBRIINE
Y2 AR B M IR T R B AR
BIERBEERHETAEEAZEHE
BEREREENNEFERSEA
DRI EBEARE1,173,0007T
A R #8,0480007T & A R #
9,193,000 7T °

HZE2018F12A31HIEFE - &
S B AN AR I 28 o AR S A
CHAREHERBERAARE
4,439,5457C - KFREBNERAA
¥ 5,520,196 7T °

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF

81



Report of Directors

EEERE

82

Listing Rules Implications

Since (i) Zhejiang Gelingtong Elevator Engineering; (ii)
Shenyang Yinji Greenery Engineering; and (iii) Hangzhou
Greentown Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance are
all associates of Ms. Li Hairong and are connected persons,
and the Elevator Maintenance Services, the Gardening
Services and the Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance
Services (collectively, the “Ancillary Services to our
Group”) are all ancillary property management services
provided to the Group, the continuing connected
transactions under the Elevator Maintenance Services
Framework Agreement, the Gardening Services Framework
Agreement and the Air-conditioning Equipment
Maintenance Services Framework Agreement have been
aggregated pursuant to Rules 14A.81 and 14A.82 of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of determining our Group's
compliance obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The aggregated annual caps in relation to the
Ancillary Services to our Group for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2018 are RMB17,068,000,
RMB30,697,000 and RMB35,661,000, respectively.

Since at least one of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) under the Listing Rules in respect of
the annual caps in relation to the Ancillary Services to the
Group, as aggregated, is expected to be more than 0.1%
but less than 5%, the transactions under each of the
Elevator Maintenance Services Framework Agreement, the
Gardening Services Framework Agreement and the Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Framework
Agreement will be subject to the reporting, annual review,
and announcement requirements, but will be exempt from
the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group

Zhejiang Greentown Football Cub provide certain specified areas
to Zhejiang Dual-City Culture for advertising the information of
products or services of third parties for promotion purposes.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture, a subsidiary of
the Group, entered into the framework agreement with
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club and renewed on 28
December 2018. Pursuant to which, Zhejiang Dual-City Culture
would be entitled to advertise in certain areas specified by
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club and Zhejiang Dual-City
Culture would procure independent sponsors to advertise their
services and/or products in such areas. The term of the
agreement commenced from 1 January 2019 until 31 December
2021.

Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club for the provision of the advertising service was determined
with reference to (i) the advertising fees charged by Zhejiang
Dual-City Culture from the independent sponsors which would
advertise their services and/or products in the areas specified by
Hangzhou Greentown Football Club; (i) the total cost incurred by
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture with respect to procuring such
independent sponsors; and (iii) a margin to be deducted
therefrom, which is not less favorable than the margin applied to
other independent third party advertising space suppliers of
Zhejiang Dual-City Culture.
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Annual caps

Reference are made to the announcements dated on 13 August
2018 and 28 December 2018, for the year ended 31 December
2018, the amount payable by the Group in respect of the
advertising services will not exceed RMB20,000,000. The Directors
estimated that the maximum annual amount payable by the
Group in respect of the advertising services for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2021 would not exceed
RMB24,000,000, RMB28,800,000 and RMB34,560,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the advertising services was
RMB18,267,925, and payment for the same period last year was
RMB15,169,811.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps of the
advertising services provided by Zhejiang Greentown Football
Club to the Group are expected to be more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of Goods Framework
Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements, but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Services provided by Lansong Supply Chain to the
Group

We receive the goods supply service provided by Lansong
Supply Chain to the Group in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 10 January 2017, Greentown Property Management, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sales
framework agreement with Lansong Supply Chain. Pursuant to
which, Lansong Supply Chain would supply various agricultural
goods and products to the Group. The term of the agreement
commenced from the date of signing the agreement and ending
on 31 December 2019.
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Consideration

The fees charged to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain for the
provision of goods was determined at arm’s length with reference
to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale market prices
published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC from time to
time; (i) the purchasing costs of such goods and the operation
costs (including packaging, processing and distribution costs)
incurred by Lansong Supply Chain for supplying goods to
Greentown Property Management and/or its subsidiaries or
branch companies under the sales framework agreement; and (iii)
the price of the same or comparable type of various agricultural
goods sold to independent third parties in its ordinary and usual
course of business.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by the Group to Lansong Supply Chain for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019 would not exceed
RMB62,400,000, RMB82,500,000 and RMB97,300,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount payable by
the Group in respect of the goods supplied by Lansong Supply
Chain was RMB30,161,832 and the payment for the same period
last year was RMB30,034,551.

As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided to the Group by Lansong Supply Chain
are expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Supply of Goods Framework Agreement
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements, but are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Services provided by the Group to Bluetown
Agricultural Technology

We provide goods supply service to Bluetown Agricultural
Technology in the ordinary course of business.

Details of the transaction

On 6 November 2017, Lansong Supply Chain, a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the framework agreement with Bluetown
Agricultural Technology. Pursuant to which, Lansong Supply
Chain would supply various types of agricultural goods and
products to Bluetown Agricultural Technology. The term of the
agreement commenced from the date of signing the agreement
and ending on 31 December 2019.

Consideration

The fees charged to Bluetown Agricultural Technology by the
Group for the supply of goods was determined at arm'’s length
with reference to (i) the national agricultural products wholesale
market prices published by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC
from time to time; and (ii) the price of the same or comparable
type of various goods sold to independent third parties in its
ordinary and usual course of business. In determining the price,
the Group would collect the relevant market information, review
and compare the costs and profits of transactions in the most
recent year for the provision of the same or similar type of
agricultural goods and products with at least two independent
third parties.

Annual caps

The Directors estimated that the maximum annual amount
payable by Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019 would not
exceed RMB18,000,000, RMB30,000,000 and RMB32,000,000
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount payable by
Bluetown Agricultural Technology to the Group in respect of the
goods supply service was RMB29,927,780, and the payment for
the same period last year was RMB12,711,829.
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As the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the annual caps for the goods
supply service provided by the Group are expected to be more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions under the Supply of
Goods Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements, but are
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details of the above continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
the Prospectus and the announcements of the Company
published on 10 January 2017, 6 November 2017, 13 August 2018
and 28 December 2018.

The Company adjusts the scope and amount of continuing
connected transactions and the annual caps exempted from
disclosure (where necessary) in accordance with its internal
control procedures. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has followed the pricing policies and guidelines for each of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed in this annual report
when determining the price and terms of such transactions
conducted. The Directors are of the view that the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure
that transactions are so conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non- executive
Directors have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) onnormal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company'’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued their letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules:

1. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company's
board of directors.

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes us
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

3. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ARBAERBZBMREELSTMAE
8 0K B 4 78 SE A5 2 B 26 3000 557 (€
ER])) SR B B B R B BB AN
e T W2 E(EBHAE7405)
[E& LRI AR ER 50
B e ] - AR ERERER S IEHE
o BB R LT AR A 14A56 (5
AAEER LASEREXZHELEA
H BB M S R

1. BIEERERRERBENEEE
BREMEXHREADAESE
HEAE -

2. HEEEREEVNHXZSMmE - #
BN BRBE AN (E _Lilds
BREXHNIEERTERER
SREE R EBBORETT -

3. BIEEIRFRBUBRBENREATH
BREMEXSAUFELZEARNTE
BRRAEZER M EMGZER
IO

4. BBFEWERXZEEME - RE
IR IR BB AZ BRAD AR (5 P I BE 5
BREXZEBBARRHENF
LR -

RABBAEBHIMELBBAEE
HE2018F12A3MHILEENEZER
ER BEHVZEAT KR o



Report of Directors

EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Acquisition of 100% equity interest in Hangzhou Greentown
Air-conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Company
Limited

On 14 December 2018, Zhejiang Four Seasons Life Network
Technology Company Limited (the Vendor, a subsidiary of the
Company ) and Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company Limited (the
Purchaser) entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement, pursuant to
which the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and the Vendor agreed to
sell, 100% of the equity interest in Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Company Limited for
Consideration of RMB8,971,700. Hangzhou Greentown Air-
conditioning Equipment Maintenance Services Company Limited is
able to supplement the Group's existing housekeeping service and
build an integrated home living service platform.

Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company Limited (fL1 FHEREBR A
Al), is in turn held as to 51% by Greentown Holdings (which is indirectly
owned by Mr. Song Weiping (spouse of Ms. Xia Yibo), Mr. Shou Bainian
(a non-executive Director) and Ms. Xia Yibo (a non-executive Director)
as to 40%, 39% and 21% respectively) and the remaining 49% by
Ningbo Ronghua Investment LLP (2R &KEREES BB E(BRER))
(which is held as to 80% and 20% by Ms. Ju Yao and Ms. Li Haizhi (both
are family members of Ms. Li Hairong, an executive Director))
respectively. Therefore, Hangzhou Greentown Air-conditioning
Equipment Maintenance Services Company Limited is an associate of
Mr. Song Weiping, Mr. Shou Bainian, Ms. Xia Yibo and Ms. Li Hairong
and hence a connected person of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as
defined under the Listing Rules, except for the transactions described
in this paragraph headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”, in
respect of which the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
the Company had no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with the
provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
disclosure of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the “"CONNECTED TRANSACTION" in this Report
of Directors, during the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has entered into any material contract with the
controlling Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries. And there is no entering into of any material contract in
respect of the services provided by the controlling Shareholders or any
of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF
THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company as the guarantor,
the Greentown Education Investment Co. Ltd, being an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”), Montessori
Academy Pty Ltd and the vendors, being Colette Assaf, Charles Peter
Assaf and CCA Investment Group Pty. Limited (collectively, the
"Vendors”) entered into the share purchase agreement, pursuant to
which, among other things, the Vendors agreed to sell and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase the sale shares, representing
approximately 56% of the total issued share capital of the Montessori
Academy Group Holdings Pty Ltd (the “"Target Company”) at the
Consideration in the amount of AUD67,204,190.14 (subject to
adjustment). As of the date of this annual report, the completion has
not yet taken place. Upon completion, the Purchaser will be interested
in approximately 56% equity interest in the Target Company. As such,
the Target Company will become an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2019 and 11 April
2019 respectively.

Save as the disclosures above and the matters disclosed in the note 35
to the financial statements, no other significant events which have an
impact on the Company have occurred after the end of the Reporting
Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance. Reference is
made to the announcements dated 31 May 2018 and 2 April 2019, the
litigation has been settled and the Company has fulfilled its obligation
to be performed in the Mediation Letter. The Board of the Company
believes that the amount of compensation involved in the Mediation
Letter will not affect the normal operation of the Group. Meanwhile,
the Company will take reference from the Case, and will coordinate
with the owner residents to comprehensively strengthen the safety of
the communities.
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Save as disclosed above, no litigation or claim of material importance
is known to the Directors to be pending or threatening against the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year of 2018, the Company maintained liability insurance for
Directors and senior management (being the liability insurance for
Directors and senior management and prospectus liability insurance)
to provide the appropriate coverage for the Directors and senior
management of the Company.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had,
together with the management and external auditor of the Company
(the "Auditor”), reviewed the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 93 to 112 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total
issued shares, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the Listing
Rules, was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR BB Em

The auditors of the Company have not changed in the past three years.  fEi8E = F RN RIFBETEI AL LS - EEE

KPMG was appointed as the Auditor for the year ended 31 December @ :HHAIEFAER T A E 2018412 A31H

2018. The accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance |t FEHZEAM - EER ST S KD T

with HKFRSs have been audited by KPMG. BERTRI SRR - A EWMREEBMBRER
AlimE -

KPMG shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, Z25Ee:HEIEFAEREEEITHRERSE

being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution for the K& FiR{F @ WA BAKREEEBEREF -4

re-appointment of KPMG as Auditor will be proposed at the AGM. BEEE S A SIS AR RR
R BERG FIR2 -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Li Hairong FE

Chairman gL

Hangzhou, 22 March 2019 TN - 20193 A 228
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this
annual report, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting Period. The
Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set
out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Zhangfa (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Wu Zhihua

Mr. Chen Hao

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Shou Bainian
Ms. Xia Yibo

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Wong Ka Yi

Mr. Li Feng

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has met at all
times the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules

relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company's
performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity
policy to ensure that the Company will, when determining the
composition of the Board, consider Board diversity in terms of,
amongst other things, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board. The Board diversity policy is summarized below:

The Board attaches great importance to the gender mix: women now
hold 22% of the total directorships, which is in line and higher that the
ratio for most of the listed companies.

The Board includes Directors with diverse backgrounds: executive
Directors have extensive management experience and are in charge of
the principal businesses of the Company; non-executive Directors are
highly experienced in corporate management, hence they are able to
provide effective recommendations on the Company’s operation and
development; independent non-executive Directors have experience
in property management industry, investment, finance, corporate
governance and international market.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors have any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with
any other Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity of the public
companies or organisations and the time involved to the issuer,
Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments and any
subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of
the Company's operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with
updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules and
other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company's
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director. During the year ended 31 December 2018, all
Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and provided the Company with their records of training
they received. Directors participated in the training which included
reading regulatory updates, attending seminars or conducting training
sessions and exchanging views.
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Continuous Professional
Development Training
FEEERRE
Reading or attending briefings
and/or seminars and/or conferences
relevant to regulatory and
governance updates

MERHEREERER
Name of Director BHEREANERER &
EENE BEER REE
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Li Hairong ESiSE o Yes B
Mr. Yang Zhangfa HBERLE Yes B
Mr. Wu Zhihua RGEESL A YesH
Mr. Chen Hao P ST A Yes B
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Shou Bainian =ZRELE YesH
Ms. Xia Yibo E—fzt YesH
Independent Non-Executive Directors &Y FHTEE
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERRE A YesH
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE Yes B
Mr. Li Feng FRLE Yes B

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Reference is made to the announcement dated on 23 March 2018 as a
result of an internal reallocation of responsibilities of senior
management, Mr. YANG Zhangfa, an executive director of the
Company, was appointed as the vice chairman of the Board of the
Company and ceased to serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 23 March 2018; Mr. WU Zhihua was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and ceased
to serve as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company with effect
from 23 March 2018.

The Chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) are currently two separate
positions held by Ms. Li Hairong and Mr. Wu Zhihua, respectively, with
clear distinction in responsibilities. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for providing strategic advice and guidance on the
business development of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 12 July 2016,
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of three years
subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors (except Mr. Li Feng) has signed an appointment letter with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be renewable subject to both parties’ agreement. Mr.
Li Feng, the independent non-executive Director, has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 5 December 2017, which may be renewable subject
to both parties’ agreement.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

According to the amended Code of Corporate Governance, the
Company revised the principles on nomination, selection and
recommendation of directors, and the policies on board members
diversity and independent non-executive director evaluation. Pursuant
to the principles and policies, the Nomination Committee will be
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on such
matters.
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Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

Apart from regular board meetings, the chairman of the board also
held meetings with non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors without executive directors present during the year.
Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code has been
amended to require the chairman of the board to hold meetings at
least annually with independent non-executive directors without other
directors present. The revised code provision has been in effect since 1
January 2019 and the Company has made arrangements to comply
with the provision.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given by the Company. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and are adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board Committee members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, seven board meetings and one annual RIFEHRN  EFELEITHAEETEETHEN
general meeting were held, the attendance of each Director at these —ARFREAS  FAREZLEESTSSH

meetings is set out in the table below: IS REN T & -
Attended/Eligible
Attended/Eligible to attend the
to attend the Annual General
Directors Board meeting(s) Meeting

BHE
BHE RREFAERY
EEaRy  EBUHERREBES

2= EHEEESRE RERE
Executive Directors HTESE

Ms. Li Hairong (Chairman) PEEL T (EE) 717 1/1
Mr. Yang Zhangfa HBEETE 7/7 1/1
Mr. Wu Zhihua REESE 7/7 1/1
Mr. Chen Hao PR S A 7/7 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Shou Bainian SMELE 717 1/1
Ms. Xia Yibo Bt 717 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors ¥ F#1TES

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok N e 7/7 i7al
Mr. Wong Ka Vi ERHELE 7/7 1/1
Mr. Li Feng FREE 7/7 1/1
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees (the “Securities
Dealing Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry with all
Directors whether they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
and the Securities Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. Directors could have
recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to
be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board
and report to the Board on matters; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Wong Ka Yi and
Mr. Li Feng. All of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1.

To review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the
work performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Auditor;

To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the
Board;

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, three meetings of the Audit

Committee were held to discuss and consider the following matters:

Review the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 31 December 2017;

Review the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries as
of 30 June 2018;

Review the auditor’s report in relation to the audit plan and
strategy of the Group;
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o Review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control (including the Company’s internal control of
corruption risks and the handling and identification of business
conflict of major shareholders in listed companies), risk
management system and procedures and re-appointment of
external auditor. The Board did not deviate from the
recommendations of the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

o HUBRBRL AREF NEERE
(BIEA QR SR B R e By A AR Z il Jo X
RN EMARBREERERAEEIEE
BAIE) - EREE R MR AR ER
SNSRI BREDIE L ARST - EFE S YW EIR R
EREEERIE T REXER
SIS A2 BREM A O (AR HE RS SRR o

Attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table &KEXRZESRERFZXZHENERIHINT
below: E S
Attended/Eligible
Directors to attend
EHERE
2=E FE IR
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) EBBIL A (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELYE 3/3
Mr. Li Feng FREE 3/3
Nomination Committee BEEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely Mr. Wong Ka Yi (chairman), Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok and
Mr. Li Feng. All of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. toreview the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on

the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
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4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or 4. BHEEETRENETURES(LER

re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning for FRERITHRBE) BEFTENESSIRY
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive == S V]
officer; and

5. to review the Board diversity policy. 5. FHEFEWREZITCEUR -

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on IR EESLHZ - £5% - HeeUA R ABITH
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time & Bt 2 5 i M 8 1 A HE SR 138 A SR FE
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The fFA - IREEZEEEZENERESESS
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to  A/ERTE - IE2EE SN EH S BN
the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the FrRAARBULAHER] -

Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two meetings of the EHZE2018F12A3MHILFERN  IERELEE
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, composition, ZBRTHKAIELEESSH  SHESSHE
size and diversity of the Board and relevant recommendations were & « 485 * #ERZ T - Wttt R ETIEH
made to the Board, which included the appointment of additional &EEREERRIREENEELRELESE -F
Director and re-election of retiring Directors. The summary and BAEBNEESKEZITIEHBRBELE
performance of the Board diversity policy disclosed on page 95 of this  {ZE# EHNARERHEISHE ©

annual report.

Attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in the RIZZZESRERFEZZSHNBERINAT

table below: *

Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend
BHERE

2= FEHEIRE
Mr. Wong Ka Yi (Chairman) BERELE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok EBIBE 4 2/2
Mr. Li Feng E=ER 2/2
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Remuneration Committee FHZEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprises A 2018512 A31H - HFMES €@ H =&KE
three members, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (chairman), Mr. Wong Ka  #H75K - EERBELA (XF) - @aE it RS
Yi and Mr. Li Feng. All of them are independent non-executive %4 - WELHABIIERITES -
Directors.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the HEZEEeNFEBEWNT ¢
following:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
determined by the Board;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. These include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to access performance of executive directors and approve the
terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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8. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to 8. @i ML ERESZITAKE MRESE

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that CEBEEMSMNEELZE  UER
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise ZERBFERANIGER - BEREEE
reasonable and appropriate; and WIET—2 BEEEENESHEEE
&
9. to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined 9. MR EfESKEAABHEA (BB LT
in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own RAMTER) THEL2HEETHAEC N
remuneration. [

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are  HNE 8 € 49 = B &6 B 0 5 S AT AR &
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. FUL AT AR -

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one meeting of the & ZE2018F 12A31MHILFERN  TMEE S
Remuneration Committee were held to discuss and consider the 8177 —XHFHWEZES SR ATHMEEEUT
following matters: WA -

. the remuneration policy of the Company and its subsidiaries o /NI B JEE RN B N o

e the remuneration of Directors and proposed adjustment to the o  EBHEHF - WHEESIRHFALES
Board

Attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is set outinthe KHMEESRKELFEZZSHNERIHINAT

table below: %

Attended/Eligible

Directors to attend
EHERE,

=== PE IR B
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (Chairman) ERBAE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERELE 1/1
Mr. Li Feng FRESE 1/1
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of the Board and
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set out
on pages 48 to 54 of this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

EERSREEENTM
HE2018F12A31BLLFE EERARQF
MNERERE(BEZRESNATREISE
EESAB)NMS SR ¢

Number of individual

HMEeER(ARE) A
0-2,000,000 10
2,000,001-3,500,000 4

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company'’s financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 136 to 145 of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound risk
management and internal control system is established and maintained
within the Group, as well as its responsibility to review its effectiveness.
Such system aims at managing and reducing the business risks faced
by the Group to an acceptable extent, but not eliminating the risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. Moreover, it can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement,
loss or fraud.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to take charge of the
on-going monitoring of the Group's risk management and internal
control system as well as the annual review of its effectiveness. Such
review covers all material control aspects, including financial control,
operation control and compliance control.
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Under the Company’s risk management and internal control structure,
the management is responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of the risk management and internal control system,
thereby ensuring, in particular, (i) appropriate policies and procedures
are designed and established to safeguard the Group's assets from
misappropriation or disposal; (ii) compliance with relevant laws,
regulations or rules; and (iii) reliable financial and accounting records
are kept properly in accordance with relevant auditing standards and
regulatory reports.

The key features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) designated departments are responsible
for the implementation and execution of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system and heads of major operating
units or departments are in charge of the management and mitigation
of identified risks; (i) the management ensures appropriate measures
have been taken in relation to significant risks that may affect the
Group's business and operation; and (iii) internal auditor provides
independent confirmation to the Board, Audit Committee and the
management on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s main duties on risk
management and internal control include:

J Each of the major operating units and departments carries out
daily risk management activities, which include identification of
significant risks that may affect the Group’s results; assessment
and evaluation of identified significant risks based on their
impacts and possibilities; formulating plans for and
implementation of measures, control and emergency response
plans to manage and reduce such risks;

J The management and finance department monitor and review
the risk management and internal control system on an ongoing
basis and report to the Audit Committee on its status;

J The management regularly follows up and reviews the measures,
control and emergency response plans in place for the identified
significant risks, to build a security risk management and
classification of risk prevention and control of double prevention
mechanisms, so as to ensure sufficient attention, monitoring and
response is given to such risks;
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o The management regularly reviews the risk management and
internal control system for the purpose of identifying the
deficiencies in procedures and control function, and designs and
implements rectification for such deficiencies;

J The management ensures the normal functioning of the
appropriate procedures and measures, such as making sure there
is no unauthorized use or disposition of assets, controlling capital
expenditure, maintenance of proper accounting record and
ensuring the reliability of financial information for business
operation and public disclosure; and

o Build and improve the safety protection system of the Company,
enhance the safety protection ability of the area in the service
scope, maintain the safety of lives and properties of the owners
and staffs and ensure the Company to operate orderly.

The Company focused on clients’ documents and supplier relationship
management. For clients’ documents, to collect, use and protect the
clients’ information, the Company complies with the laws related to the
information security protection ,and information security management
system of the Group. For supplier relationship management, by public
bidding, batch purchase, vender assessment, and other forms, the
Company strictly controlled the supplier selection, quality of products
and service, to make sure that cost control is suitable, and the quality
of products and services is protectable in the meantime, with a further
improving of our overall competitive advantage.

To ensure that the information transmitted successfully, the internal
communication system has continuously improved. Risk control system
has been landed to help the management in decision-making with
timely and accurate feedbacks.
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The internal audit function monitors the Company's internal
governance and provides independent confirmation on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function report
directly to the Audit Committee, submit the internal audit report to the
Audit Committee based on the auditing plan as approved by the
Board, and report the results of internal audit works to all Directors.
During the Reporting Period, the internal audit function performed
analysis and evaluation on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal control system, in particular,
it inspected the documents in relation to risks prepared by operating
units and the management, and interviewed staff members at all levels.
The chief executives in charge of the internal audit function attended
the meeting of the Audit Committee, explained the results of the
internal audit and answered questions raised by the Audit Committee.

During the year, the internal audit department of the Company
reported and reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems to the Audit Committee every six months. The content covers
the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions and their
training programmes and budget. The Board of Director and Audit
Committee reviewed the above content and were satisfied with its
adequacy.

The Company has established the inside information policy for fair and
timely dissemination of information to public based on applicable laws
and regulations. The chief executives authorized by the Group to take
charge of the investor relations, corporate matters and financial control
functions are responsible for ensuring and monitoring compliance with
the applicable disclosure procedures for inside information. The
relevant chief executives may access inside information on “as
needed” basis at any times. Personnel and professionals involved are
reminded to keep inside information confidential until public
disclosure. The Company has other procedures in place to prevent
mishandling of inside information, including prior approval of trading
of the Company's securities by Directors and the management, regular
notice of black out period, restrictions on securities trading of Directors
and staff and code for project identification.

The Company has established arrangements for employees and other
stakeholders to raise concern on suspected misconduct in financial
reporting, internal control or other aspects in confidence. The Audit
Committee carries out regular reviews to ensure appropriate
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation and
proper actions for such matters.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management and internal control
system. The annual review included: (i) reviewing the financial control,
internal control and risk management systems of the Company; (ii)
regular discussion with chief executives at the management level on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control and the
work of the internal audit function; (jii) evaluating the scope and quality
of the management’s on-going monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system; and (iv)reviewing the ESG report of the
Company and evaluating related policies and providing suggestions.

Based on the above, the Audit Committee was not aware of any
significant issues that would adversely affect the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control system of the
Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by the
Auditor to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately as follows:

EHREHRAN - ERZEERH T ARAERE
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[ E IR K AR R BRI R SR
THZENEKRRFERE
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Type of Services Amount (RMB)
PR & 51 SHE(AR%ET)
Annual audit services FEETRE
Professional review services on 2018 2018 FHh BABT FE R

interim financial report EHEERYS 900,000.00
Professional audit services on 2018 2018 F E W HE

annual financial statements EETEERS 3,000,000.00
Total Bzt 3,900,000.00

COMPANY SECRETARY NRWE

Mr. Ho, Kenneth Kai Chung (“Mr. Ho"), the joint Company Secretary of
the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, as well as the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

On 4 August 2018, due to the Company'’s internal job rotation, Mr. Ho,
Kenneth Kai Chung resigned as the joint Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
engages Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng"), associate director of TMF Hong
Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as the company
secretary of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Ng have undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in
compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and
investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity for
the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
of the Company will attend the annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the annual
general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and the
Shareholders and maintains a website of the Company at
www.lvchengfuwu.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

HE2018F12A831HILFE - XL ERIE
TR AISE 329K #EIT T LR 15/ NEF R B
=R -

ERRNBERREERE

ARARA - BERNBRBBRE MRREE
RRLEREERBEAREENES  KARR
BEIFREE - ARFIINRE RFEIBEE
BEARREHARBR MREEFLAIBR
BRENERN -

ARBRFBAFAGRHBREEETRER
WS - ARBERERARASEFLZESE
[ R BCRIBF A A IREE R B
B ERRBFRE  WREARBET
- ZEORSOEZEAT - FRERRRZ
SRR 1R -

RITEBERHER AR FHEMRE B
ROBEBUYARNFERREMHEGBEERRE
i@ AR A AUk (www.lvehengfuwu.com) - 2K
NAEREHTIEBREEKEEREENR
MER MBHE CEELEHALRAME
B U ARATER -

B RAEA
ARBARNFIZRAER - ARRRRBEA
F LA FE(BEERARNES) REBIR

HBRA® HE2MFARBRISEE LT

AIARESRETROR  REARBRZRE
REBITREERARA) LB AEETIE -

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF

111



Corporate Governance Report

EEERME

BHERREIAERRE2ZRER

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to The Investment &
Management Center via email (email address: ir@zjlcwg.com).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no change in the
Articles of Association of the Company.
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COMMUNICATE WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We consider that listening to, responding to and dealing with the
stakeholders’ comments effectively and continuously, and what
they are concerned, are beneficial to the Group’s business
development. For this purpose, we have constructed a number of
different platforms, including: mobile applications,
communication software and websites, to not only allow our
stakeholders to share and express their concerns, but also
promote a more harmonious neighborhood relationship and
better social custom, so as to build a service ecosystem for the
interaction, symbiotic co-prosperity and mutual promotion
among property owners, property management department,
merchants, and users.

CORPORATE VISION

We believe that by realizing the common progress of employees,
the company and the society, to achieve a sincere, kind, exquisite
and perfect life is the mission and responsibility of the Group,
and we strive to develop a social welfare undertaking supported
by the business model so as to create a safe, convenient,
comfortable and happy community for the public, and we are
committed to becoming the “China’s most valuable happy life
service provider”.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

3.1. Care for the environment
Management guidance and policies
Improvement of the property image and environment is an
indispensable part of creating a beautiful city. Therefore,
environmental management has become an important part
of the Group’s development strategy, and we have
endeavored to integrate the concept of sustainable
development into our core business through the
implementation of a number of environmental
management measures, so as to make more effective use
of natural resources, reduce pollution, and build a better
living environment for our next generation.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations such as the
"Environmental Protection Law of the PRC"”, and has not
been prosecuted for violating environmental laws during
the reporting period.
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3.1.1. Pollution control 3.1.1. SFRES
Tackling climate change JES RIRE ML
The Paris Agreement entered into force in 2016, which 20165 E R & ) IER &£
clearly states that countries should work together to B AEELSEELRS
deter global warming. To this end, the Group has also NhBEEZ2RELBE - R
endeavored to reduce carbon emissions over the past bt SEBE-FINENR
year to assist the State in fulfilling responsibilities DIREER - AR ERETT
under the Paris Agreement. Through instructing the (BRBZ)THEME - &
staff, the Group conveys a message of "Working WEIHEETF EHIEBDL
together to reduce carbon, beginning with energy B - WREIRET AR 4 | A
saving”. We post signs with content about saving B BMRPAENRER
electricity consumption on the lighting system SR EREAGHE - ¥
switches, air conditioner system switches, N e#ERE R
photocopiers, meeting room in our office, to influence HRERE FERBREE
and help the staff to form the habit of saving power. ITHBEENEE-B1THR
The staff turn off their computers or other office R ARHEeEEFEEIE
equipments of their own accord during non-working B H M B R A I A RR
time, a testament of the benefits of posting signs fiie B rEEHERAEE
mentioned above. In addition, the Group takes into FREIBC AR o AN REEE
consideration of the correlation between the vehicles BIBEI ETHMACZRA
used by the staff to and from work and daily energy THEAFNERERAER
consumption, in particular, the fuel consumption of BB LERARENRE
automobiles. Consequently, we encourage our AE Bt ZMHBET
employees to try to use public transportation means EEREAERBIAET
instead of their private cars, which not only saves the AR EBRLRE - EBEA
fuel consumption of their private cars, but also EALRENMBRAEZ
produces a positive influence to reduce carbon, %A - JRRTER Bk 7 E A IE
achieving a result of “Less carbon emission HHNFE  EZH[HFA—TH
contributed by everyone of us”. As the company’s @ DB KR - AR
business is concentrated in the office and the carbon RAINEBHEFRBAE
emission measures mentioned above are difficult to i it &9 HE ik £ 5 I8 2 DA 18T
measure, we have not been able to quantify the 2 LMW REEE2 (L HE
effectiveness of carbon emission. The greenhouse gas TREIP R - RS BN EE
emissions generated during the Reporting Period are VAEREBEERENT
as follows:

Greenhouse gas emission and density

BERBIENEREZE
Total greenhouse gas emission 99.57 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
BERBEIRESE NS e 8
Direct emission 98.94 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
HEYH YNk
Energy indirect emission 0.624 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
BEIR A5 HE A AP _FfciE
Emission density 0.00398 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/

each employee

HEmm = NE—_SftmEs BRET
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3.1.2

Waste Management

Greentown Service operates mainly in offices, so
there is no hazardous and non-hazardous waste
generated. In addition, the Group's properties and
offices are equipped with recycling bins, to promote
the concept of garbage classification among
employees and customers.

Waste gas emission and sewage discharge

During its operation, the Group did not produce
waste gas emission and sewage discharge that are
adverse to the environment.

Use of resources

To make more effective and prudent use of all
resources, including energy, water and other natural
resources, we have set up a series of resource
management measures to provide staff with more
specific advice and guidelines on the management of
energy, water and packaging materials.

Green office

Over the years, we have implemented a number of
energy conservation measures and initiatives of green
office, and we are constantly seeking and adopting
new ways to reduce the consumption of the
environment and natural resources in our operations.
We have made measures of green office for the
operation in offices, including: ventilating through
windows as much as possible in Spring and Autumn
to reduce the use of air-conditioning; setting the
operating temperature of air-conditioning system to
reduce energy consumption; standardizing staff to
effectively use water to avoid waste, and using
electronic office system to reduce paper application
process, thus saving papers.

116 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

3.1.2

BEEYEE
BEURBHELBEETER
WMAE BURFPRBEELE
BEERBEZEREY - B
SEETHRENENRAE
BREDYRE - ME TME
BHREAR BB -

ERPERL R TR K
SEREZBRETIRIAE
EHIRE M ER KI5K
BERR ©

ERER

REBRMEERWERAAE
BR - BIEER  KRHEAM
RAABR  BFFTLT — &
JIMERERER RET
RETEABMER KK
BEYHNEREZZE MRS

ZER - RPE®ET ZBE
EERMEEZRERDE
B+ [R)BF O S 7 3t = K B R
AT R RO TR AP 2 B
FHEIRERBRE R
Mo RPARREEER L
RERAEHEE B &
MREEEARERRR
EoORAZERENER RTE
EHRGRIELE - B
Bt MBETHBULAK
BERE - RAAEFHR
R BAOMERBEBIMRIZ
B AR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - B REAERE

During the Reporting Period, the major resources
consumed by the Group during its operation and
production are summarized below:

RBEHE SEEEER
EEMSEMERNSEEER
BRI T -

Usage Amount Density

ERE RE
Electricity purchased 696,949.0 kwh 27.9 kwh/each employee
BENE TR ThE S88T
Automobile fuel 41,926 L 1.67  L/each employee
UM NIt DA/ BRET
Municipal water 395 m3 0.01  m3each employee
MK ST K MNFK/BERET

3.1.3. Promote green operation 313 EBRERE

The Group actively integrates environmental
responsibility into the daily operation activities, to
minimize the impact of business on the surrounding
environment as much as possible. In the meantime,
we have strengthened the awareness of the
environmental protection of the stakeholders and
have done our best to extend the concept of
sustainable development to all aspects of the
community.

3.2. People-oriented Management

Management principles and policies

Greentown Service has been adhering to the “"people-
oriented” spirit, and always bears in mind the
implementation of social responsibility while developing
business. Greentown Service is committed to caring for the
career development, as well as physical and mental health
of every employee, and providing our supply chain with the
best treatment and the safest and most reliable quality
property management services for our customers. At the
same time, we are actively participating in and sponsoring
meaningful community initiatives and activities, so as to
achieve the vision of creating a better society.
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3.2.1. Equal employment 3.21. FEEE

Equal opportunities and pluralism co-existence

We believe that creating a respectful and harmonious
working environment for our employees is our first
mission. As such, Greentown Service Group respects
international human rights and labor standards and
strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations to
provide fair and lawful employment opportunities.
Guided by our business philosophy of sincerity, well-
intentioned, impeccability, and perfection, we always
respect the career development of staff, protect their
legitimate rights and interests, and continuously
improve their working environment since inception.
During the year, the Company maintained
harmonious relationship with its employees.

As a responsible employer, under the guidance of
national laws and regulations such as the Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Protection of
Women's Rights and Interests Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Provisions on Prohibition
of Child Labor, the Group adheres to lawful
employment, and uses information technologies to
accurately examine the ID information of the persons
to be employed to ensure no child labor in
employment. We recruit and attract potential
employees through online recruitment,
recommendation from HR organizations, internal
recommendation and University campus recruitment.
Employees come from different nationalities, regions
and various educational backgrounds, with no
restrictions on gender and age. The Group will handle
cases of labor turnover, including resignation,
retirement, withdrawal, lay off by the Company, etc,,
according to the requirements of national laws and
regulations of the Company.
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Salary and welfare

We think that employee care is the most effective way
to embody corporate culture. Thus, we provide a
comprehensive welfare plan for employees, including
social insurance, housing fund, the only-child
allowance, high temperature subsidy, festive welfare,
holiday benefits, life benefits, employee traveling
benefits, team activities benefits, birthday blessing
benefits, etc., aiming to improve the quality of life of
employees.

We have a sound Salary Management System. The
starting salary range varies with different job
responsibilities of employees. The assessment and
adjustment of starting salary range for different ranks
are conducted on a regular basis. And employee’s
salary and rank will be adjusted according to the
Company’'s economic benefits and employee
performance. In terms of working hours and holidays,
the Group has strictly followed the PRC Labor Law
and the PRC Labor Contract law, and other relevant
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We also encourage employees to strike a balance
between work and life, to promote “happy work,
healthy living”. To this end, the Group has established
the “Employee Care System”; we will listen carefully
to understand the staff's personal interests and
hobbies, so as to develop a number of employee-care
activities for them such as "Warm-heart Action”,
“Chunhui Action”, and "“Zijin Initiative”, and invite
staff to have fun together to make up for their hard
work at weekdays; to encourage colleagues to work
with the physical and mental balance for the pursuit
of a healthy and sustainable lifestyle.

The Group strictly complies with relevant employment
legislation and has not been prosecuted for any
breach of employment- related legislation during the
period.
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3.2.2. Occupational health and safety 3.22. BEREHEHZS

Health and safety of workplace

Greentown Service regards employees as important
assets of the Company. We are committed to, by
complying with the requirements of the law, creating
a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment
for our employees to fulfill our basic commitment to
our employees. We focus on the daily behavior of
employees, from the safety management point of
view, try to enhance the staff’'s self-protection
awareness, improve the ability of employees to
respond to emergencies, and strive to keep
employees safe during daily work and while working
outside. In addition, Greentown Service provides
annual physical examination to employees. After the
completion of the physical examination, the
examination results will be recorded and kept for the
staff, and employee health records will be established,
to facilitate follow-up work when it is necessary.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety
legislation and has not been prosecuted for breaching
occupational safety-related legislation during the
Reporting Period.
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3.2.3. BFINBE

3.2.3. Training Development

Management objectives and policies

We firmly believe that continued training and
development for employees will enhance the value of
the team and professional quality of the employees
themselves, thus bringing higher production efficiency
for the Group. The sustainable development of
employees has many benefits. The Group has a talent
training philosophy, which guides us to develop
different types of tailored training programs for
employees, such as the “Lemon Program”, “Sailing
Program”, “Voyage Program”, “Pilot Program”,
"Business School Program” and “Accreditation” to
provide staff with systematic training at various
professional stages to support and promote the
career development of employees.
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Training philosophy
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support their growth
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Greenhand training/integration program

This year, Greentown Service continues the “Lemon
Program” for fresh college graduates and new
employees hired through social recruitment. We
provide fresh college graduates with 5 years of
training to assist them in moving from theory to
practice, thus accelerating their adaptation to social
workplace culture. At the same time, we also provide
orientation training for new recruits from the
community to enable them to quickly transform their
professional roles, and integrate into the culture of
Greentown Service.

Figure 1 Greenhand Training
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Special Training for Talents

“Sailing Program”, “Voyage Program” and “Pilot
Program” are in-house training programs for
managers and the management. These programs
provide different management training and meetings
on a regular basis, strengthen the shaping and
training of employees’ professional competence and
professional quality, and create a communication
platform for the staff with the same profession to
share and deepen their knowledge, and let the
employees of different businesses to understand each
other to make up for the deficiencies, thus
comprehensively strengthening business ability of the
management of the Company.
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In terms of external training, the “Business School
Program” of Greentown Service is working with high-
end business schools to further enhance the
management vision and pattern of senior managers,
enrich management knowledge and enhance
leadership. At the same time, we will also arrange
qualification training and related certification for staff
to encourage them to move towards a more enriched
career.

Figure 2 Pilot Program
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In 2018, Greentown Service provided professional
skills training for employees, with average employees
accounting for 81% of all employees receiving
training, and managers and management employees
accounting for 19%. The training content covers basic
property management knowledge, HR, finance, laws
and regulations and courses related to their duties, as
well as other topics covered by our training and
education funding programs.

In order to improve efficiency and provide more
flexible training and communication methods, the
Group regularly publishes and updates training
information provided by the Group on its internal
network platform. Employees can log onto the
platform through smartphones, computers or other
mobile devices, and check all kinds of training courses
anytime and anywhere, and choose the knowledge
and skills required for learning and working. We also
encourage employees to take the same courses
repeatedly as needed.
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Figure 3 “Growing Cloud School” Application

Green Service strictly complies with the laws and
regulations related to minimum employment age,
prohibiting the employment of persons under the age
of 18 to engage in any job position. We check the
identification documents of the job seekers during
the recruitment to make sure that they have reached
the minimum employment age prescribed by laws. At
the same time, Greentown Service prohibits any form
of forced labor and upholds the human rights and
labor rights of employees.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
complies with the relevant policies, laws and
regulations relating to the prevention of child labor or
forced labor.
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3.3. BERIE
331 HEEEE

3.3. Operating Commitments
3.3.1. Supply Chain Management

Management Objectives and Policies

Greentown Service has always attached great
importance to the relationship with supply chain
business partners, and also knows well the importance
to promote and facilitate the operation mode of
liabilities and sustainable development in the entire
supply chain. To this end, we have formulated the
Supplier Code of Conduct, which specifies social,
environmental and commercial ethical requirements.
Through sound and effective supply chain
management, we work together with suppliers to
create safe working conditions, promote respect for
the dignity of workers, and promote responsible
environmental protection measures.

We have a comprehensive procurement management
process, to centrally standardize procurement/
tendering processes to reduce operating costs; to
adopt stringent measures and monitoring systems,
and we will assess the bidders’ policies, practices and
performance in compliance to regulations,
occupational health and safety, environmental
protection and community care, and require them to
provide certificate of service quality and financial
capability or reference document. After awarding the
contract, we regularly review and evaluate suppliers
to ensure that they comply with local laws and
regulations and meet environmental and social
standards set by the Group, if irregularities are found,
we consider to terminate the partnership.

Anti-corruption

Greentown Service will declare any conflict of interest
to the tendering company and its directors in order to
prevent fraudulent conduct in the procurement
process, and we encourage the use of a whistle-
blowing mechanism to expose any suspected
misconduct. In addition, the Group establishes strict
guidelines and enforces appropriate disciplinary
punishment to prevent any subcontractor or supplier
from breaching the regulations. The Group's anti-
corruption policy makes it clear that there will be no
cooperation with any of the offending suppliers.
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3.3.2.

Safeguarding human rights and labor rights across
the supply chain

Greentown Service complies with relevant local
legislation and will not tolerate the employment of
child labor and forced labor, and we also require
suppliers to comply with relevant legislation.

Service with Heart

Management Objectives and Policies

Greentown Service upholds the aspiration of building
a first-class property service business with advanced,
excellent service, leading scale, and rigorous system,
and advances towards the direction of becoming
China’s life service provider with the most complete
value. We have always kept “customer first, quality
orientation” as our hospitality spirit. On the basis of
traditional property service, we have set up an
excellent quality management, environmental
management, occupational health and safety
management system. At the same time, we fully
implement 8S management and cordial service, in
order to build a better home for customers. The
Group also strictly adheres to all relevant laws and
regulations related to product liability, such as
customer’s health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling and protection of privacy data.

Happy Community

Greentown Service has implemented the operation
policy of “Cordial Service”, oriented towards people,
starting from the heart, to create a functional and
aesthetic home of happiness for the owners and
customers. The Group insists on service with "heart”.
We have broad and comprehensive service scope,
ranging from pre-school children to elderly people,
which covers the various needs of owners from life to
spirit, so that they can enjoy quality life and realize the
dream of living ideally. In addition, we provide service
with “love” to provide personalized service and
service process to owners, and bring them happiness
with cordial and user-friendly property service to
satisfy and move customers.
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Figure 4 Greentown organizes recreational
activities for owners
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Quality Living

Greentown Service is one step ahead of the
customers, to provide them with the most intimate
and high-quality life experience. The Group has set
up a quality management center to oversee the
service quality of the entire business process and
focus on quality improvement to meet the needs of
customers in order to achieve the objectives of the
enterprise. In addition, in order to protect the safety
of the residents and ensure the order of the
community, we have a professional security team
responsible for daily security to maintain a safe and
orderly park. We also insist on maintaining the
environmental cleanliness and greening of the
community, requiring the various service departments
to conduct regular professional training in this aspect
and strive to make the community a beautiful model
home with high quality.
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85" Management System [8S] EFEH#IE

This year, Greentown Service continues to adopt 8S KRR A E MBI
management system to provide the customers with BSEEHE - I RARERIR
the highest quality of service. HEmmENRY -
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Save Service
Intelligence Services BEERE
Greentown Service constantly reviews the external 43 9 BR 75 1 i B AR A BR IR
and internal environment change, and develops our SE#l HEaHEY
own development strategy based on our own EEHEREE  HMBA
advantages. Through the introduction of intelligent SINEERBRE  BEHE
facilities, mobile Internet and mobile applications, we BRERITEEARER - A%
can effectively deliver information to customers to WG EMEETES - IR
enhance the convenience, service participation and FEFWEEFERE - RS
well-being of living of the owners. At the same time, 2EENEEZ®RE R
Greentown Service, through the Intelligent B SEREBBEEER
Community Service system, strives to build a social ARG R - R WA T
network platform, to establish good multi-directional B BYRIFZMEER " I
communication, strengthen the interaction among the BETCZENES BEXE
owners, so that the owners can experience more fFﬁﬁ%:ﬁE%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&?%E
distinguished service and enjoy closer good- WA MR o

neighborly relations.
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Response to the customers

We believe cordial service is the key to the Group's
success. We can develop closer relationships with
customers through continuous listening and timely
response to them. We have a rigorous complaint
handling mechanism to respond to customers’
opinions carefully to ensure that customers’ complains
are handled in a consistent and efficient manner so as
to assess and improve our services to exceed
customer expectations.
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Fair publicity RFEE

As a responsible enterprise, the Group recognizes the
importance of advertisement and selling description.
Therefore, each of our business units complies with
laws and self-discipline practices relating to labels of
products and services strictly. In addition, we review
the management objectives regularly to make sure
that the publicity information is timely and accurate
and complies with Advertising Law of the PRC and
other relevant laws and regulations.

Customer Privacy

We will keep the owners’ document information in
good order and ensure that the Group’s daily
operation complies with all relevant laws and
regulations so as to protect the customers’ data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's operation
has met the requirements of product liability, such as
customer health and safety, advertising promotion,
labeling, privacy data protection, etc.
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3.3.3. Corporate Governance

The Group has established clear policy and
management guidelines, which never tolerate bribery,
corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
other unethical practices, and the Group’s Code of
Conduct reaffirms our expectations for employees,
board members, suppliers and business partners. We
also regularly conduct training and code of conduct
assessment for employees to let them understand the
basic standards of conduct that they are required to
face and observe in their daily work.

We set up a highly confidential reporting mechanism
for employees and other stakeholders, including
business partners, contractors and suppliers, to allow
employees to report any suspected illegal or unethical
behaviors without fear of retribution or retaliation.
The suspected cases will be promptly investigated
and will be dealt with seriously.

During the Reporting Period, Greentown Service
operated in line with the policy on prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering and
complied with “Anti-Unfair Competition Law” and
other relevant laws and regulations.

3.4. Give back to the Community 3.4.

The Group recognizes that our responsibility is not only to
make a direct contribution to the social economy, but also
to include the impact and effects of our business operations
and public welfare projects on the society as a whole. The
Group has been actively involved in the activities of the
community and met the needs of the community in the past
year, fulfilling its obligations as a corporate citizen and
contributing to the community in which it serves.
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Care the Elderly

Greentown Service integrates the resources of the Group's
internal, social and other professional institutions, to
provide the elderly in the Community with over 100 kinds of
services, such as occasional visit, assistance and interaction
activities. “A bowl of longevity” activity held by the Group
at Double Ninth Festival every year has always been
expected by the elderly; Greentown Yile College, as the
college-style endowment model, has been widely used in
various Communities nationwide, and the establishment of
"Double Ninth Clean-up Day” provides solitary living and
empty-nest elderly families with sweeping services on the
day of Double Ninth Day.

Figure 5 A Bowl of Longevity

RIERE
REIREES T RER &R
Hih EXHBENER  SERAE
FoRERMI0082EN K E R
% mAERmARE EFIF - B
BEERDF - AREEFERGH
BERN-HESE]EHEAR
REHELOFNER | IRBELESMF
ARENSEGHAZRZEACERE
EEEEREN RIITEBBR
Bl REGHERRBRERZES
RERERMHE T BRR -

BE —HWREA

Free ride to the examination

During the examination period in June and July each year,
we implement the “free ride to the examination” activities
in the Community, and promote the “"commitment of zero
disturbance”, to encourage owners to keep the Community
quiet, so as to create the best review and test environment
for the candidates. The Group also arranges “Loving Car
Team"” for candidates during the examination period to
offer free ride and vehicle services for emergency. In 2018,
a total of 589 volunteers participated in the examination
services to provide services to young owners who
participated in the high school and college entrance
examination.

BLRE

REFH6 7 ANZHERE - #M
SEERETIEOMERNE
8 55 [TITERGAR] - 2B
EXM-RARSERER  /ZL
BERIHRE NERRR  £H
BERBTELBHEER] RELR
ZABMREEOXE NE AR
REEMERESFTFIRY - 2018
FE2EELENETASIAR
2me - 2ENPETRETR
& o

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF

131



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RiR - B RERERE

Dolphin Program

Greentown Service holds “Dolphin Program” during July to
August each year to provide young owners at the age of 3
to 18 who are unable to swim with the free swimming
training. Dolphin Program has been conducted for 9 years.
In 2018, there were 16,864 young property owners
participated in the training.

In 2018, the Greentown "Golden Dolphin" Swimming
Association was set up, with swimming-loving owners as
president etc., promoting the popularization and
standardization of "Dolphin Program" training. Thirty-three
children formally took part and reached the "National
Swimming Training Grade Standard" (Grade 5 Blue
Dolphin) and were awarded the "National Swimming
Training Grade Standard Attainment Certificate" by the
Chinese Swimming Association.

Figure 6 Dolphin Program organized by
Greentown Service in 2018
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Greentown Forest

Through the welfare activities, the 2015 “Save Mingin
Deliver Green” and the 2016 “Crowd Funding for
Greentown Forest”, for two consecutive years, we have
altogether planted a total of 43,000 trees covering an area
of more than 623 mu, to build a strong embankment for the
resistance of desertification. In 2017, Greentown continued
this green spirit by encouraging and organizing owners,
employees and families to donate to the desert region in
Mingin County, Gansu Province, which raised a total of
RMB55,822.08.

Greentown continued to encourage the Green Spirit,
organized and held the launching ceremony of public
welfare activity “Crowd Funding for Greentown Forest” for
2018. The owners and employees of the property group
donated RMB69,490.7 in total to the Mingin County area of
Gansu province.
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TEmEEEE  SEEasEE -
BTRERER  AEHEEHZYD
EEER - £BHRARMES5,822.08
5T e

BB B B RS - IR
ZIFE T 2018 FE [— A—2h4% -
B —F ] AeZ B MR &
N MEEEMEIHRETHTAT
FERYMERBE T AR 69,490.1
TLER e
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R 8 RERERE

Clear World BRI
Eyes are our precious “windows of the soul”. In order to RETHMZENBERZE| " B
promote the importance of eye protection, Greentown EHRERBENEZY - SRS
Service has worked together with “Formosa Glasses” (a ErNthEEANE [ESRE] (X
well-known glasses chain brand) to carry out “Clear World” ZIEFEEHELE) S EBBRRE S
eye care activity in Hangzhou, and provided thousands of SR HEREREE  AH
owners with vision inspection, optometry, counseling and FTREFRB|TEIRE B
other services. Through “diagnosis” and “prevention”, the AR BB 2 A TER
community’s concern about eye health and eyesight has EEET - BB e AT HRE
been aroused, thus comprehensively enhancing the EELSRDBEENRET - w2 mmn
common sense of eye protection of the public. RTTRAER T
Figure 7 the “Clear World” Eye Care and Protection Bt 2018 F M 4R 40 AR 75 22 3¢
Campaign held by Greentown Service in 2018 (Bt R | SREREE
TEE
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RIR - B REAERE

Happiness Land

Greentown Service Group found that despite the booming
development of the property management industry, there
are still quite many problems exist, such as unclear
boundaries of responsibilities among the community,
Committee Of The Property Owners and property service
companies, and unsmooth in collaboration of management,
resulting in the lack of coordination, collaboration,
contradictions and constraints among all parties involved.
In 2018, Greentown Service Group set up the “Happiness
Land”, which is a “circle of friends” that has bridged a
tripartite cooperation among neighborhood committees,
Committee Of The Property Owners and the property
companies. Under the leadership of the Party committee,
the list of responsibilities and tasks of the Committee Of
The Property Owners and property management company
have been clearly defined. Political leadership,
organizational leadership and ability leadership have been
strengthened. At the same time, through the penetration
and aggregation of crowdfunding, co-construction,
autonomy and sharing, all parties have “combined into one
force and twisted into one rope” to form an organizational
system with the same frequency, resonance and power.
Since 28 October 2018, the Group has promoted the co-
construction of “Greentown Happiness Land” in 224
communities, bringing the total number of people joining
Happiness Land to 16,894.

Figure 8 the launching ceremony of “Happiness Land”
held by Greentown Service in 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Greentown
Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 146 to 296, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 FE W R 2 W W E

BRESEE
BMRECFESRETZOTLLAN - BAY
A AMERRNBHBAEENEE - &
LFERERMBHERGAMHREARMA
BREETREN AMTEHELEBRHN
EBNER -

Refer to accounting policy note 1(l), note 18 and note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

A2EIMTE 1) B B AT IR R A7 & BT R W1 5t 18 FIRTaE 29(a) »

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREER BEMWESFNAEEZER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gross trade receivables  Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of

totaled RMB735.4 million and an allowance for impairment of  trade

receivables included the following:

trade receivables of RMB69.7 million was made. HMFEE SR IE 2 T REENE R

R2018F12A31H EXEEBEZERNBLETEAARE
735468 ESEBFBREREAARKOTIEETL o

The Group’s trade receivables comprised mainly the
receivables from property owners and property developers.
EEENESRUEFBETIZERET MYERREHEYIK
T o

Management measured an allowance for impairment of
trade receivable at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit loss, based on the loss patterns for different e
customers, aging of trade receivables and loss rate.
ERERBETIRZEFHEBEEER - B 5RUERN KRR LE
BE SN2 HRNEEERNSETERKE SRR
IR -

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the balance of trade receivables is
material to the Group and the recognition of expected credit
loss is inherently subjective and requires the exercise of
significant management judgement.
BMEBESRUFEN AT BBt RRRERETEE AR
BoRBFIENGE®RY BEXEMEEBER MEBEHBEEE o
BOBRAAE LAATEN  FEEEBFLEXRHE -

obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over
management assessment performed on the
recoverability of the trade receivables, including
credit control, segmentation of trade
receivables, aging analysis review, estimate of
expected credit losses and making related
allowances;

TR FHE L E B MR AT M B P 1T E TR
FHENERANEZ (BREERET - EHEK
RSBl - BREE TR - FEEEREEBRMER X
ETHBRE) KRG  BRETARIE

obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the basis of
the segmentation of the trade receivables based
on credit loss characteristics, historical default
data and assumptions involved in management’
estimated loss rate;
THRERERANEREEEEELNEREN
kR BRREEEBERFEETESRYR
REIDWEE  BEENERNEEE MG EE
KETH REORER
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RAEETSIE (&)

Recoverability of trade receivables (Continued)

B 5 FE W R R 2 W W e ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(l), note 18 and note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

7B 2B A 10) B9 & 5t IR R AT & RIS M 5t 18 FIHY AL 29(a)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEER BEMWESFNAEEZER
o assessing the reasonableness of management’s

loss allowance estimate and examining the
information used by management to form such
judgement, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information;

e FHMEEEEHEBBREASMENAEUELELE
BERBVKZEHEFMANER - 2 AEGBE
EBAOSBNERELHEBEEREESRES
AIABEAN R AT L ERETTEE FHE

o assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables aging
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with the demand notes, sales invoices and
other relevant underlying documentation; and

o HEBEHEAERIER BERNFBAE - HE
BENEMAREX L - FHEE SRR R
BRRENNEREDRERE &

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from debtors subsequent to the financial year
end relating to trade receivables at 31
December 2018.

o HERE2018F 1231 HE SEUEERR P R
HFEHEREREEARBNES
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B AR S

REETEE (R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments

ST EAFEFME

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g) and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

FREINIE 1(0) BB HHBE RIS A EIWAME 5 -

The Key Audit Matter
BREEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNFANAEEZER

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments carried at fair value was RMB558.1
million, of which RMB2.9 million and RMB555.2 million were
classified under the fair value hierarchy as level 1 and 3
financial instruments respectively.

M2018F 12A31H » EXBEUATFEFENERITANA
FEAARMKESSSIBERL  HRARK295ETMARE
S552BETTO RN AR TESERAZE - FNE=RE/T
H o

The valuation of the Group's financial instruments is based
on a combination of market data, valuation models and
valuation report, if any, issued by an independent external
valuer. The above valuation results often require a
considerable number of inputs, including risk-free rate, share
price volatility, expected dividends, discount rate and market
multiples. Some of these inputs are obtained from readily
available data for liquid markets. Where such observable
data is not readily available, as in the case of level 3 financial
instruments, estimates need to be developed which can
involve significant management judgement.
EEESRMIANMGENERTSER  HERE KB
ML EMATEMOEERS (E)NAEE - LilthEERE
EREAEWA  PREERRNE RELKS  EHRS
BRI E R TISEE - Hh— L@ ARSI THNIRKER
HES - WMUEBREERENTESES =M IA
AIFZHEITEG - SRS REANEREHIE -

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of

financial instruments included the following:

HARAFHER T AN FENEZEFERE

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management'’s key
internal controls over the valuation,
independent price verification and valuation
model approval for financial instruments;

A EEEH R T AME BUERRE LG
EEAV IR AR B RAT - B SOETT
BRUE

assessing the fair value of level 1 financial
instruments, on sample basis, by comparing the
fair values applied by the Group with publicly
available market data;

FREE ESEERANATERQAFTSE
B A e —Rem T AN A FE

for level 3 financial instruments, obtaining and
inspecting the valuation reports prepared by the
external valuers engaged by the Group on
which the directors’ assessments of the fair value
of these financial instruments were based;
HE=ReMIAMS  RELREHERESR
SONEREERT AT AR B (S - EF B UL
hEFemITAENQTE

assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise and considering their
objectivity and independence;
FHESNBEERMAER  CRRFEMZ - X E
BEEBME KB
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B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RAEETSIE (&)

Assessment of the fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

EBTADPEFG ()

Refer to accounting policy note 1(g) and note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERBINGE 1) YRS BR RAFA TS REMIFE15 o

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREEER B ETNAEEZER

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial e with the assistance of our internal valuation
instruments as a key audit matter because of the degree of specialists, assessing the valuation methodology
complexity involved in valuing certain financial instruments adopted by the external valuers with reference
and because of the degree of judgement exercised by to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
management in determining the inputs used in the valuation standards, challenging the key assumptions and
models. parameters adopted in the valuation, including
ZRIGeMIAGENEREEUARERENEEMER risk-free rate, share price volatility, expected
HETAH ABERIELEOAEBREREE  BMEEeMIANRT dividends, discount rate and market multiples
BaMAY R ERTEE - by comparing these key assumptions and

parameters with available market data and other
publicly available information and establishing
our own valuation models to perform
revaluations; and

o EABEEZERNBET - 2RBEITHIEAN
RE BN ERD SR AR E T = - BB
ETHEERINSBEAEHHERLEMA
REMETHEMERNLZFIEBRERZ2E(E
BERRAX - RERD  FBHRES  BRXRK
MISEE)  WRETHMECWEERIIAET
Bt R

o assessing whether the disclosures in the financial
statements appropriately reflected the Group's
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

o ZERTEMEAMNENR  FEMBHRETIRE
EERERE EEEMNERTAMGERR
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B AR S

REETEE (R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Assessment of potential impairment of goodwiill

BB BEREN G

Refer to accounting policy note 1(f) and note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRRIMEL 1) BB EH IR AT E RS IERMT 12

The Key Audit Matter
HREITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMHEANAEEZSE

As at 31 December 2018, goodwill, which mainly arose
from acquisitions of businesses in 2017, amounted to
RMB82.1 million and accounted for approximately 2%
of the Group's total assets at that date.

BHZE2018F 124318 » T ZEH2017 FUWE XM E
EHEERARESIBET RZBME E5E
BERTELI2% -

Management assess annually whether goodwill is
impaired by means of discounted cash flow forecasts
prepared for each cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated.
ERESFRABAE HCE ERENREELRE
TAREMBER S REFARFEEEESE HIRREE -

Management's impairment assessment involves
significant judgement, particularly in determining
short and long term revenue growth, future
profitability and the discount rates applied, all of
which can be inherently uncertain.

B EHRE RS R EARHIE - BRI R R AT
MEBHRAEZR - RRBFEEND F@ERHRIRET
| 2EOFERA TN -

We identified assessing potential impairment of
goodwill as a key audit matter because determining
the key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow
forecasts involves a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management bias.
BB EEEREREIERREBTEE  ARE
ErTUHRBRoRERAREANIZERISMEER
EREREHE WX ERERETE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

BARAH R B EERENETRTFEE

o evaluating the methodology applied by management
in its preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

o ZRATEENNER FEEEEERUUERD
mETRRIRERANIE

o discussing future operating plans with management
and evaluating the reasonableness of the assumptions
including revenue growth and future profitability;

o  HEBEMNWARNEEND  FAHRAERERER
Mg HERZROAEBIE

° performing a retrospective review by comparing the
prior year's discounted cash flow forecast with the
current year's results to assess the reliability and
historical accuracy of management’s forecasting
process;

o EBHLE-FEMNMRBESAREIEAFENER
EITEPMERRN - UFEEEERAGENA FEMENE
EAERENE -

° evaluating the appropriateness of the discount rates by
comparing them to market data; and

o BB EEMISEIBETHERMGMREXNES
R

o evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management for each of the key assumptions adopted
in the discounted cash flow forecasts and considering
the possibility of error or management bias.

N FHEER BRI @R ERARKAN S BT EZRREHN
EITHEURENNT - U EEHIRHERKE R E R AR

el -
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B AR S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB E R S M B |RAEN

B

EENERAAEREERGEVHREES
PRERNKGFRER M SR EAEAHER
Bt - WEHHBAEEEZERNREE®RE - &
PIEREBRIREE © BRULASN - RIFIORE
TR AEEMARE - HAB AR ARESHR
B HEMEMALTEESAREREE -

BERBERBKFHRE  BTEREBRR
(BREFEADETET  EX —ERER
BT FERS AR RE 3R 3R » SRR A AR RRF 3K
HRRRSIE - MRAEBHEMEBKEBER
AREF B A MR ERE KBV REA
TR BV EDRTE + A BA RO SR RR PR AT AR 1
EXe

R BB B AR TR BT - B
SEATEEAE R T EEERAE - T

o EBIMFHEARRKFFREBRMERSE
BHBRFEERERRANER - R
FERITE P A RS E LR - LA
RERFTRMEENETRE  FRR
P RWER - ANKFFAIEY K P
W BRER - ERRA - 0K
BRARESz L it ReeHBRRAKR
MMM EREREANRERSRA
BE 35 3R X 86 AR T 48 2R A B K 88 RR PR 9
R -

s THRERZEBOAMEEE  UREH

AERMEZEF  BYFEEYE &
SEABEENEYREERER

s HEEEMRAEITERRNBEERE
HEsH A MR EN SR -
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B AR S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BB E R S M B |RAEN
B (&)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible

LHEERANFSBCERERNEDE
ERREFELER  LRECERDE
TRE BMIREEY ERERER
LHEENBREAREANEHRBERE
ERTHEREZ HEFR/FEEK
THERZ  BEFRIZUENRE T IE
FEAEIBRAVBERRANBERE
B RHEERESE  AERIEEA
ER-BENEREENZEA®RE A
IEPTEVS VR RRE - R - RAREH
HIERATREEN ERETEFELE -

AR AMBERR (BREMEE)WE
BIHRSA  RERAT  UREGEAH
BHREAEEC AR LFE -

B ESEEAERAXBEBHNMBEE
BERRR EENENERE  UWEY
FAMBHREREL  HMARE &
SEFAOTM  BEEMRT - HAB
B BEZERAEREEL -

for our audit opinion.

BREMEERIN BRAREREESERTHE
WETHE  KEZH  EAFAEERE B
I BRI A 3B 12 ) A (] KR
that we identify during our audit. fg o

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

144 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2019

BB E R S M B |RAEN
B (&)

BfEREZZESRIBH  FHARMSN
BERBELIEMABERERER - W EMM
BBBARAENERAEFERMBILIEN
FIBREMEMER  AREERNERLT -
THREEYFr #E 1 ©

HEBZZEBBNERT  RIFEEDPL
ERHAMGRAVBREINBAZAEE - E
B ERESEE - RIFERIERTER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018412 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2018 2017

2018 F 2017

(Note)

)

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

B 5T AR¥ET T AREFIT

Revenue WA 3(a) 6,709,906 5,140,059
Cost of sales SHE R AR (5,512,253) (4,193,669)
Gross profit EF 1,197,653 946,390
Other revenue E A 4 12,920 12,784
Other net income H b F s 4 23,187 6,747
Selling and marketing expenses $HE KRR (59,367) (22,532)
Administrative expenses THHAY (597,319) (415,952)
Other operating expenses H g e < (60,900) (42,914)
Profit from operations KERH 516,174 484,523
Finance income BEWA 18,156 18,904
Finance costs BhE AR (23) -
Netfinanceincome =~ | mEGARE o) BRSNS 18904

Share of profits less losses of associates 2l B & A 7] F B R E 18 (22,785) 7,297

Share of profits less losses HihEE R EFEREE

of joint ventures 1,863 306
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries W BB B B A R R - 419
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A FIER = 709
Gain on acquisition of an associate Uy BB B N B E R - 53
Loss on deemed disposal of an associate R{EH &S LN AlEE - (4,500)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HEASZLNRIETR - 1,208
Gainondisposal of assodiates mMEBEREEN O 15,668 ... -
Profit before taxation i B A 5 629,053 508,919
Income tax FTiS &t 6 (163,319) (116,849)
Profit for the year FERFHE 465,734 392,070
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

meBEaREMEEERAR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARBITIIR)

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
(Note)
(B3E)
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
Liks3 ARBT T ARETTT
Attributable to: BT AL R :
Equity shareholders of the Company AN A RESIER 483,296 387,483
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS (17,562) 4,587
Profit for the year F R FE 465,734 392,070
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA
for the year (after tax and (RBREFH D ERAER)
reclassification adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified RIZA[feEFT THEE
subsequently to profit or loss: By IE B
Share of other comprehensive income  EBEEMBE E L5 2476 Was
of the investees 1,176 (20,180)
Exchange differences on translation of:  NEEITE =R
— financial statements of — MEBING B R BB ISR &
overseas subsidiaries P 2 [EH =58 35,551 (70,842)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBKRA
for the year 36,727 (91,022)
Total comprehensive income FAZEBAERE
for the year 502,461 301,048
Attributable to: BT AL :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATERRR 520,023 296,461
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M AR (17,562) 4,587
Total comprehensive income FREEMARKRA
for the year 502,461 301,048
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (RMB) AEARREE(ARE) 9 0.17 0.14

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 154 to 296 form part of these financial statements. £
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R 0 ¥k

at 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITSIR)

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
(Note)
)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥ET T AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - R MR 10 371,906 303,931
Intangible assets WA E 11 74,419 57,034
Goodwill (SRS 12 82,071 79,422
Interest in associates B2 N BIRE RS 13 145,410 490,159
Interest in joint ventures A& N aRER 14 72,499 68,344
Other financial assets HEtemEE 15 620,469 112,755
Deferred tax assets BRI A = 26(b)(ii) 117,143 72,810
Prepayments B FE 16 22,060 18,970
1,505,977 1,203,425

Current assets REEE
Other financial assets EemEE 15 15,736 29,232
Inventories FE 17 291,361 127,693
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M fE W R IE 18 1,202,201 789,719
Restricted bank balances SEAIRITEES 19 148,897 153,248
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 20 2,180,021 1,836,467
3,838,216 2,936,359

Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans RITER 21 950 -
Receipts-in-advance e IE 22 = 649,787
Contract liabilities SRBE 23 748,695 -
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERR 24 1,892,174 1,303,589
Current taxation RNERTHIE 26(a) 259,907 167,471
Provisions B 27 20,700 17,453
2,922,426 2,138,300
Net current assets REEEFE 915,790 798,059
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAEERE 2,421,767 2,001,484

148 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR ¥k

at 31 December 2018 720184 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
(Note)
)
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR¥ET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAEE 26(b)(ii) 8,861 3,816
Provisions B 27 8,143 5,950
17,004 9,766
NET ASSETS EEFH 2,404,763 1,991,718
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR &
Share capital R 28(c) 24 24
Reserves HiE 2,328,738 1,918,190
Total equity attributable to equity BATERRREGEES
shareholders of the Company 2,328,762 1,918,214
Non-controlling interests FEIE RS 76,001 73,504
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,404,763 1,991,718

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 201943 A22 HEZ E S L IRRET 3 -
March 2019.

Director Director

EF EF

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the Mizr . AEEN20184F1 A1 B EAEBEBMIEREE
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c). BIE 155 N BB M ISME LR E 95 « BIBFRE

BEE A WESHLEER « FRMFE) -

The notes on pages 154 to 296 form part of these financial statements. 25154 £ 296 B M1 s AKX S IE KA —
AN

BB o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEEm S ER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018412 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

Attrbutable to eqity shareholders of the Company

BRTRERRER

The People's

Republic of

China fthe Share of other

'PRC’) comprehensive Non-
Share Share  statutory Otter Specal  Exchange  incomeofthe  Retened controlling Totdl
capital  premium resenve reserve resenve resenve investees profits Total interests equity

PEAR

#78

(@) i

BE O BRAR  ARHE  RUER BRRR ERBE AbREMA RREE & MREE oE
Note  RMBOND  RMBOD  RWBOD  RMBOD  RWBUD  RMBOD  RWBOID  RMBO  RMBOD  RVBOD  RMBOD
We ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR  ARETR ARMTR AR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2017 MIE1 1B 2% 1,065,804 B3 1269 1,066 P9 - 33069 171899 1738 174573
Changes in equity for 2017: WMIERERS:
Proftfor the year ERAE - - - - - - - W 45 30
Other comprehensive income ERENS - - - - - 1084 (20,180 - N Y]
Totel comprehensive income BN - - - - - 10842 (20,180) B4 2641 48 008
Partialdsposal ofequity nterestsn subsidiaries  HENBLTTRIE - - - 149 - - - - 1449 4551 00
Acquisiton ofacitonal equty interests WERELTEMrER

in subsidiaries - - - 1,45 - - - - 145 (2,004 759
Transfer to resenves ERTHE 1)) - - 1767 - - - - (17673 - - -
Capital inection from non-controling nterests ~ SHARERFE - - - - - - - - - B0 B0
Acqpisiton of subsiclaries LN - - - - - - - - - 0% 0
Disposal of subsiciaies HEHERT - - - - - - - - - (3 43
Diicends declred i respect of the HELEFEHRE

previous year - (9939 - - - - - - 99939) - (99939
Bianceat 3 Decerbe 2017 RO RZER AOUsHE B 3 1% B o TOER 924 TSM T8
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARBITIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAARERRAEG
Share of
The People’s Share of other
Republic of ofher comprehensive
China (the comprehensive  income of
"PRC") income of ~ the investees Non-
Share Share  statutory  Share option Other Special Exchange the investees (non-~ Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  (recycling)  recycling) profits Total interests equity
hEAR fils il
#18 HREND  RRELA
(ThE]) Eh2ERA RH2ERA
R&  BOEE  HERE  RBERRE  EMBE  BHEE EXfE  (758) (FOuE)  REWR gt FERER L3
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
W ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETZ AEBTR  ARBTR ARMTZ  ARMTR ARMTZ ARBTR ARMTZ
Balance at 31 December 2017 (Note) 32017%12431R
2ER(KE) % 1165885 63,000 - 3963 1,066 (28,423) (20,180) - 132819 1918214 73504 1,991,718
Impact on inital application of HKFRS 9 & iERE
B
Bl - - - - - - - 18818 (18819 gl Gl - B
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018 201851 71 28 % 1165885 63,000 - 3963 1,066 (28,423) (1362)  (18818) 19752 1915087 73504 1,988,591
Changes n equity for 2018: WIBERERY:
Profit for he year ERfE - - - - - - - - - 483296 483296  (17562) 465734
Other comprehensive income B2 ans - - - - - - 35,551 1178 - - - W
Total comprehensive income 2TEHA - - - - - - 35,551 1176 - 48329 52003 (17562 502461
Partl disposal of equiy interests ~ HENELAHARE
insubsicaries - - - - 1,404 - - - - - 1,404 1,676 3080
Eouty setfled share-based trensactions EREENHHE
ERI%5 5 - - - 2430 - - - - - - 26,430 - 26430
Capitelnection fomnon-controllng 25 R4
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 20,768 20,766
Acquiston of subsicaries EHEAR - - - - - - - - - - - 4,940 4940
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - - - - - - m) m)
Disposal ofan asociate HE-RRELT - - - - - - - 186 - - 186 - 186
Dividend paid to non-controling BiiFARERORE
interests - - - - - - - - - - - 123 123
Dividends declared n respect HEtEREERR
ofthe previous year - (134,368) - - - - - - - - (134368) - (134369
Balance at 31 December 2018 HI8E12A318
264 u 10357 63,000 2430 5,367 1,066 1128 - (18818) 1213048 2328762 76001 2404763

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the

Mzt : REER2018F1ATBEEREBEEVBREE

A5 R BB B MEERE W - RIFAMRE
EVBIET R - WEBIILERER o FRME ) -

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

296 BB R L F TS MR —

The notes on pages 154 to 296 form part of these financial statements.

2 W
Z
i

9
o

2018 FEEHE HWIRBEEBRAR 151



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ%

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018412 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) (A AR¥ITEIR)

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE ARET T ARBFT
Operating activities ReEEH
Cash generated from operations IREAT1BIR S 20(b) 765,360 629,356
Income tax paid BAFTISHE (109,128) (100,782)
Net cash generated from RETHHREREFR
operating activities 656,232 528,574
Investing activities RETEE
Payments for the purchase of property, BEYE BMEMEREAR
plant and equipment and intangible EEEMNK
assets (176,749) (118,646)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BIRYIE - BB REE
plant and equipment FriS5/IE 3,553 1,702
Payments for purchase of: BETIISEN
— financial assets classified as fair value ~ — 28 AL AFET ABZE
through profit or loss (“FVPL") (MEAFEFFAER])
e A E (54,150) (383,238)
— financial assets classified as fair value ~ — D AR AFEA
through other comprehensive H 2 ER s
income (“FVOCI”) (MRAFEFA
Hib 2 |)
WEREE (12,000) -
— listed debt investments — L EBKEE (16,811) (80,468)
— available-for-sale financial —AMftHESRMTIA
instruments - (25,700)
Proceeds from redemption: fEO T 5 FIEFSF0E -
— FVPL — BAFHEFAER 41,317 11,975
— listed debt investments — EEBHEE 21,749 -
Investment income received from other HHA S mEEMSREWRA
financial assets 2,254 165
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of BB AR - FBRATES
cash acquired & (6,904) (69,969)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of HEWBAF - HRAAHE
cash disposed BRe = (1,557)
Payment for investment in associates FEBE R BT (95,733) (99,186)
Capital injection to an associate FEEENFNEE (4,250) -
Proceeds from disposal of interest HE RS A RERFTS IR
in associates 80,488 -
Proceeds from disposal of interest HEEE QRS MERIE
in joint ventures = 1,500
Payment for investment in joint ventures & & &R I - (2,534)
Interest received [=E & ES) 18,154 16,153
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ%

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #/ZE 2018512 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(AARBITIIR)

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE ARMT ARBTT
Loan to an associate m—EEE QA RNER (20,000) -
Loan received EESER 20,000 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHMEHSFEE (199,082) (749,803)
Financing activities RESER
Proceeds from new bank loans FTIGRITE SRS RIE 4,450 -
Repayment of bank loans BRBITER (3,500) -
Payment for acquisition of additional LA B BT /&8 B B NIRRT K
equity interests in subsidiaries - (759)
Partial disposal of equity interests o B B R 730 o A A
in subsidiaries - 6,000
Capital injection from non-controlling IR R E
interests 20,766 23,680
Interest paid MESZR (23) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT R ER AR S
interests (7,232) -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ERNARRRERREARE
of the Company (134,368) (99,939)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEE (FTA),
_______________________________________________ fieReRsE . 9sony (1018
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERBREEEY
cash equivalents (R g8 337,243 (292,247)
Cash and cash equivalents R1ATBHNEREZR
at 1 January REEEY 20(a) 1,836,467 2,181,692
Effect of foreign exchange HNEEERSETE
rate changes 6,311 (52,978)
Cash and cash equivalents MR12A31BHNERER
at 31 December HEZEY 20(a) 2,180,021 1,836,467

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. See note 1(c).

Mz : REER2018F1ATBEREREEYBRESE
A5 R BRI B RMELERE W - RIBATEE
FBBIETTER - WRBYILERER o FERMEEC) »

The notes on pages 154 to 296 form part of these financial statements. E154F 296 BRI M TE A% F I E R #) —
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154

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group”) and the
Group's interest in associates and joint ventures.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
24 November 2014 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s shares were listed on the Main Board on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 12 July 2016 (the “Listing”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESFTHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) BATSERRAmBELE (F)

(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand, which
is the presentation currency. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial assets are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

— investments in convertible notes and equity financial
instruments measured at fair value (see note 1(g)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)).

RMB is the functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland China. The
functional currency of the Company and the Company's
subsidiaries outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

REMBRRIIAZINEEARE
TAR%DZ27  92BEHEI
B TRIEK - PR ERHITIRE LKA
EERE - R T XIS
R 2 R A FEZINNETE
BB RS

— BRATEHEZTAREE
BERBASBIA (RHE
1g) °

— RkiTAEeRIA(RME
1(h)) °

DB B R AR S 9 P B A A
AARBRINGEEE - KRB RA
N R B A 3 LA SO BT BB R R Y
WREE RAETT

RRNTABAUHREENREZ
MHEE TEEEEFLEY
ERRERAMEREE  AERK
SEFX 2 MEWNFE - EF R
R - ZF Mt MR RRIRE
R SE &5 M ZIANZE BT R T RR
BEMNEMEAZMEL - AIFER
BRARRECEMIRABSLEE
KRB EMREEFDHEEE -
ERBERIARNZFMEF -

R RAERARER T AT ERET - fim
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B =1TRERASN - HUARKTTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESETEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EFHEEH
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and EAaestii e BhE TR AE

BAS B ERERNHEBY
BMEER R EEFTA - Hep - &
AEEABHRABNESHNT

amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

(i)  HKFRS9, Financial instruments () BEUBWELEEIR 2
@I A
(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers iy BEVHERMEERE 155

KEEFLEHZ]A

FE(BRMHRERERE
B)R2W IEXZRAE
HHE

(i) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and (iii)

advance consideration

AEEWEEANE G HE
REMEERFRT RS2 -

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

ERYBRELEDNEINR
ERMIA
BRI E ERIFE 95T E

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (i)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:

recognition and measurement. It sets out the REBGETEBIEINRE - £

requirements for recognising and measuring financial BITA: #RARE - K5t

assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy FHERNTECRERE -

or sell non-financial items. CREBEREEFSRIESR
BB D A RELIRTE °

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to REBEDRBBEREEHRN

items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, comparative information continues
to be reported under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESFHEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EFBE2D(H)
(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) () EBUBEREEREIR
@I A (E)

™ &R B 5 H2018%1 818
BEERBYHREERFE9
HHRBEANMFEENTE

The following table summarises the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings and
reserves and the related tax impact at 1 January 2018.

ARG E -

RMB’000
AREFT
Retained earnings REZF
Recognition of additional expected AT S ERREIINTEHREESSE -
credit losses on:
— financial assets measured at — REHEN AT ENEREE
amortised cost 4,170)
Related tax FERETI IR 1,043
Net decrease in retained earnings R20184F 1 A1 BIRBEFIR A FEE
at 1 January 2018 (3,127)
Share of other comprehensive income of the EiERREAREMEEEA
investees
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 1 January
2017  Reclassification 2018
H2018 %
2017 F 1818
128318 ERU%
BRETER HREER
E39%1E XK
TEREE EFSE BT REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Share of other comprehensive  DMEHIZE H £t 2 EUA
income of the investees — — R ERE(TEE)
fair value reserve (recycling) 18,818 (18,818) -
Share of other comprehensive — D{EHIRE H E b2 E U
income of the investees — — R ERE (T EE)
fair value reserve (non-recycling) - 18,818 18,818
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESFHEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) () EFBE2D(H)
(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) () EBUBEREEREIR
@I A (E)

BEBERHREE DN
BRSBTS A
— SIS R -

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured at
amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede
HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a
financial asset in the scope of the standard are
not separated from the host. Instead, the hybrid
instrument as a whole is assessed for
classification.

The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of the
Group's financial assets under HKAS 39 and
reconciles the carrying amounts of those
financial assets determined in accordance with
HKAS 39 to those determined in accordance
with HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESETEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BTFBEZE(E)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) () BEEAUMEREERNFEINR -
£RMIA(E)
a.  Classification of financial assets and financial a. THEERTHEER
liabilities (Continued) SXE(5E)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018
20184
2017 F 1RA18
12A31H BB
BEAGER HEER
%395 ELLRE
ETRRE ENNE EFE THREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT

Financial assets carried at ki85 B A 518

amortised cost SREE
Trade and other receivables &5 & E i fEUZIE 789,719 - (4,170) 785,549
Financial assets carried ~ RAPEFABEH

at FVPL JIENEREE
Unlisted equity financial FETMRASBIA

instruments (note (i)) (GE0) - 50,153 - 50,153

Financial assets classified ~ RiEFBE L
as available-for-sale under 393

HKAS 39 (note (i) DERTHLEN
SREE (W) 50,153 (50,153) - -
Note: 5T
0] Under HKAS 39, equity financial instruments not held 0] REZB G ENS
for trading were classified as available-for-sale financial 9 WHFHIERH
assets. These equity financial instruments are classified mRAeMIASE
as at FVPL under HKFRS 9, unless they are eligible for RAFEHENSRE
and designated at FVOCI by the Group. E - ZERAERIA
REEEUBRELE
AIE KA ERIZAF
Bt ABR - BRIFES
AERYBAEEE
ER/RATFEFAE
f 2 EkE -
For an explanation of how the Group classifies BEAAEENMIRES
and measures financial assets and recognises 7B B 1 S R 958
related gains and losses under HKFRS 9, see DERFTESREER
respective accounting policy notes in notes 1(g), MR REE
(h), (), (o) and (p). e Z20BME

Hg) ~ (h) ~ (i) > (o) }
(P) & BB & AT B

%Io
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EERETERE)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) BIFBEZE(E)
()  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) () TREUBREEIEIN
SBMIA(E)
a.  Classification of financial assets and financial a. TREERTHEEDN
liabilities (Continued) 2% ()
The measurement categories for all financial FFEBAaBENEEF
liabilities remain the same. The carrying i%?@li{&{iﬁ—ﬁl ° P
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1 January E?ﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%éoj%ﬁé
2018 have not been impacted by the initial 5|2k FE A B A B S 4R
application of HKFRS 9. EXERE QSRS .
The Group did not designate or de-designate 20181 H1H - &
any financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at S AR E SAUH IR
1 January 2018. E{I{Ejfﬁf&ﬂﬂﬁ\%—l—{\ﬁ
ﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁéiﬁz@ﬁﬂﬁ
b.  Credit losses b. 1EEEE

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the "incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances, trade and other
receivables and loans to associates); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 1(n)).

For further details on the Group’s accounting
policy for accounting for credit losses, see note

100G).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

FTESEEE (&)

(c) BTBEREH (&)
(i) ERBBREEIEIR
EMIAE)
b.  Credit losses (Continued) b. EEEEE)
The following table reconciles the closing loss 201746124318 &
allowance determined in accordance with HKAS BEBGTERE W
39 as at 31 December 2017 with the opening EENHRREREES

loss allowance determined in accordance with

7R2018F1 818 1R &

HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.

EBVIEREERFE
SR TE IR
HERINT o

RMB'000
ARBETT

Loss allowance at 31 December 2017
under HKAS 39

R2017F12A31H
REEBEER

ERETHETHNEEEE 31,830
Additional credit loss recognised 2018 F 1 A1 Bt LA T B IAFERH
at 1 January 2018 on: FIMEEERE -
— Trade receivables — B S REWFIA 4,170
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 2018451 A1 H
under HKFRS 9 RIEEEHHIRE LA
FIORBETEHEEEE 36,000
c.  Transition c BE
Changes in accounting policies resulting from RME BTG mEER
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied BOREHN G TR

retrospectively, except as described below:

HEEHEPER -
NHUFr At BRI

— Information relating to comparative — FBLEEELN
periods has not been restated. Differences BHRRARET -
in the carrying amounts of financial assets RS BB %8
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 HAERAEIRE
are recognised in retained earnings and WEerEERA
reserves as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, B = F R 20184
the information presented for 2017 TA1TBREE R
continues to be reported under HKAS 39 A K

and thus may not be comparable with the
current period.

R o It - 2017
FEVHERTY
HEREBEEST
FFERIE 39 2
B A LAl gg T
A BN B 1T
LEE -

2018 FEEHRE HWRIEEELRAF

161



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

c. Transition (Continued)

—  The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group):

—  the determination of the business

model within which a financial asset
is held; and

— the designation of certain
investments in equity instruments
not held for trading to be classified
as at FVOCI (non-recycling).

— If, at the date of initial application, the
assessment of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition would have involved
undue cost or effort, a lifetime ECL has
been recognised for that financial
instrument.

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the
accounting for construction contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEXR(E)
(CONTINUED) R N
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EEBUREH ()
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BERMBMERAEISH -
REEFEHZWA (&)

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method and has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKASs
11 and 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has
applied the new requirements only to contracts that
were not completed before 1 January 2018.

There is no significant impact of transition to HKFRS
15 on retained earnings and the related tax as at 1
January 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:

(i) Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from provision of
services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally

BREMBHEERFE 155
SIAEMEMSEREERER
o EESHBHREROER
ETBRRAEEF AN KSR
rEeRENEED 28
B R HEE N -

AEBOBEFRARBENE
BEE WHEREXERD
ZHEBIEERE 20185 1 A1
BREZHOESNALE - B
I EERERW EES
BIREBEBESSFENE 1%
MEIBETFINR2® - £FB
B TSRS R B 155k A T 48
BER - AEEELE2018F
1A1BZATRTKEAE LR
RFHT -

BEEB B GEHREELE
1558 I % ¥ 52018451 A1
HERB AR MABETEE
FREAFTE -

FRBEEHRELZDHIE
B R B — SR ERT
-

() R
SERT - KA RHIRT
Yo a5 — BB ) 9 B
R MHEEma e

recognised at a point in time when the risks and —RRERNTEER
rewards of ownership of the goods had passed Rk ERERERFH

to the customers.

B ETER
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

ST BUAARBITIIR)

164

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EFEEHBRXRE)
(CONTINUED) N
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EEBUREH ()
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BERMBMERAEISH -
(Continued) REEFEHZWA (&)
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued) () W rERRRER (4E)
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when RIEEBUBREZAER
the customer obtains control of the promised F1555  ERPEES
good or service in the contract. This may be at a H) P 7GR P S R TS Y

single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which
control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

a. When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance, as
the entity performs;

b.  When the entity's performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced;

c. When the entity's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to
the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is considered in
determining when the transfer of control occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESFTHBE(E)
(CONTINUED) N
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EEBUREH ()
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BERMBMERAEISH -
(Continued) REAEFEHNZWA (E)
(i) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued) () W rERRRER (4E)
The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a RNE B RS 4R
significant impact on when the Group FISRE AR EEER L
recognises revenue from sale of goods and EEmEERRER
provide services and this change in accounting HHEBITES K
policy had no material impact on opening 2 BHZEEARED
balances as at 1 January 2018. BB R2018F 1 81
HE)ER9) AR eR I M E K
2
(i) Significant financing component (i) BEAFEZS

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in
advance of revenue recognition or significantly
deferred.

Previously, the Group only applied such a policy
when payments were significantly deferred,
which was not common in the Group's
arrangements with its customers. The Group did
not apply such a policy when payments were
received in advance.

It is not common for the Group to receive
payments significantly over one year in advance
of revenue recognition in the Group's
arrangements with its customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a
significant impact on when the Group
recognises financing component from sale of
goods and provision of services and this change
in accounting policy had no material impact on
opening balances as at 1 January 2018.

BRPBHREEAF 5
HREREERANES
EXBEXDFIRER
KREEAER ZE
% BRI
EREBREERAR
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LA - AERBEER R
KU E BB (B AT A%
EEEEFPHEZZHP
YAER)RAZFK
B o AEBEIL BN K
1 BT U B SR A 5% B I
& o
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o REBR R ER
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESFTHBE(E)
(CONTINUED) N
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (c) EEBUREH ()
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BEMBRERAYLISH
(Continued) REFEFEHNZBA (&)
(i) Presentation of contract assets and liabilities (i) ZIEHEERRME
Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only IRIB AR 150 & A
if the Group has an unconditional right to FI5% - EARFUAEE
consideration. If the Group recognises the AR B A SR AR

related revenue (see note 1(v)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for
the promised goods and services in the
contract, then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a
contract liability, rather than a payable, is
recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related
revenue. For a single contract with the
customer, either a net contract asset or a net
contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis(see note 1(n)).

To reflect these changes in presentation, the
Group has recognised contract liabilities
amounting to RMB649,787,000, which is prepaid
property service fees received from property
owners and reclassified from receipts-in-
advance, as at 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EESTTEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MBATRIFZERES

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with notes 1(qg) or (r) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(I)(ii), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)(ii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(l)), unless classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Fr >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(1)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments

The Group's and the Company'’s policies for investments in
debt and equity financial instruments, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below:

Investments in debt and equity financial instruments are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits
to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 29(f). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their
classification.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

—  amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 1(v)(iv)).

— fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) — recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

—  fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity financial instruments is
classified as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets
the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective.
Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity financial instruments, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(v)(iii).

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in financial instruments held for trading
were classified as financial assets measured at FVPL.
Any attributable transaction costs were recognised in
profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value was remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Dated debt financial instruments that the Group had
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
were classified as held-to-maturity financial
instruments. Held-to-maturity financial instruments
were stated at amortised cost (for impairment see
note 1(I)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity financial
instruments (Continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve (recycling). Dividend income from
equity investments and interest income from debt
financial instruments calculated using the effective
interest method were recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 1(v)(iii)
and 1(v)(iv), respectively. Foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from debt financial instruments were
also recognised in profit or loss. When the
investments were derecognised or impaired (see note
1(1)(i)) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity was
reclassified to profit or loss.

(h) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(1)(ii)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating

leases (see note 1(k)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 20
years after the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements 3-5years
—  Office equipment and furniture 3-5years
—  Motor vehicles 3-10years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group upon
acquisition of subsidiaries are measured at fair value upon
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, those
intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (see note

1()(i).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

—  Software 2-10 years
—  Customer relationship 9.6 years
—  Property management contracts remaining

contract periods

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

176 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SITEHAIN -

1

BIAARKETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

)

(k)

‘B EE (BERMD)

AR UK BERT B A AR ATUR AR Y
B EERVREREIE QA ER
2 RVIIRHERE  %EEREE
LA R R RATREE R
2 (REIFE10)Gi) °

BEEERAERFH B EESR
HIREEMET A EAFHANAE
BORERIET IR - T ABEER
AERFHZEVEET BHEAH
Mz AEEE  MEGAER
FHOT :

— =E 2Z 104
— EFHERF 9.6
—  WEREEAN BTAK

HAfA]

BYEBRIE - HREE(ELR
GE

HEEE
REBEETE LB ABERTERRA
BB —E S — R IIFEME S
RX—BTEEEXRZREEZEN
AZLH (B —RRFE—RIIK
SHEK) REELBFHE - %F
EBEDRBRHE 2 ARFEMmE
- MERLHEETABHEHEZX
e -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEXR(E)
(CONTINUED)
(k) Leased assets (Continued) (k) HEEEE)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group () HFEEEZEESE

()

(ii)

Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets
(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, trade and other receivables and loans
to associates) and contract assets defined in
HKFRS 15(see note 1(n));
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B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

ST BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEESTEEE)

(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

() FEBRBIREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFE

contract assets (Continued) Bx (&)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) BEAR2018F1A1H
(Continued) # B (18)
Financial assets measured at fair value, including BATEFENSHE
units in convertible bonds, equity financial E(BEIBKRESE
instruments measured at FVPL, equity financial i~ BRAFEFAEBED
instruments designated at FVOCI (non-recycling) ArENRASR T AL
and derivative financial assets, are not subject to il ~ FEERAFEFTA
the ECL assessment. Eme2EBENRAS

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of

BT AEM (ArEHE)
RUTESRMEE) BA
ETRHEEBRF
7 o

FHEERMEEER
BHEEBEREER

credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the BRBEEINEME - 5
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. EEBUMEERRS
the difference between the cash flows due to EERREARES
the Group in accordance with the contract and HENTAREBNES
the cash flows that the Group expects to 2 B 7R & [ TR AT AR
receive). MEEREZEHBNE
BFtE o
For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash HRARIEERHE A

shortfalls are measured as the difference
between (i) the contractual cash flows that would
be due to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan and (ii) the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive if
the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

SITEERIN

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

— variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate;

—  loan commitments: current risk-free rate

adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual

period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost

or effort. This includes information about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items

to which the ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

1 FESFTHBE(E)

() FEBRBIREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFE

contract assets (Continued) Bx (&)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) BEAR2018F1A1H
(Continued) # B (18)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued) STEEREEEERE(E)
Loss allowances for trade receivables and ESEWHERAELE
contract assets are always measured at an ENEBEEARINE

amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision

RAXATRHEEEER
THFTE - ELERE

matrix based on the Group's historical credit ENEHREEBEER
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are AERNAEBZELZE
specific to the debtors and an assessment of [T 18 48 B O 78 1 A P o
both the current and forecast general economic THE - WIRBEEBEA
conditions at the reporting date. HENARARE RS

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEESTEEE)

(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

() FEBRBIREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFE

contract assets (Continued) Bk (&)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) BEAR2018F1A1H
(Continued) # B (18)
Significant increases in credit risk EERBREEIE M
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial A EEemITANEE

instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) actual or
expected significant changes in the economic
status of property owners or the operating
results of property developers or the borrowers;
(i) significant decrease in management/service
fees collection rate of the property owners; (iii)
significant changes in the expected

B ETEELM A
L@ B RS B H )
HMHERZEBHNEDHR
B o T EFALE
B - () 3 E A B AL
S EEE R R ERA
HIAC A TR S TE
RIS (NEEFNE
18R % B UK R KR
T B (i) fE R A BB
HMRBARITAKNES
) BIEERARAE
EHRARRE )« 8k

performance and behaviour of the borrower, (V)7 3B 15 B 71 AR e &
including changes in the payment status of EHE B AR -
borrowers ; or (iv) significant changes in external RNEEBRBEHEHD
credit rating and historical write-off experience. B - AEEEELAER
The Group considers both quantitative and AR EEMEME
qualitative information that is reasonable and B BEEFRBEEZK
supportable, including historical experience and KB N BREZRESE

forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or

REBMATEIERES -

ERHE B A HERIRE
B m 2T BE IRk
ERREBATES

— REBEEAHNIH

interest on their contractually due dates ; H X T 48 & =k A

B
— an actual or expected significant — ST AE®INE
deterioration in a financial instrument’s A E L
external or internal credit rating (if (nAB/)BER
available); FEHmEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

ST BUAARBITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEESTEEE)

(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

() FEBRBIREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFE

contract assets (Continued) Bk (E)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) BEAR2018F1A1H
(Continued) # B (18)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued) EERBEZEIEME)
— an actual or expected significant — EBRAREELE

deterioration in the operating results of BEWRKTEHE
the debtor; and ZE(b: &

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to

— Ef-WE &
BT e
A NE AR
IE-T T IN |
AEHAEER
BN ELE
ATFHBE -

BETREE T AR
g HEERREEE
MOFEEEESRSE
REAR FHETH - BE
LR AN &
BMTARBEEBZEE
BRI DA - Bl
136 HAAK RE AN = B LB
ST o

BEHEEERESER

reflect changes in the financial instrument’s SHHBENRAEUR
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change it 8 A RE R LA K & Rl

in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a

TRAEERRBMEIL -
BEHEEERSBENGT
MR RRER
@ ARERRAEE
BT EMRERS I

loss allowance account, except for investments BB EBERYER
in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI HEEEETHERR
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is BLARAFEETAEM
recognised in other comprehensive income and TEHWKE(FTE8)FE
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling). KBTS B S E RN

HEBEGEZEMEZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018
(Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 1(v)(iv) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case

interest income is calculated based on the

amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount

less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
or

the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

(B = 1TRERASM -

BIAARETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

() FEBRAXREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFEE
Bk (E)
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& ey BR (%)

M S as 2 5T E AR
ARIE B B 1 (v)(iv) HEBR A
MEWEHIREEREE
ENREARSE E
CRMEEFEEERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

184

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

1 FESFTHBE(E)

() FEBRAXREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFEE

contract assets (Continued) BXR(E)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (A) A R2018F 1 A1H
(Continued) #rIE R (&)
Write-off policy i EE R
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or TREEXANEEN
contract asset is written off (either partially or in BEEABEREERA
full) to the extent that there is no realistic WERZEMIERL T T

prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

WaH (R 2 8B) » —
RIENEERNEEREE
BB NLEEES WS
KBANEERHRE
MENENMEZ S
B e

STRTE MEER B E R
A8 [0 i i 100 3 A B ]
ERRBRBERE -

(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (B) A R20184F1A1H8
AR R
Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” 201851 A1 ZH

model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g.
trade and other receivables, available-for-sale

AEBEXRBIEELE
B EARFEL IS
BRRAFER ABRS

investments and held-to-maturity debt financial NemEENRERKX
instruments). Under the “incurred loss” model, (8 5 K H b e U

an impairment loss was recognised only when
there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

Mo A ERRE R
FREIHNES ST
H) -REICELE
BRI EEFER

B ZE B ER R
BERK - HMEHNZEH
BIEBLE
— significant financial difficulties of the — EHBARBAEK
debtor; AR 2

—  a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54T5ERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

(Continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost. If any such
evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

BIAARETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

() FEBRAXREEREE)
) TWMIAREBHNEENFE
Bk (E)

(B)

B R20184F 1 H1H

AT EIBUR (48)

— BEBATEERH
7 SR T R EL A B
HEA

— M -mH K
BRAREIREAR
EARNE AR
855 N HE R F
TE R

— EREREREZ
NFEBRE TR
R B IR E X
R o fid 15 £ AT ]
“EFE ORE
BIERIATER
TIABEE RHER -

HWEEERZEER
WMEBEEATERT
IABETE S HERR. -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESTHEXRE)
(CONTINUED)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () FEBAREEREE)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and () 2MIAREGHNEENEE
contract assets (Continued) Bxk(E)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (B) #HR2018F 1418
(Continued) BIRYERSR (48)
—  For trade and other receivables and other —  FRIREER AT
financial assets carried at amortised cost, EHNE S RHEM
impairment loss was measured as the JE R IE DA R H
difference between the asset’s carrying b & B & E M
amount and the present value of TOREEER
estimated future cash flows, discounted at EEFRB@DEREMG
the financial asset's original effective ARRBEERE

interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This assessment
was made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective Group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised
to the extent that it did not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)

(Continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment losses
were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off
against the gross carrying amount of those
assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account were reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly were recognised in profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale investments, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve (recycling) was
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of
the cumulative loss that was recognised in
profit or loss was the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

FTESEEE (&)

() FEBRAXREEREE)
) EMIARSHNEENFEE

Bk (E)

(B)

B A R2018%F 1518
Al YR (#8)

(&)

fief 9 LA 8§ AR AN
5I) B &Y & I BR 3K
HEMERMEE
#) 7] 4 [B] 1 37 58
73 R AR R 3
FEMFEM - A
ERHRERERE
ABHE R AR -
(RESE R
(o] 1 BT E
A48 & A A e
M) & R E IR N %
FEEMNERmA
B M - 5t
Al B & R
IR H 1R W
m - B H R RIR
MR ERAER -
BERNEME
B R HE R WK mE Sk
Al B 3% 3 3 A9 3R
TR R IER ©

AT E R
EmMs  ERA
FEFHE(TE
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FEZEMNE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S1TaERASN -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018
(Continued)
—  (Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities were not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets was recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities were reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value could be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
were recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment ;
—  prepayments;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill;

— investments in associates and joint ventures;
and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company's
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESETEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) ) FEBEREEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued) (i) HiERBEERME(E)

WFEEAZETR - R
AREEMA KD S It
Sho Rim = E H B E P
R HESFETEENA
Yool &7 -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, the recoverable
amount of goodwill is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

il E BT E

The recoverable amount of an asset is the BEMKESEARD
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and SEAE R B R AN B
value in use. In assessing value in use, the BEEMEZHENRS

estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate

EeRAHERER
B et ARRBRESRTY

that reflects current market assessments of the FRARMENTSEE
time value of money and the risks specific to the BEREENTEREE

asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other

i E R RO AR AT RE IR X
MR EHIRE - &

assets, the recoverable amount is determined EREEERNE LB
for the smallest group of assets that generates REMEENR SR
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash- A - BT B & B iR
generating unit). BREBEARESMAN

RNEEMAMNBRE
EEBM)ETE -

Recognition of impairment losses T EE 152 TR

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or EEE(IHEMERS
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the EAEN)REERL
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, H Aol & 5 - BIR
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment BRERERRES

losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value

BemReEL BT
REREEEE TN
R BEReEL S
iz (BRI 4ER) FrED
FEMmENREE H
RIZLL IR LU D% B
iz (BRI R) WEAD
BEMNKEE EEE

less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in HEREETEREER
use (if determinable). E @ RIAFERHERK
RUHAIEHE)SERE

BE(HAEE) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEGHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) () EEBRXLXREEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued) (ii) Ef&#ﬁiﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁ (%&)
—  Reversals of impairment losses SR (B 18,2 7 ]
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an HHEEEINEEM
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a AR E A YR E
favourable change in the estimates used to TEMEETELEAND
determine the recoverable amount. An 21 - AISREBERE
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not B - R R R EEER
reversed. T HEE o
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the BEEE 2 BBIRNE
asset’s carrying amount that would have been EERTFEIRER
determined had no impairment loss been BEEERRESTEN
recognised in prior years. Reversals of BREE - REEERE
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss FERELAFETA
in the year in which the reversals are recognised. Bk o
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) FHI R E RRE
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Financial REEBBERIMERR
Instruments on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong AEEBMIALETHRLY - K
Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim SEERBEEBEELE
financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim 3a5E [ EI s | A

financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(I)(i)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FESFTHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (m) FERHEMESHRA

(i)  Property held for sale (i) BELHEDE
Inventories in respect of property held for sale are BEHEWERBENTFEMN
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. BB IR R EME P
The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs BEEVNER -HELEWE
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the R B 3B FT B SRAB AL AR &2
inventories to their present location and condition. HEEERER iﬂlgfi&%ﬁ
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling AR E M AR o AT
price less costs to be incurred in selling the property. WHREEAHEERD %W

EAEERRA -

(i) Other contract costs (iy HEHRE
Other contract costs are either the incremental costs ﬁf‘@é%"]ﬁi$?’§fﬁﬁ$4tﬁ
of obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to FE(EMEImM) @) - W2
fulfil a contract with a customer which are not 5 K& ﬁ(ﬁfﬁ?1 ) S
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(m)(i)), property, FEE(RMFEI1G)) mEs
plant and equipment (see note 1(i)) or intangible Z‘%?%é%’]E’JiEEWZK&mm
assets (see note 1())). HEFIIV ALK -
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those BIEEAMNESKARARE
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a EREmEREFPEHNMESER
customer that it would not have incurred if the A - AR BEIGE X - A
contract had not been obtained e.g. an incremental TEEEZERAE - flng
sales commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a EHEMS o MAKEBER
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs AN SR ¥R & HA R e R O W 2R 4R
relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future B EFEER S AT B A AR - Al
reporting period and the costs are expected to be BEEHNNEEXNEARESE
recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract are RERE - BREHKEM
expensed when incurred. PR EEERE Y o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 FEGHEEE)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued) (m) FERHEMEHRA(E)
(i) Other contract costs (Continued) (iy HtEHRA(E)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs M AN E R EIRE A s m]
relate directly to an existing contract or to a FBIRE R TR & KB
specifically identifiable anticipated contract; generate EERIE M B EAE AR RN
or enhance resources that will be used to provide EmiREHNEIR  RIEH
goods or services in the future; and are expected to e - BT A #)H) K
be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing rEgERNE - BEEREBAES
contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated A A EFRIRENTESELD
contract may include direct labour, direct materials, BRI REREEES
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly B EHBEME - KRS #
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are A B [A) %5 P WO B A AR %
incurred only because the Group entered into the ERXREEZAOMES
contract (for example, payments to sub-contractors). B AP RT DB
Other costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not ) o ST A& #) 8 H Ab pK AR
capitalised as inventory, property, plant and (RETMEREE - W% - &
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as B REREREEE) N EE
incurred. 2 84 °

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less EE R E KR E K AR
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 2 EERREEEYE-
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that EAORAEEMREMER
the carrying amount of the contract cost asset BOREEEHRASKBEE
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of A8 E & AR & W AY
consideration that the Group expects to receive in NEY S AD IO V=1
exchange for the goods or services to which the asset Y EEHAREZEE R
relates, less (ii) any costs that relate directly to R 7% A8 B8 B9 T AT B AN 9 )% 28
providing those goods or services that have not yet W - WERREREE

been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged BB A& 4K AN HE 8 5 B
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset REERBRZFRERA
relates is recognised. The accounting policy for Mk - W RN FETBUR
revenue recognition is set out in note 1(v). BN ERIYE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy
set out in note 1()(i) and are reclassified to receivables when
the right to the consideration has become unconditional
(see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(0)).

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note

100().

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to the PRC local retirement schemes
pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(s)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Black-Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(t) Income tax (Continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

198 GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

1 FESFTHBE(E)

(t) FrEH (&)
BT IR A SR R IE R TR A R L

3 WARBHAEBEEERD
HITRERNI A BN EARL 1R B EE 4 36 B0 A
HIBRE - W BRFE ATH G
™ RUBDEAM 1R A B A] 5K B HAR
AR ARRLERIASE E R HEH
EERIAALE -

— BB EEERAGESE:
ARABRANREFIZFEE
EHE IARERZEE
KMBEZAE

— EBEEBEIBESIE G ZE
EMBERARBRGEHH
LA T E AR — RS R E
AR -

— (HRERRERE %

— TREXRVER  REEH
BEREENELERAAR
HEEBATEEXRRENE
ERKEARE - RFREER
BRAVHIRIRE E NS ERAH
MIBAE - KEREHRBNE
HMIEEERBEINYHER

f& e

(u) BERIREE
() BERIREE

HASBEERBESEMHFMER
bEaSEE2EE BR
TREFETEANEERER
Mzmmd - AR EES
BEL A S fAETES - RIRERR
BB - HIREBRSHREEY
BEAN BEBABIET
ZEENFSREYIR



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Fr >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(u)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be received from
the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the net
cost of continuing with the contract.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with note 1(u)(i).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued or
were not present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed in accordance with note 1(u)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Property service fees, consulting service fee and
community living service fee
For property services, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice based on the value of performance
completed.

For property service income arising from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group
acts as principal, the Group entitles to revenue at the
value of property management service fee received.
For property service income arising from properties
managed under commission basis, where the Group
acts as an agent of the property owners, the Group
entitles to revenue at a pre-determined percentage
or fixed amount of the property service fees the
property owners are obligated to pay. Revenue from
property service was recognised on a similar basis in
the comparative period under HKAS 18.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Fr >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v)

(i)

(ii)

Property service fees, consulting service fee and
community living service fee (Continued)
Consulting services mainly include management
consulting services and property under construction
services. The Group recognises revenue as the
services are provided based on the value of
performance completed. Revenue from consulting
services was recognised on a similar basis in the
comparative period under HKAS 18.

Community living services mainly include sales of
goods, housekeeping services, brokerages services
and other community services. For sales of goods and
brokerage services, the Group recognises revenue at
point in time when the property owners take
possession of and accept the goods and services. For
housing keeping services and other community
services, the Group recognises revenue when the
services are rendered. Housing keeping services and
other community services are normally billable
immediately upon the services are provided. Revenue
from community living services was recognised on a
similar basis in the comparative period under HKAS
18.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the equity shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset
(see note 1(I)(i).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss as other income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
(CONTINUED)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

EESEBR (&)
(w) SRS

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(BR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1

(Fr >

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(y)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(z) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
applying the Group's accounting policies, which are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following critical accounting policies involve the most

significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Notes 12 and 29 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment and fair value of
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(i) Impairment for trade and other receivables

The impairment allowances for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of expected credit
loss rates. The Group adjusts judgement in making these
assumption and selecting inputs for computing such
impairment loss, broadly based on the available customers’
historical data, existing market conditions including forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Any
change in such assumptions and judgement would affect
the expected credit loss to be recognised and hence the
net profit in future years.

(ii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognised and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting date. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions relating
to the operating environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgement exercised by the directors. Any
change in such assumptions and judgement would affect the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised
and hence the net profit in future years.

(iii) Impairment of non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, interest in associates,
interest in joint ventures and other financial assets may not
be recoverable, the assets may be considered impaired and
are tested for impairment. An impairment loss is recognised
when the asset’s recoverable amount has declined below
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
determining the recoverable amount which requires
significant judgements, the Group estimates the future cash
flows to be derived from continuing use and ultimate
disposal of the asset and applies an appropriate discount
rate to these future cash flows.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDTHER
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are provision of AEENFEXBARBYER
property services, consulting services and community living % BHREREEEER
services.
(i) Disaggregation of revenue iy WAED
Disaggregation of revenue from customers that fall REBBUBEREERES
within HKFRS 15 by each significant category as RHEP W HREZHERE
follows: pan/CHNE
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
(Note)
(B&E)
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Revenue recognised by service REBRERZWA

lines:
Property services YRS 4,460,669 3,559,644
Consulting services BEAARE 939,479 680,342
Community living services [ 4% IR 1,309,758 900,073

6,709,906 5,140,059
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZE2H (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA ()
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (i) WABS(E)
Disaggregation of revenue from customers that fall RFEBBMBEHMEERE 15
within HKFRS 15 by timing of revenue recognition are 5% B0 B P U 1 U B R
as follows: EEIBZ NN
2018 2017
2018 2017
(Note)
(B&E)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBT T

Revenue recognised over time: BERS R Z WA -

Property services YR
Property services YIRS 4,460,669 3,559,644
4,460,669 3,559,644
Consulting services B R
Property under construction services fE &Y% fR7% 787,735 572,730
Management consulting services & B & 8 BRTE 151,744 107,612
939,479 680,342
Community living services BB ERY
Community products and services  [Bl[& 2 5 F1 AR T 24,212 31,808
Home living services B AEE RS 84,432 71,075
Community space services [ 2= 5 AR 75 228,654 121,486
Property asset management services ¥ ¥4 &= & B IRTS 158,709 129,703
Cultural & education services XALH B R 35,738 20,165
SEl2e 374,237
5,931,893 4,614,223
Revenue recognised at point RERMEZ WA :
in time:
Community living services B &4 E R
Community products and services % 2 A1 AR 217,702 154,553
Property asset management services )3 & & B 1 AR5 560,311 371,283
VLY . 525836
6,709,906 5,140,059
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative Wit . AEBERBREXEZNS
effect method. Under this method, the comparative JEREBIIEREERES
information is not restated and was prepared in accordance %o RIEZITA  LLBERY
with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 (see note 1(c)(ii)). ARER - WERBEEEGE

B8R AT B G A ERIE
115% (RMTEE 1)) Rl
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B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by geographical location is disclosed in
notes 3(b)(i). Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from this customer are set out in note 29(a).

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted around 10% or more of the
Group's revenue for each of the periods presented.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

For property services and consulting services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided and recognises to which the Group has a
right to invoice and that corresponds directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group has
elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these type of
contracts. The majority of the property service
contracts do not have a fixed term. The term of the
contracts for consulting services is generally set to
expire when the counterparties notify the Group that
the services are no longer required.

For community living services that involved provision
of services and goods, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of respective
periods.

There were no significant incremental costs to obtain
a contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B S54T5ERASN -

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
location. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following five reportable segments.

J Region 1: Hangzhou (include Yuhang)

J Region 2: Yangtze River Delta Region (include

Ningbo)
J Region 3: Pearl River Delta Region
o Region 4: Bohai Economic Rim Region

o Region 5: Hong Kong Region
J Region 6: Other Regions

Currently, the Group's activities are mainly carried out in
the PRC.

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets. Segment liabilities include trade payables,
accruals of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
exceptions of current taxation and deferred tax
liabilities.
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B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (x5

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
profit before taxation. In addition to receiving
segment information concerning profit before
taxation, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter
segment sales), interest income and expense from
cash balances and borrowings managed directly by
segments, depreciation and amortisation, impairment
losses and additions to non-current segment assets
used by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is set
out below:
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARZEZH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) B (E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) iy ooHEE BERERGAE)
Year ended 31 December 2018
BZ20185 12831 HLEE
Hangzhou Yangtze River Delta Region
A REAHE
Yangtze
River
Hangzhou Region Pearl River Bohai
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo Delta  Economic  Hong Kong Other
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region Region  Rim Region Region Regions Total
RAE R=AKE B

(FEfEfH) KRME (TEEER) ERBE H-AKE SEEHE FEME  HAKE it
RMB'000  RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMT:R

Revenue from external customers  9NEF% Uz 2,019,983 378,085 1,990,160 379,619 371,825 943,220 = 627,014 6,709,906
Inter-segment revenue DHEWA 43,495 30,163 3,763 473 20 38 - 378 78,330
Reportable segment revenue EEE G0N 2,063,478 408,248 1,993,923 380,092 371,845 943,258 - 627,392 6,788,236
Reportable segment profit TERIPBAE 64,040 35,557 155,199 56,152 48,051 80,138 87,587 102,329 629,053
Interest income FlEMA 8,330 23 536 146 74 335 8,530 182 18,156
Interest expense FlEEX (23) - - - - - - = 23)
Share of profits less losses AEELANERES

of associates 381 - - - - - (26,596) - (22,785)
Share of profits less losses AMEBENEFERER

of joint ventures 1,863 - - - - - - - 1,863
Gain on disposal of associates  {H B &L EER 12,000 = = = = - 103,668 - 1150668
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FEHTE K&

for the year (61,279) (1,559) (7,028) 2,713) (1,906) (4,241) (6) (1,950) (80,682)
Reportable segment assets 2R PEE 1,832,484 292,832 1,815,516 354,161 318,293 617,114 974,796 590,222 6,795,418
Including: 2R

Interest in joint ventures RagRENER 9,644 - - - - - 62,855 = 72,499

Interest in associates REERRNER 75,166 - - - - - 70,244 - 145410

Other financial assets At eRmEE 56,100 - - - - - 580,105 - 636,205

Additions to property, plantand ~ FRRENE * BER

equipment and intangible RENREVEE
assets during the year 122,665 3,587 14,766 8,042 2,952 14,694 - 1,707 168,413

Reportable segment liabilities ~ 24 HE%E 1960519 148745 1,189,004 194157 180,149 270,276 11,832 284,348 4,239,030
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B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(BRB1TE

NEN

BRSN - BIAANRETTHNIR)

3 WARZEHEH(E)

(b) ZH2E],(E)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) iy oHEE BERAESE)
Year ended 31 December 2017
HEN7E12A31BILFE
Hangzhou Yangtze River Delta Region
M REAME
Yangtze
River
Hangzhou Region Pearl River Bohai
(exclude Yuhang (exclude Ningbo Delta  Economic  Hong Kong Other
Yuhang) Region Ningbo) Region Region  Rim Region Region Regions Total
R REAHE RH8
(TeEERR)  AHE (TEEZE) SRHE WoAME SEEME  A5E it @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTR ARETT AR¥RTR ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external customers MR Blizs 1,492,254 287,365 1,606,762 324,823 282,203 674,192 - 472,460 5,140,059
Inter-segment revenue AEERA 6931 18,205 2,39 13 20 60 - 448 2,172
Reportable segment revenue E2EDBRA 1,499,185 305,570 1,609,157 324,936 282,223 674,252 = 472,908 5,168,231
Reportable segment profit PEEGE 59990 35073 186,858 43,181 50,528 48145 4,632 80512 508919
Interest income FIEMA 6397 38 478 19 80 176 11519 97 18,904
Interest expense FlEHx - - - - - - - - -
Share of profits less losses AEELANERES
of associates 8470 - - - - - (1173) - 7291
Share of profits less losses AMEBEREFERER
of joint ventures 306 - - - - - - - 306
Depreciation and amortisation FRTEREH
for the year (32,079 (538) (2196) (423) (274) (1,754) ©) (2,907) (40,17¢)
Reportable segment assets PEVES-1 1,241,848 2416 1293482 235,737 208,349 428453 1108323 388338 5136946
Including: 2
Interest in joint ventures Regixhes 9,244 - - - - - 59,100 - 68,344
Interest in associates REERRNES 47,959 - - - - - 442,200 - 490,159
Other financial assets EteRER 59,573 - - - - - 82414 - 141,987
Additions to property, plantand  FRFENE - WE R {EN
equipmentandintangible ~ REVEE
assets during the year 75,381 2,645 19,130 5683 2373 6,719 - 7,025 118,956
Reportable segment liabilities ~ FI2AHHEE 1433648 130,848 825,305 137,204 114920 203,208 870 200748 3,046,751
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDIH2HK(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(4E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) A2HFH>BUKRA -85 &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERBENYE
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Revenue L'ON
Reportable segment revenue A 2,5 A 6,788,236 5,168,231
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 5% Z8EULA (78,330) (28,172)
Consolidated revenue (note 3(a)) AU (5 3(a)) 6,709,906 5,140,059
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Profit F3E
Reportable segment profit A] 235 & A E 629,053 508,919

Elimination of inter-segment profits  ¥185 % 2B & 7B - -

Reportable segment profit derived R E £ BEINEERFE
from Group's external customers 2D EF)HE 629,053 508,919

Consolidated profit before taxation  Fi B4R & FH 629,053 508,919
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDSEEH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DE2F(4E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AEREW/WHLIBUA - -EF B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) EREENEEE)
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFTT
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AZNEEE 6,795,418 5,136,946
Elimination of inter-segment 985 5 30 [ FE R IE
receivables (1,568,368) (1,069,972)
Deferred tax assets FIEFRTEE 117,143 72,810
Consolidated total assets REBEE 5,344,193 4,139,784
2018 2017
20184 2017 £
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETF T
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AIENEHEasE 4,239,030 3,046,751
Elimination of inter-segment 350 S0 HE e IR
payables (1,568,368) (1,069,972)
Current tax liabilities BIEAFIE B & 259,907 167,471
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEAE 8,861 3,816
Consolidated total liabilities MAEREE 2,939,430 2,148,066
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4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 4 EHt ARMEM TS

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Other revenue Ht A
Government grants (note (i)) BT B (BT5E ) 8,018 10,577
Others Hib 4,902 2,207
12,920 12,784
()  Government grants mainly represent unconditional ()  BUTHIBIE B TIRATH R R
discretionary financial support from local municipal AR BB B TS S8 ©
government authorities.
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Other net income H At F s
Net gain on sale of property, HEWE - BEREERE
plant and equipment HEE 52 382
Net realised and unrealised gains BRAFEFABRNEERM
on FVPL RERFWE
— Convertible notes — AR R 17,979 5,311
— Unlisted equity investments — FETRAKRE 5,525 -
— Treasury products —EBEREm 193 91
— Listed trading securities — R GEFH (124) 115
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains B % (F1B), s (438) 848

23,187 6,747
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BiAFE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after (charging)/crediting: FRFMBEE (FB), A TIEIERE
g
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT
(a) Net finance income (a) BEBWA(RAE)FHE
Interest income on listed TFHEBTANEWA
debt instruments 3,886 665
Interest income on bank deposits RITHF A2 WA 14,270 18,239
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFFEZH (23) -
Net finance income BMEWAFEE 18,133 18,904
(b) Staff costs (by BIRE
Salaries and other benefits e MEMBEF 1,798,064 1,453,608
Equity-settled share-based payment R EE AR T
expense (note 25) & (451 25) 26,430 -
Contributions to defined contribution ST RT B (FEE ()
scheme (note (i) 269,330 216,435
2,093,824 1,670,043
Included in: A
— Cost of sales — SHEMAR 1,668,692 1,407,830
— Administrative expenses — TBAX 396,295 255,973
— Selling and marketing expenses — HEMTIZER 28,837 6,240
2,093,824 1,670,043
(i)  Employees of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to () AEEMNPENMNBAESESMN
participate in a defined contribution scheme administered i 5 T TS IR KB A ) R it
and operated by the local municipal government. The etz o REFEYOEMB AT
Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are R TR TR SN RESE ST
calculated on certain percentages of the employee salary BAOHAEERS . USSR
as agreed by the local municipal government to the scheme REF o
to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment B BRI AEEBER bR
of retirement benefits associated with these schemes ZEA BB RRENNRNERER

beyond the annual contributions described above. e
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 HiaiFE (&)

2018 2017
2018 2017 &F
(Note)
(B3
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
() Otheritems (c) HfhEB
Impairment losses WIEEE
— trade and other receivables — B Z RHE M EWERK 49,432 35,369
Depreciation of property, Mm% - WERERETE
plant and equipment 50,540 33,187
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EH 30,142 6,989
Operating lease charges KEHEER 115,320 67,876
Auditors’ remuneration IZ SN &
— audit services — IR 3,900 3,600
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the MeE : ANEER2018F 1 A1BERERTHHUG
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. MEERFE O - RIRFTIBEMNBE S E
See note 1(c)(). WEBEHLLERER « 5 B O) °
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 HFREBBERNAMES
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) MEZEEBRERAMNBENRE :
loss represents:
2018 2017
2018 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Current tax BPERB 1R
PRC corporate income tax PR ZERTISR 199,282 147,427
Under-provision in respect of prior years @fEFEEHETE 2,282 2,161
201,564 149,588
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary BT Z AV E 4 M0l
differences (38,245) (21,935)
Reversal of withholding tax on the REBEFEE A FFEE
profits of the Group’s PRC OB (5T (b)Gii))
subsidiaries (note (b)(iii)) - (10,804)
_______________________________ (38,245)  (B2739)
163,319 116,849
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 FEBRZRNAMEHR (E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

(b) HBIARMXEZEABRTEN

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

SR AEZ SR

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMET T
Profit before taxation AR 629,053 508,919
Notional tax on profit before taxation, FEAIFEZ &8 -
calculated at the rates applicable RIEATIE A AR E A
to profits in the tax jurisdictions FEB R ETE (M E ) & (i)
concerned (notes (i) and (ii)) 139,550 124,978
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses, AT 2 FHiE 2
net of non-taxable income R FEFE R TR 9,578 5,617
Tax effect of deductible temporary PR IRENERE o RETE
difference utilised - (176)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ KERHIBEEEZ
recognised M E 8,368 2,049
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B 2 Bl i5 A R 2 B IB &5 18
recognised (195) (5,175)
Tax effects of reversal of deferred tax ~ FLF AT G E T TE E5 B RER AV IE
assets recognised in respect of tax ~ {LATSFR B EE R~ RS &
losses in prior years 766 -
Tax effect of share of results of B E R R EDEXE Y
associates and joint ventures s 2 2,970 (1,801)
Reversal of withholding tax on the REERHNBEQFFBERENB
profits of the Group’s PRC (P& (i)
subsidiaries (note (iii) - (10,804)
Under-provision in respect of BEFERENT
prior years 2,282 2,161
Actual tax expense BERMHIEY 163,319 116,849
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Hong Kong for the income subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the reporting period is
16.5% (2017: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not earn
any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during
the above periods.

PRC Corporate Income Tax
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC
income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

Among the subsidiaries of the Group, the respective
tax authority in Hangzhou and Ningbo have approved
an income tax rate of 20% for Hangzhou Greentown
Vocational Training School and Ningbo Greentown
Advertisement Company Limited for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

PRC dividend withholding tax

According to the Implementation Rules of the
Corporate Income tax Law of the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are levied a 10% withholding
tax on dividends declared to their foreign investment
holding company arising from profit earned
subsequent to 1 January 2008. As the Company could
control the dividend policy of these subsidiaries in
mainland China and the directors have determined
that these retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are not likely to be distributed in the
foreseeable future, withholding tax accrued of
RMB10,804,000 as at 31 December 2016 was reversed
in 2017.

BIAARETTIIR)

mEBERRNAES (&)

(b) BIABIEZEABRETEN

SR ABZHR (&)

(i)

(i)

(iii)
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7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIEEA QG5 383N 1§ A a] (I
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BESNREARBROE2H  EFHS
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation WENT :

are as follows:

Equity
Salaries, settled
allowances Retirement ~ share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme transactions 2018
fees in kind bonuses contributions expense Total
BREEN
e 2HR R RER 2

Este  EUEN BERA BAGEMBR  REEX 2018FA:
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR AR%T:R

Chairlady £33

Ms. Li Hairong EN L - 1,089 1,711 - 200 3,000

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEERE - 915 1,413 72 749 3,149

Mr. Wu Zhihua REERE - 833 1,395 72 1,124 3,424

Mr. Chen Hao BRiEEE - 759 1,241 - 624 2,624

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Shou Bainian SHELE 240 - - = = 240

Ms. Xia Yibo E—Rut 240 = = = = 240

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERBELE 240 - - - = 240

Mr. Wong Ka Yi ERHAE 240 - - - - 240

Mr. Li Feng FExE 240 - - - - 240
1,200 3,596 5,760 144 2,697 13,397
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7 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7 EEMe (&)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme 2017
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e RER

EShe  EMEN  BRREL RASEIEE 2017585
RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETL  ARETT AREBTE ARETR ARETL

Chairlady £33

Ms. Li Hairong NS - 1,089 1,720 - 2,809
Executive directors HITES

Mr. Yang Zhangfa BEERE - 909 1,400 75 2,384
Mr. Wu Zhihua REELE - 759 1,100 75 1,934
Mr. Chen Hao A - 629 913 - 1,542
Non-executive directors FHITES

Mr. Shou Bainian SHEFELE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Xia Yibo E—Rut 180 - - - 180

Independent non-executive BYHTES

directors
Mr. Tian Zaiwei (resigned on BERLE
5 December 2017) (R2017% 12 A5H
BHE) 165 - - - 165
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok ERELE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Wong Ka Vi BERELAE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Li Feng (appointed on ZREE
5 December 2017) (R2017%12 A58
EZE) 15 - - - 15
900 3,386 5133 150 9,569
()  There were no emoluments during the above periods paid () REdHE AEEfERESY
by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid T3Pt EE 8 AT ) AL B = B A T
individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join XHEAME - ERBHEREMA
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AR S B 18 &Y 5% ) ok B B 46
office. In addition, no director has waived or agreed to 8o tsh B ERERR - BEES
waive any emoluments during the above periods. WENXFRBHREEMAME -
(iiy Discretional bonus is determined by reference to the (i BIBIEATHIREA KA EEKIE M
performance of individuals and the Group. BE -
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224

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2017:
four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.
The emoluments in respect of the other one (2017: one) individual
are as follows:

8

BEEaFAL

hEaEmHFALTH  MAQROT7E Y
N BEE  HEMMSHRME7HE -
H#p—R(Q017F  —F) AL S H
N

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AREFTT

Salaries, allowance, and benefits-in-kind e EEREYHZER 728 212
Discretionary bonuses BIBIEAL 900 1,166
Retirement scheme contributions RIREHEIE R 72 -
1,700 1,378

The emoluments of the above individual with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

bBismHALOMEENT -

2018 2017

20184 2017 £

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A AH

Nil-HKD1,000,000 = % 1,000,000%5 7T = -
HKD1,000,001-HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 % 7T = -
HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T & 2,000,000 %8 7T 1 1

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB483,296,000 (2017: RMB387,483,000) and the weighted
average of 2,777,776,000 ordinary shares (2017: 2,777,776,000
shares) in issue during the year.

The Company has issued potentially dilutive instrument such as
equity settled share-based transaction (see note 25) in 2018.
However, the Company did not include this instrument in its
calculation of diluted earnings per share during the periods
presented, because the effect of such inclusion would be anti-
dilutive. Therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as
the basic earnings per share.
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(B = 1TRERASM -

BIAARETTIIR)

10 1% - BMERRE

Office
Leasehold equipment Motor Construction-
Buildings improvements  and furniture vehicles Software  in-progress Total
BOAERE
By HEWERE REE RE Hig ERIR @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 W2017F1A18 203,304 24,286 46,334 17,685 13,400 17,758 322,767
Additions NE - 28,368 49,287 2,201 - - 79,856
Acquisition of subsidiaries W EEHT B AR - 7,936 5,235 1,134 - - 14,305
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBLRR - - (14) - - - (14)
Disposals HE - - (3,525) (1,141) - - (4,6606)
Reclassification BN - - - - (13,400) (10,254) (23,654)
construction-in-progress FrIRE - - 5378 - - (5,378) -
At 31 December 2017 R2017§ 128318 203,304 60,590 102,695 19,879 - 2,126 388,594
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 203,304 60,590 102,695 19,879 - 2,126 388,594
Additions NE - 87,980 22,902 4,830 - 5,359 121,071
Acquisition of subsidiaries W& & A A - - 449 - - - 449
Disposals HE - - (6,744) (453) - - (7,197)
Transfer from construction- B BRI
in-progress - - 4,520 - - (4,520) -
At 31 December 2018 H2018512A31H 203,304 148,570 123,822 24,256 - 2,965 502,917
Accumulated depreciation:  R&H7E
At 1 January 2017 201751818 (10,367) (14,058) (22,621) (7,780) (3.470) - (58,296)
Charge for the year FEXIH (10,511) (10,965) (9.919) (1,792) - - (33,187)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 2,370 976 - - 3,346
Reclassification EHNOE - - - - 3,470 - 3470
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR - - 4 - - - 4
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H (20,878) (25,023) (30,166) (8,596) - - (84,663)
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H (20,878) (25,023 (30,166) (8,596) - - (84,663)
Charge for the year FEXH (6,847) (28,459) (13,023) 2211 - - (50,540)
Written back on disposals HERM - - 3,830 362 - - 4192
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31H (27,725) (53,482 (39,359 (10,445) - - (131,011)
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124318 175,579 95,088 84,463 13,811 - 2,965 371,906
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 182,426 35,567 72,529 11,283 - 2,126 303,931

Buildings of the Group are all located in the PRC. No property,
plant and equipment of the Group was pledged as collateral for

AEBEMARTHUNTE - KEBEH
BYE BELRBEEMMESLAEHE
the Group's borrowings. EEHEmRE o
As at 31 December 2018, certain buildings with carrying value of
RMB18,247,288 (2017: RMB19,720,511) had no property
certificates due to the collectively-owner right.

R2018F12A31H EEEAARE
18,247,288 L (2017 : A E &
1972051 ) 2 B TEFREREGR
3 0 SERERE o
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11

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARETTIIR)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 11 BEEE
Property
Customer management
Software relationship contracts Total
7§ EFBE WEEESY Loy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A1H - - - -
Acquired from acquisition of ~ UZBE I B2 A1EUS
subsidiaries 560 9,600 4,833 14,993
Additions NE 39,100 - - 39,100
Reclassification EX | 13,400 - - 13,400
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 124318 53,060 9,600 4,833 67,493
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 53,060 9,600 4,833 67,493
Acquired from acquisition of YR B X A1 EE
subsidiaries 185 - - 185
Additions NE 47,342 - - 47,342
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31H 100,587 9,600 4,833 115,020
Accumulated amortisation:  R&T#
At 1 January 2017 K2017%1 4108 - - - -
Reclassification EX bR (3,470) - - (3,470)
Charge for the year FELTH (4,285) (664) (2,040) (6,989)
At 31 December 2017 2017 F12A31H (7,755) (664) (2,040) (10,459)
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H (7,755) (664) (2,040) (10,459)
Charge for the year FELH (28,839) (993) (310) (30,142)
At31December2018 M2018%12A31H B854 (1657)  2350)  (40,601)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31H 63,993 7,943 2,483 74,419
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12831 H 45,305 8,936 2,793 57,034
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

12 GOODWILL 12 HE8
RMB000
ARBFT
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2018 20181 A1 R 79,422

Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries

R B ARIRFESE 2,649

At31 December2018 ... RWFLZANA 8207
Carrying values: ARTEE :

At 1 January 2018 20181 A1 R 79,422

At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 82,071

Impairment of cash-generating units containing
goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is
allocated to a group of cash-generating units (being subsidiaries
acquired in each acquisition, mainly in property services area).
Such group of cash-generating units represents the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections primarily based on the
respective financial budgets of the cash-generating units
covering a five-year period estimated and approved by
management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated to be similar to that of the respective final forecast
years on existing service capacity. The pre-tax discount rate of
12.78% (2017: 13.11%) reflects current market assessment of the
time value of money and specific risks relating to the Group.

Based on the results of the above assessment, the Group
determines that there is no impairment on goodwill as at 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

REELEN(BESHE) RE

RETHERENR  HEEIEE—
ARTELBEN(AESREBTEAN
MERR TEERMERBER) - &
URSELFEMATANARESRIE
BEHMNERAENRERER -

ReELESBMNMA kBB NIZRRE
ELBMNNFEREEET - 25186
AR RHETTEANKEEEE M
MZENESRSELBURFHYEE
B MBBSFHZENRESREHIR
BAERBE N THEEERKEENFH
WIREREM - AEBEFERRBRE AT
SHEERMEBERAEBETERKR
B2 BATERIR R - RIATBRIR K 512.78%
(2017 €8 : 13.11%) ©

B PP &R - REEE TR 2018
F12A3NBEBELERE017F : Z) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise ind

icated) (BRZEITEHIN - HUARKETTIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 13 REtERRINER
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
Investment in associates REENRIZIRE
— Costs of investment, unlisted — I IR ER A 108,569 121,079
— Share of post-acquisition results, — EGURER 1R R
net of dividends received (BB E R E) (10,356) 12,429
— Share of reserve of associates — FEhEE R R E 95 95
— Share of other comprehensive — R — TR E QA E A
income of an associate 2HEWE = (1,362)
— Goodwill — & 47,102 46
145,410 132,287
Convertible notes issued by an associate ~ —[EE& A A1 1T 2 AR EIE
(note (i) (P3E ) - 357,872
145,410 490,159

THRENHARFLENEXREBATE
MEREZAEEEBHENRZER -

The following list contains only the particulars of material
associates of the Group, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities whose quoted market price is not available:

Place of Effective interest
Form of business  incorporation Registered/ held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business issued capital At 31 December Principal activity
L TA ARERANERER
NGRS EHRBEA REXLE  HR/BRTER M2A318 TEXEK
2018 2017
20185 0175
Yiwu State-owned Greentown Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Property Services Company Limited FEMER L i AR#3,0000007C NEER
EETHARHNEREERL A
Shanghai Xinhu Greentown Property Services  Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Company Limited (“Shanghai Xinhu") B3l i AR5,000,0007C NEER
LEmRRIEREER AR
Shenyang Xinhu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Services Company Limited AT i AR5,000,0007 NEER

BRHASINEREBRAF
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REEQTINER (8)

Place of Effective interest
Form of business  incorporation Registered/ held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business issued capital At 31 December Principal activity
AL AEERANERER
BEDTER EBRRIA REXBE  HR/BRGER M12A318 TEXE
2018 2017
2018 0174

Jiaxing Xinhu Greentown Property Services Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 40% 40% Property management
Company Limited FEMER L i ARH500,0007C NEER
BRI EREER AR

Quzhou Xinhu Greentown Services Incorporated the PRC RMB500,000 40% 40% Property management
Company Limited BaliAv i AREE500,0007C NEER
BRI EREER AR

Jurong Xinhu Baohua Conference Center Incorporated the PRC RMB100,000 40% 40% Meeting and banquet
Company Limited i1z H AREE100,0007C services
ORFHEEEET OBRAF eEREERY

Zhejiang Xinlv Commercial Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 40% - Commercial
Management Co,, Ltd. a1z # AR 10,000,000 T Management
MIHSAREEERERAF BXRER

Zhejiang Xinhu Greentown Property Services  Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Company Limited ("Zhejiang Xinhu") i IATE i ABRH10,0000007 NEER
TSI EREER A

Lvman Technology Company Limited Incorporated the PRC RMB50,000,000 20% 20% LT services Technical
("Lvman Technology") Balizav # AE#50,000,0007 consultation
REMRARLRA" {ERBm B R MHD
(R MG ERRARAR ")

Zhangjiang Communications Investment Incorporated the PRC RMB5,000,000 40% 40% Property management
Greentown Property Service Company i1z i ARH5,000,0007C NEER
Limited (formerly known as “Zheyuan
Property Management Company Limited")
("Communications Investment Greentown”)
T RBREANEREBRA
(RE ITEERARAR "

Zhejiang Greentown Lvfa Property Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 15% 15% Property management
Management Company Limited Bl A # AR10,000,000 7T NEER

("Greentown Lvfa PM")
ISR EENEREERA R
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B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REEQTINER (8)
Place of Effective interest
Form of business  incorporation Registered/ held by the Group
Name of associate structure and business issued capital At 31 December Principal activity
A AEERANERER
NG EBRBRA REEHE 2/ CROER M12A318 TEXE
2018 2017

2018 0175

China CVS Holdings Limited Incorporated BVI USD50,000 - 34.28% Commodity Sales
("China CVS") (note (i)) Baiizav HEREUHES  ordinary share of AmEE
(I China CVSJ) (BiZE () USD0.0001 each

50,000 &R
0.0001%7T
ZEBR

Zhejiang Greentown Uoko Asset Incorporated the PRC RMB30,000,000 - 40% Assets management
Management Company Limited SRR L i AR#30,000,0007 BEER
MIEHNEEEEEEBRAT (note )

(REEE () *

Tuotuo Network Technology Co., Ltd Incorporated Cayman Islands USD100,000 47.73% - Online music education
("Tuotuo") (note (ii) Bl iAv REHS share of ERELHE
(ITuotuo ) (ki) USD0.0001 each

100,000 £ T &R
0000172 iR
Ningbo Yule Investment Co., Ltd. ("Yule") Incorporated the PRC RMB50,000,000 40% - Investment
BEREREBRAF (note (i) (HFEG)* FAAL M AE#50,000,0007C management
RAER
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FETEERHREREFERR - REERH
the Company name is for reference only. The official names of these WENEZEHRSE - ZRERARETEE
companies are in Chinese. R e
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REEQTIWER (F)

(i) In November 2018, the Group disposed of 18% of its equity () MH2018F1MA: X & H KN
interests in China CVS at a cash consideration of 14,400,000 TR HE(HE
USD14,400,000 (equivalent to approximately RARBE 499,874,000 ) H & EH
RMB99,874,000). After such disposal and new equity P2 China CVS 18% K& #E - FAFZE
interests issued by China CVS to third parties, the equity & & China CVS[AI 25 = 31T
interests of the Group in China CVS decreased from 34.28% [ iE1& - A& E R China CVSHEY AR
as at 31 December 2017 to 11.47% as at 31 December 2018 R E E2017F12A31H 8
and no representative director from the Group remained in 34.28% B> EE E 2018512 A 31
the board of directors of China CVS since then. As a result HE11.47% + B RS BB e
the Group does not have significant influence in China CVS EARRESHEEL I China CVSE
and therefore accounted for the remaining equity interests =g At AKBETEH China
in China CVS as FVPL. The above disposal resulted in a net CVSEAXEARTE AmMmBEER
disposal gain of RMB103,668,000 for the year ended 31 China CVS H &I g2 IR #E A BR S R 1R
December 2018. AN EFFABRNSREE o Lt

HEHZE2018F12A31MHIEFE
R B R U EE AR 103,668,000

In June 2018, the Group disposed of an associate, Zhejiang
Greentown Uoko Asset Management Company Limited, at
an amount of RMB12,000,000 resulting in a net disposal

gain of RMB12,000,000.

The Group recognised a gain or loss in profit or loss

calculated as follows:

7T|:o

R2018F 6 REBEUARKE
12,000,000 7T &) & %A 1 & Bk & 1 7
IR ETEEERARAR]

& Uk 2558 58 A A R 12,000,000

7T|:o

AEERNBR T ERK K EE -

ApgsrEwT

2018
2018 F
RMB’000
ARETTT
The fair value of proceeds from the HE R IR ) A FE 111,874
equity interests disposed of
The fair value of remaining equity IR AEE A FE 71,735
interests
The carrying amount of the investment RNEAZE HEELZ AHHEQFIRE (67,755)
in associates at the date on which HARE S5
significant influence is lost
Reclassified from other comprehensive B EM2EWEEHN DA (186)
income
Gain on disposal of associates B2 N B EF 115,668

2018 F EmE

SRR EEBRAR 231



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL
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13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REEZERQTINER (8)

(i) In October 2018, the Group entered into a share purchase (i) M2018F10H  AEEHE=F
agreement with third parties to acquire certain equity RN RD BB B ek - LAEE Tuotuo
interests in Tuotuo and subscribed new equity interests K5 T B #E R R M Tuotuo 1T 2
issued by Tuotuo, totalling 47.73% equity interests at a cash A HE - A H47T73% R RE
consideration of USD10,906,990 (equivalent to RAB 510,906,990 7T (1 & R 4
approximately RMB75,733,242). The principal activities of A R #75,733,242 7T ) ° Tuotuo HJ
Tuotuo are to provide online musical instrument training TEEXEBRRMERLERETINE
and related services. As the Group has one fifth voting B AR 7% A R AN 52 B % & Tuotuo
power in the board of directors of Tuotuo, the Group EFgnoc—HRER  FAEEK
accounted for the investment as interest in associates. ZRE ARYIER A R R AR o

(i) In August 2018, the Group set up Yule with a third party in (i) M2018F8H » REBHEE =K
which the Group holds 40% equity interests. The principal S Yule + H AR & B 5 F 40% Mk
activities of Yule are to develop a real estate project in BEeoYueMEEXEBARABEEM
pension business. EJER o
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity

13 REEERRIRERS (&)

FrA bl A al AR ERERE B
method in the consolidated financial statements. FEIRBRALR o
Tuotuo Z I ER B EZE(E LA FER
SRR EMERELFAE) RIGETH

Summarised financial information of Tuotuo, adjusted for fair
value and any differences in accounting policies, and a

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial MEBEEE CHERENT -
statements, are disclosed below:
2018 2017
2018 % 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFT
Gross amounts of the associate’s ZHBENTEHEE A
Current assets MEVEE 36,608 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,385 -
Current liabilities TmENAE 2,940 -
Non-current liabilities FErEEE 4,870 -
Equity RkE 50,183 -

Revenue for the period from the

BUEEREZE 2018612 A31H

acquisition date to 31 December 2018 I 3,029 -
Loss for the period from the acquisition BUEEREZE 2018612318

date to 31 December 2018 g1 (9.899) -
Total comprehensive income for the BUEEREIE 2018 12 A31H

period from the acquisition date to HE2EK SRR

31 December 2018 (9.899) -
Included in the above current assets: ETALMREEAE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFASEEY 33,436 -
Reconciled to the Group’s investment  EAREFRZEE QA TREZHE

in the associate
Gross amount of net assets of the SN R EEFEETE

associate 50,183 -
Group's effective interest REBERER 47.73% -
Goodwill kS 47,056 -
Exchange differences =R (764) -
Carrying amount in the consolidated FEMBHRAREE

financial statements 70,244 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

13 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 13 REEZERQTINER (8)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BRI E AN L ARG ER -
material:

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMBTIT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually #R& BI#53R5= {E R JEE KB &
immaterial associates in the NAEIWEREE
consolidated financial statements 75,166 47,959
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share ANEBEHZSHE N alKLEL
of those associates’ (losses)/gains from K (E18), WE et
operations (18,060) 8,470
14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 14 8 AER
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Costs of investment, unlisted JE IR E KA 91,528 87,567
Share of post-acquisition results, net of FEAR U B 15 248 (S HBR B RAR B)
dividends received (437) (2,300)
Share of other comprehensive income Bl —MeEhE s A2 Elias
of a joint venture (18,818) (18,818)
Goodwill Bk 226 1,895
72,499 68,344
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 14 &% A== (&)

The following list contains only the particulars of joint ventures, TREVNNHREAERZENGAEUBRR
which is accounted for using the equity method in the ABRHEENEZER

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Place of Effective interest
Form of business  incorporation Registered held by the Group
Name of joint venture structure and business capital At 31 December Principal activity
AR FEERANERESR
RELRER EBRRER REX4E EMER R12A31R IREH
2018 2017
0185 N17E
Shanghai Huamu Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB1,000,000 50% 50% Property management
Management Company Limited Rl i ARH#1,0000007C NEER

LR EREER A

Anhui Yanye Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB3,000,000 60% 60% Property management
Management Company Limited Rl i AR#3,0000007 NEER

RHEERANERBEARLE

Jinan High-tech Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMB10,000,000 51% 51% Property management
Management Company Limited AEMAR L G AE#10,000,0007 NEER

ERmRHRANREEARAT

Xiangtan Chengfa Greentown Property Incorporated the PRC RMBS,000,000 51% 51% Property management
Service Company Limited BalAY i ARH5,0000007 NEER

("Xiangtan Chengfa")
METHESHNFREBRAF*

(MEsnE)
Sensegain King (Hong Kong) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKDS50 million 40.30% 40.30%  Investment holding
("Sensegain King") (note (i) BT B ordinary share of REER
Bt e (B ERAA HKD1 each
([t ]) () USD29,780,000
preference shares of
USD1 each
SOEEATERIAT
2 Ei®iR 29,780,000
ETERIET
ZERR
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FETFRERHREREERR - REERH
the Company name is for reference only. The official names of these HEXEEEMRSE - ZZRANEESE
companies are in Chinese. R e
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14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 14 &% Rz (8)
(i)  Sensegain King is a joint venture in which the Group has (i BtEAGELE  AEBFBER

joint control through its acquisition of 45.66% equity
interests in its preference shares on 20 December 2016. As
at 31 December 2017, the percentage decreased to 40.30%
because of new preference shares of Sensegain King were
issued to new shareholders in July 2017. Sensegain King is
an investment vehicle structured for the purpose of
investing in common shares of an unlisted big-data
company in the United States. As at 31 December 2018, the
ordinary share capital of HKD50 million has not been fully
paid-up and the preference share capital of USD29,780,000
has been fully paid-up.

Furthermore, major operating decisions of Sensegain King
and the eventual disposal of the common shares of the big-
data company requires the unanimous approval of the
ordinary and preference shareholders.

As at 31 December 2018, Sensegain King only made equity
investment in the big-data company. According to a
shareholders agreement, the Group is only responsible for
the proportionate share of the profit and loss, assets and
liabilities arising from its indirect investment in the common
shares of the big-data company.

20165 12 A20 B IR BB Bt € 18 5C
[% 45.66% 1 55 M A LRI HI4E -
R2017912 A31 H - # A%t I %
EZE40.30%  FREARIMTEHEL
R 2017 F7 B R ET - B
HEARELRERE  WRERE
BIE EMAEIEARINL A - 1
20184F 12 A31 R » & @A A 50
BEBITHATEHT  MELR
% 7529,780,000F T E ELFEHE ©

AN - Bt S 2 TREERR L
ERBB AR T RRALE B
N B e AR AR IR — UL fE

R2018F 12 A31H > BRit&EmR
REBE R FMELIREIRE - IREBR
Hipeg  AREEASRLIIHE
HREBERENRARBIEA R BRE
Ezigx BERBE-

A LAARESENAZREARIE
FHf¥ER  BAWETISRE -

All of the above joint ventures in which the Group participates
are unlisted corporate entities with no quoted market prices
available.
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(BR

14 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summarised unaudited financial information of Sensegain King,

14

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

BEQTER (&)
Bt ST REBLMBANME CHE
FHBCRAE T RAEH AR REAM B

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial REEMEZHERFENT
statements, are disclosed below:
2018 2017
2018 2017 &F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Gross amounts of the Sensegain King's Bitt&EREER ZH %
Current assets MEEE 11 1"
Non-current assets FmBEE 155,940 146,621
Current liabilities mENA & 71 49
Equity B 155,880 146,583
Revenue WA = -
Loss for the year FREE (21) (65)
Other comprehensive income (recycling)  Eth 2 E U A (7] 2/82) 9,318 (42,934)
Total comprehensive income ZHEBIIA 9.297 (42,999)
Included in the above current assets: A LMREEE ¢
Cash and cash equivalents ReERHASEEY 10 10
Reconciled to the Group's interest AEEBRBRTSEZNVEIR
in Sensegain King
Gross amount of Sensegain King's Rt SR EEFEERE
net assets 155,880 146,583
Group's effective interest AEEERER 40.30% 40.30%
Others HAith 35 27
Carrying amount in the consolidated T M BRARREE
financial statements 62,855 59,100

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually
material:

ERIEFNEXRNAERRNEAER

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Aggregate carrying amount of REVEHRERANERZEERE S
individually immaterial joint ventures PEREREE
in the consolidated financial statements 9,644 9,244
Aggregate amounts of the Group's REEREZEEECRKEESL
share of those joint ventures’ results BRI
from operations 1,863 306
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ST BUAARBITIIR)

15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 HibemEE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 20184 2017 F
12A31H 1A1H 12A318
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
By aE AR%¥TR ARBTFT ARBT T
Non-current ERE
Financial assets measured REEKATENEREE
at amortised cost
— listed debt investments — FEBIEE 0] 67,432 62,602 62,602
Financial assets measured at FVPL 1ZAF{Ex ABEEH)
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — B2 3F ERRANIRE
in PRC 53,940 50,153 -
— Unlisted equity investments — RSS2 LTRA
in Cayman lslands RE 92,104 - -
— Convertible notes — BB RIE (ii) 394,538 - -
Equity instruments measured BATHEG AR M2 E RS
at FVOCI (non-recycling) ATERERTA
(Al ElEE)
— Unlisted equity investment —RHASHBZIELD
in Cayman lslands AR E 12,455 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HELREE
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — RHRELZIEEMRAKE (i)
in PRC - - 50,153
620,469 112,755 112,755
Current RE
Financial assets measured HBERTTENSREE
at amortised cost
— Listed debt investments — FTEBIRE 0] 10,650 16,336 16,336
Financial assets measured at FVPL & AF(EzT AR
— Treasury products —E2ER (iv) 2,160 9,420 9,420
— Listed trading securities — TR 5ES v) 2,926 3,476 3,476
15,736 29,232 29,232
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (Br 5

15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The listed debt investments are measured at amortised cost
using an effective interest rate of 3.32% to 16.84% per
annum.

On 28 September 2017, China CVS issued convertible notes
to the Company for a principal amount of USD54,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB358,858,000). The
convertible notes bear interest at 6% per annum. After the
disposal of 18% of equity interests in China CVS (see note
13) , the Group agreed to waive the right to exercise the
conversion rights until the next round of equity financing of
China CVS and the conversion period of the convertible
notes was extended to 27 October 2022. The changes of
the above terms had no material impact on the fair value of
convertible notes. The Company measured the investment
at FVPL as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to
financial assets measured at FVPL upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (see note 1(c)(i)).

These treasury products issued by certain financial
institutions were purchased closing to the reporting period.
Their fair values approximates to their carrying amounts as
at respective year end date.

The listed trading securities represent listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The fair values of the equity
securities held for trading were determined based on the
quoted market prices in an active market.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

1TRERASN -

BIAARETTIIR)

15 Hite@EE (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

tTTEBEREERERF X
3.32% = 16.84% B 5 ANET = -

201749 A28 H » China CVS[A
AN E) B 1T N % BE A 54,000,000 3
TL(FEE R AR 358,858,000 7T)
Z AR IR o RS A RIREIRIR
FF K%t B o H & China CVS
18% KR (R MIFE13) 18 - AEME
FEERETEERENEN BE
China CVS T — B Agh& - Baf
B R R IR EE R £ 20224
10A278 - Ell &R B & B ¥ A]
BREEOAFETEERTE -
NN A FFER 2018 6 X 2017 412
A31 BEAFEFABREHEE -

R2018%F 1 A1 B VIR ERE B
BMEEREOGR - AIEHES
MEESHHBERRAFET AR
=W REE (R 16) -

REGHEBRTNZSTESE®
TIRBEREE - EAFERSE
FELAHEAEFEERS

TR SESFEREBN LT
E7F o RIERZHBRAEZFHAF
Eﬂmfmé%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ WEE

ﬁ_':_o

AEER2018F1A1HEXER
BB BMEERIE N - RIEFT
BEABE L TEBILERE
B o BRI °
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16 PREPAYMENTS

16 FENFIE

2018 2017
20184 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Prepayments for acquisition of a subsidiary Uz BE @A 7)FE( 7K IA - 315
Prepayments for purchase of software BERMTENRKIE 22,060 18,655
22,060 18,970
17 INVENTORIES 17 75

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMBTT
Properties held for sale* BiEHEE~ 264,114 105,881
Consumables JERE 27,247 21,812
291,361 127,693

* Properties held for sale represents parking places held by the Group for sale. * FELEMEBREBLENIEEN -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 ES R HMEWERR

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
2018 20184 2017
12A31H 1H1H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
MizE ARETR ARETT ARETFT
Trade receivables B WA 0] 735,369 489,128 489,128

Less: Allowance for impairment & : B S BMFIERERE  290)
of trade receivables (69,697) (36,000) (31,830)
665,672 453,128 457,298

Other receivables, net of loss HipfEWEIE « RSB

allowance 272,613 146,557 146,557
Deposits and prepayments e RBAHIE 243,224 166,083 166,083
Amounts due from related parties [EUR BFEE /5 7B 31(d) 11,152 16,062 16,062
Amounts due from other staff U E A0 B T RUA 9,540 3,719 3719
1,202,201 785,549 789,719

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment as at 1 January 2018
was made to recognise additional ECLs on trade receivables (see note 1(c)(i)).

Trade receivables are primarily related to revenue recognised
from the provision of property services, consulting services and
community living services.

Amount due from related parties are unsecured and interest free.

Aging analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade
receivables based on the date of revenue recognition and net of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables, is as follows:

0] RAEBMBMESLEIFEORRE - SR
B 5 RUFIRMEINRMERERME 2018
F1 71 3BT R (RME0) -

o RUFIAT ZEEHRMERY - &
AR5 Ko B [ A U BR 7% P HE AR M U AAR
A e

EREET RABERR RS -

R 0 AT

REBBEHR - REBEVAER B R
kB S RUGRRRER BN E 5 R
REREOMIT

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBFT

Within 1 year —ER 597,732 415,212
1 to 2 years —EMEF 64,897 37,072
Over 2 years MEM L 3,043 5014
665,672 457,298

Trade receivables are due when the receivables are recognised.
Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade receivables are set out in note 29(a).

H 5 RUGRIAR B YRR EREZ D
Hl- BAASEEERRRE S REK
AEEEERBRAE— S FHBERNHK
FT29(a) °
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19 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

ST BUAARBITIIR)

19 ZRRHEIBITHEER

2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

Escrow funds held on behalf of customers R{&ZEEFIFENTEEE S (Fiir24)
(note 24) 49,198 69,969

Cash collected on behalf of the owners’ REEXEZSWEANIRS (H5E24)

associations (note 24) 94,093 73,459
Restricted deposits X BR 7 5K 4,535 8,552
Deposits for utilities REREERT 1,071 1,268
148,897 153,248

Escrow funds represents the advance cash deposits received
from buyers as requested by sellers to secure the transactions
during the provision of real estate agency services.

The Group has cash collection on behalf of the owners’
associations in its property services business. Since the owners’
associations are not allowed to open bank accounts, the Group
opens and manages these bank accounts on behalf of the
owners' associations.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, restricted deposits represent
certain deposits in the designated banks as guarantees for the
execution of cleaning services.

AEE R ANRMHE M E IR RS HME
BEFEXREEFWRHRER SN -

AEBERMERGEBTIRERER S
WERE - ARFEZE T ERRRITE
P AREREREZEHAXNREEZS
RITERF -

R20184F N 2017128318 » <R &l
B AR THERIEERITEARITREZ
FRAGEVIERTFF ©

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 RERBEELEEY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) ReRBELEEYEE:

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFIT
Cash in hand FHEES 1,988 2,862

Fixed deposits held at the bank with ~ REIHIR LR ={EA =
original maturity within three months  $R7TE HI1F3K 200,000 599,120
Cash at bank RITIFR 2,126,930 1,387,733
2,328,918 1,989,715

Less: DAk

Restricted bank balances (note 19) SR GBIRTT AR (P 19) (148,897) (153,248)
2,180,021 1,836,467
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SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b)

20 RERBEEEY (F)
BRBAT R HEEEREHREN

generated from operations:

REWR :

2018 2017
2018 20175
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Note (Note)
(i Cira)
Profit before taxation IR bE 629,053 508,919
Adjustments for: mRE
Depreciation of property, plant and N BERRENE 5(c)
equipment 50,540 33,187
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHH 5(c) 30,142 6,989
Impairment of trade and other B9 RAMERIRRE 5(c)
receivables 49,432 35,369
Interest expense FIBFEY 5@a) 23 -
Interest income FEUA 5(a) (18,156) (18,904)
Equity-settled share-based payment EREE RN AER 2 5(b)
expenses NHAX 26,430 -
Net realised and unrealised gains on BATEFABRHEERMN
FVPL AEHRF (23,573) (5517)
Net gain on sale of property, HEWE  BE RRERE/ 4
plant and equipment (B1) 8 (52) (382)
Share of profits less losses of associates {5 & 12 A1 AR E A 22,785 (7,297)
Share of profits less losses of joint AMEEEARFERER
ventures (1,863) (306)
Gain on acquisition of an associate BB X R = (93)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HEALNAER - (1,208)
Gain on disposal of associates HEME R FAER (115,668) -
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries W B 2 A = (419)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB LN BER - (709)
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIELERERAIEE
associate - 4,500
Changes in working capital: BEEGEY
Increase in inventories FEEM (163,662) (110,803)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R E IR ZUE AN (411,593) (220,519)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank RRHIRITERRE L/ (B )
deposits 4,351 (38,594)
Increase in contract liabilities (2017: AHAE(017 : BYEUR)
receipts in advance) and trade and B8 5 R H A fE R SRR AN
other payables 687,171 445,103
Cash generated from operations BemERe 765,360 629,356

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018. Under the
transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated.
See note 1(c)(i).

Mzt : REBER2018F1ATEERERE
B BRMEERNEIN - RIBFTER
BB A WERBIILEER © &
RHEE () »
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the cash flow statement as cash flows from

BIAARKETTIIR)

20 RERASEEY (E)
(0 RMEFBAELAEYR

TEERAREREEFDHES
AEZEH RERLRERLE
B) REFHEEZERARS
RERRIBE TR BRI A
RemERZRAEDFERSR

financing activities. EZBE-
Bank loans
BITER
RMB’000
ARBTT
(Note 21)
(BE21)
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H -
Changes from financing cash flows: MERERESY
Proceeds from new bank loans FILRITE KB RIR 4,450
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (3,500)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERERELHEE 950
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12H31H 950

21 BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

21 B/ITEX
R20185 128318 » EMNRITERWT ¢

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR®TR ARETTT

Bank loans — unsecured IRITE R — EIKH
— Within one year — —FNA

950 -

The effective interest rates of bank loans of the Group at 31
December 2018 is 7.1% per annum.

Unsecured bank loans with a carry value of RMB950,000 as at 31

December 2018 were granted by a bank under a short-term loan
contract with a total facility of RMB5 million.
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(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

22 RECEIPTS-IN-ADVANCE

Receipts-in-advance represent prepaid property service fees

22 WA
B U SR L 5 = 0T R M T AR
B

23 AHERE

received from third parties.

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31 December 1January 31 December
2018 2018 ® 2017 ©
2018 20184 2017
12A31H 1H1H0 12H33180
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFT ARBTT

Contract liabilities EHEE
Property services Y2 AR 663,800 604,641 -
Consulting services BEAARE 31,111 18,648 -
Community living services [ 4% IR 53,784 26,498 -
748,695 649,787 -

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method (i)
and adjusted the opening balance at 1 January 2018.

(i)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously including as “Receipts-

(i)

in-advance” (note 22) were classified to contract liabilities (see note1(c)(ii).

AEBMERALBE LRV S AT BTG
AR FE 155 20184F 1 A1 HE Y
HEEMEL TR -

RINE B BMERLINE155R% - R30I A
[T E | (HiE22) e ED AR NERE
(RMIEE1N) °

Significant changes in contract liabilities were as follows: ANEENERESHOT
2018
2018
RMB’000
ARBTT
Balance at 1 January R1A1BZz#&4% 649,787
Revenue recognised that was included in the balance REMF AR DB BELELHHEHERIE
of contract liabilities at the beginning of the year (641,361)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of receipts ~ FEWRIEREL S R & EE 0
in advances of provision of services 740,269
748,695

Contract liabilities represents prepaid property services fees,

BHBE/KRE =T WINEMNYER
BE  HARBELRERREE -

consulting services fees and Community living services received

from third parties.

The amount of receipts in advance of performance excepted to REYREEAORERBRER —F%
RRWAR LR ARE9,110,000 T

(20175 « AR¥8,426,0007T) ©

be recognised as income after more than one year is
RMB?,110,000 (2017: RMB8,426,000).
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Amounts due to related parties

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BESRHEMENRKE

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

BEE ARET T ARBTT

Trade payables H 5 ENHIE (@) 535,570 222,211

— Billed trade payables — BHEEE S ENFIE 458,031 152,527

— Accrued trade payables — EEE S EFNFIR 77,539 69,684

Refundable deposits AREBZRS (b) 242,915 175,847

Other taxes and charges payable  HEHIIE & & A 133,535 60,170

Accrued payroll and other benefits ~ fEFT T & K& H b 1gF) 307,643 234,692
Escrow funds held on behalf of REREFHENFEEER

customers (note 19) (FI5E19) 49,198 69,969

Cash collected on behalf of the REREZGWRNERE

owners' associations (note 19) (FzE19) 94,093 73,459

Other payables and accruals Hh A 5RIA N FEAHE 115,650 71,377

Temporary receipts AT e (@ 407,380 392,616

JE A5 el 00 BRIR (M RE 31(d) (d)

(note 31(d)) 6,190 3,248
1,892,174 1,303,589
(@)  Trade payables mainly represent payables arising from sub- (@) EIEMNFEXEESBREESE
contracting services including cleaning, landscaping, HFERTRTE - iR ER AT A
maintenance and security services provided by suppliers. RZ - 28 HEMRTRFE -
(b) Deposits represent miscellaneous decoration deposits (b) HeABREE RN UWEA
received from property owners during the decoration FRERS -
period.
() Temporary receipts represent utility charges received from (0 mEWZARRAKEZRAFME
residents on behalf of utility companies. FPUREH A EEREER °
(d) The amounts due to related parties of trade nature are (d) BSMHERENEERFIEAEEKT
unsecured and interest-free. Details of the amounts due to RAEHE o BNEET RIBRFIS
related parties are set out in note 31(d). HHAKTEE31(d) °
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(BR

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

As of the end of each reporting period, the aging analysis of
billed trade payables, based on invoice date is as follows:

SITEEH -

BIAARETTIIR)

24 B5REHMENRIE (&)
REREHK  ARERAHNE S
(S HIERB AT -

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AREFIT

Within 1 month or on demand — (A AR IZEK 318,111 100,330
After 1 month but within 3 months —RBAZBE=EAR 88,303 17,513
After 3 months ={E A% 51,617 34,684
458,031 152,527

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution of shareholders of the Company passed
on 25 May 2018, a share option scheme was adopted (“Share
Option Scheme”) for purpose of providing incentives to certain
directors and employees of the Group ("Eligible Participants”).
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their direction, to invite Eligible
Participants.

On 11 September 2018 (the “Date of Offer”), the Company
granted share options to 4 directors of the Group and certain
employees of the Group (“the Grantees”) and the Grantees
finally acknowledged to subscribe for 122,410,000 shares of the
Company under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of
HKD6.116. The closing prices of the Company’s shares
immediately before the Date of Offer and on the Date of Offer
were HKD6.06 and HKD5.71, respectively. The options have
vesting periods of 3 years commencing after 12 months from the
date on which the Eligible Participants have achieved the length
of service in the Group and have a contractual life of 10 years.
Each option gives the holders the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

25 EnEEURDRERZRS

BERNNTREN2018F5 A25H BB
RIRZR R - AT 8 ([ B AEST
g UArEEETESKEES(SE
BRSHEE ) IRHE - BIERERER
g ARREFERENBRBEEER
SEERERD o

B2018F9ANMB(EHBH] - AQ
AR IR ST 21 L 6.116 B TTHITTIE(E
MALEENEZEERAETRERE(EAS
ADEHERE  AIARKERRE
122,410,000 B A R BIIR (9 ° A2 & IR
EEREZHEHIMAR BN ABNHKTE
DR E6067 T M5B TT - ZHER
ENRBHARAER2HEENAEH
B TYEERR M 2 AR 1218 A 5t 34 -
BHFERRBI0F - FHBRER THE
NEFRE—RA AR L@ -
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EHEEEURODRER IS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BHHOKIRREGEDT :
follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
HE BEGH BRESHER
Options granted to directors:
RYEE0HERE
—on 11 September 2018 10,800,000  The first exercise period shall commence from 10 years
—R2018F9A 118 trading day after expiry of the 12-month period 104

from the date on which the Eligible Participants
have achieved the length of service in the Group.

The share options shall be exercisable separately in
the subsequent 3 exercise periods, whose
percentages of options exercisable are 33%, 33%
and 34% respectively, subject to the Eligible
Participants’ performance as the conditions of
exercise.

E—ETEHE S ER2BERAEEN TIEFR
mEZREIEARNEERZAR -

TEHRFTIAN G BR2RENKE  BIEA

N2 & HEE = BT R A RITTEE - SHMTTE
Ee 9 Bl 4 33% ~ 33% [ 34% e

Options granted to employees:

BT RENBIRKE
—on 11 September 2018 111,610,000  The first exercise period shall commence from 10 years
— 20189 H 11 H trading day after expiry of the 12-month period 104
from the date on which the Eligible Participants has
achieved the length of service in the Group.
The share options shall be exercisable separately in
the subsequent 3 exercise periods, whose
percentages of options exercisable are 33%, 33%
and 34% respectively, subject to the Eligible
Participants’ performance as the conditions of
exercise. ) ‘
FETERE A AR RERAEEN TEFR
mEZARREARNEERZAR -
G TIRRA B SR N - BIRET
R EEERE=EITERP D RITE - BHNTTE
L5153 B A 33% ~ 33% K2 34% ©
Total share options granted 122,410,000
RIBIRESST
The weighted average remaining contractual life is 9.7 years METFH R eRE D FE I RITE
(2017: not applicable). (20175 : DERA) °
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EBEEUROGAER XS
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (#8)
(b) The number and exercise prices of share options (b) BREMNEERTEENT :
are as follows:
2018
2018 F
Exercise Number
price of options
1TEE BREZE
‘000
&
Outstanding at 1 January 2018 20184 1 A1 HRARITEE - -
Granted during the year FAKRE 66T 122,410
Outstanding at 31 December 2018 M2018 412 A 31 B ARITHE 61163 7T 122,410
Exercisable at 31 December 2018 R 20184 12 A 31 HAJ1T{E - -
There were 122,410,000 shares outstanding at 31 December R2018F12A31H » 1TFEEAE
2018 with an exercise price of HKD6.116 per share. fI% 6.116 7 7T #9 122,410,000 % A% 13

R ARITHE ©
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

SITEHAIN -

BIAARKETTIIR)

25 %ﬁ%%iu&ﬁ%%@tﬁ%

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREZAFERER
The fair value of services received in return for share options IR B R WERTS 2 A A
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share 2ERTERE L AFERE -
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share ER LB 2 G AT ET A
options granted is measured based on a Black-Scholes NREFBETENEE - FTAEXNA
model. The input variables under the applied model are as BMAZSIT -
follows:
2018

2018 F

Fair value of share options and assumptions  BEA&# 2 AT (E R RE

Fair value at measurement date RtEHBZ A AYE HKD1.54-HKD2.01

1.54 %72 201587
Share price (& HKD5.7107% 7T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HKD6.116 87T

BRI B = (ARIEA D T B T
B AR P P A IR
RSN

BREAMER (ARBM I AT
EEAE R A IEF I FHERTR)

Expected volatility (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the modelling
under Black-Scholes-Merton model) 34.78%—-37.56%

Option life (expressed as weighted average

life used in the modelling under Black- 5.5 years-9 years

Scholes-Merton model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange
Fund Notes)

RS

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were
no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 MEMBRRRNAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HEMBMRRRAMVENEFHIER -
financial position represents:
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARMBTIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 167,471 118,461
Provision for current taxation FARNERFTIS B S
for the year 201,564 149,588
Acquisition of subsidiaries i BE B B A B - 234
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAR = (30)
Payments during the year FRXA (109,128) (100,782)
At 31 December ®12A31H 259,907 167,471
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 HREMBRRRHOAEHR (B])
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b)y ERRDELEHEEERAMS !
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax () EESEEEREESAR
assets and liabilities oK E
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERNEERE P BHAMRAER AR
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial AELTEHBEE,(AE)
position and the movements during the year are as B EB D RABBEZ BT -
follows:
Provision for Investment  Intangible
trade and Withholding income assets
other Provision taxon Other from arising
Accrued  receivables  for onerous undistributed financial  disposal of from
expenses (note) contract  Tax losses earnings assets  anassociate  acquisitions Total
EAREM
EhiEz  BEMAN AHREA HEBEAT WiEEE

EifRx RGN B BEER  2RNE RteREE  CREWA JERERE it
RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB00  RMB000  RMBO0O  RMB0O0  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR

Deferred tax arising from: 4 BN TREN

BEHE:
At 1 January 2017 ROTE1R1A 3913 6,080 7,1 - (10,804) - - - 39900
Credited/(charged) to RESHA/ (1B
profit orloss 8,093 1877 (1,860) 1399 10,804 (883) - 112 32739
Additions upon acquisition  WEEMBL ABFE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (3,645) (3,649
At 31 December 2017 ROTEANE 45,006 7957 5,851 13,996 - (883) - (2,933) 68,994

Impact on initial application & R EFEAY ik

of HKFRS 9 ERZoRMmy e - 1,043 - - - - - - 1,043
At 1 January 2018 R8F1A1R 45,006 9,000 5,851 13,996 - (883) - (2,933) 70,037
Credited/(charged) to RESHA/ (1R

profit orloss 9,949 8,745 1,360 23,236 - (873) (4,498) 326 38,245
At 31 December 2018 RBE12A318 54,955 17,745 7.211 31,232 - (1,756) (4,498) (2,607) 108,282

Note: Upon the initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group has Mzt : BRERESHERELEDE
recognised deferred tax assets on the additional credit losses 9N%i% - AEBEMRBEES
recognised under the ECL model (see note 1(c)(i)). FEFEEXERNEIMEE

EIRERELCHIEE E (R
FE10)
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26 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 26 MEMBMRRROMAES (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by CEIAEERELEEREE:
(continued) (%)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (i) HZEPBEARRTROEERE

financial position

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AR¥®TR ARETT

Net deferred tax asset recognised in 4R34 B # AR L R HE R RO IR AT

the consolidated statement of HMIEFEE

financial position 117,143 72,810
Net deferred tax liability recognised 474 B #5AA  R FER AR T

in the consolidated statement of HMIEFAE

financial position (8,861) (3,816)
108,282 68,994

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () KRERELEHRIBBEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of AFLLATIE B HERIRETR IR B E -

the following items:

2018 2017

20184 2017

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Unused tax losses RE)ARIBERE 49,226 14,507
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note REBEMF OO B - R
1(t), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of 2018%F12A31 B "EBXR®E
RMB11,902,000 (2017: RMB3,281,000) in respect of unused THBRARARBARIEBERERA
tax losses of certain subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018. R %11,902,0007C (2017 % : AR
The directors consider it is not probable that future taxable #3,281,0007C) EEHITAEE - &
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be RET KA BEIE A BRI el A
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. @ N EREEVS T E) A AR R FE R B

FRIAE SH R
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26

(BR

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SITEHAIN -

BIAARKETTIIR)

26 HEMBRRROFTEH (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (continued) (c) ARERELEHEEEE)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, RIERREEERELER  RRE
the unrecognised tax losses at the end of the reporting HIRB AR IEERBERATE
period will expire in the following years: EEm

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
2018 20184 - 417
2019 2019 4F 2,140 2,141
2020 2020 4F 2,940 2,940
2021 2021 4F 805 811
2022 2022 F 5,568 4,130
2023 20234 27,307 -
38,760 10,439
The tax losses of RMB10,466,000 (2017: RMB4,068,000) for BRIBERITEBRE AN - BENEB
the Hong Kong subsidiaries do not expire under current A AH) A R 10,466,000 7T (2017
Hong Kong tax legislation. F: AR¥4,068,0007T) FiIEEE
TEfEm e

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) KRERELEBEERE
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB118,346,000 (2017: MR20184F 12 A31H  WER AL
RMB50,157,000) were not recognised in respect of the 10% I 75 o B ) Y /B X R B 20 IR AR B
PRC dividend withholding tax that would be payable on the AR 1,183,460,0007T (2017 F -
distribution of retained profits of RMB1,183,460,000 as at 31 AR #501,570,000 7T, ) if1 78 3 1+ &Y
December 2018 (2017: RMB501,570,000) in respect of the 10%FEREFEMNRERARE
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC as the Company controls 118,346,0007T (20175 : A R ¥
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it was 50,157,000 7T ) 89 3% RE £ 1 B 15
determined that it was probable that these profits would RERAR REGIZEMER T
not be distributed in the foreseeable future. BB MEEEEZESMNEE

ARG R AR DK ©
27 PROVISIONS 27 #i&
RMB’000
ARETT

At 1 January 2018 W2018%1H1H 23,403

Provisions made BET IR G 23,842

Provisions utilised SEREE (18,402)

At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A 31 H 28,843

Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” WA TRBSEE] e (20,700)

8,143
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(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

27 PROVISIONS (CONTINUED) 27 B%E (&)
The Group were in contracts with certain communities that were AEEBHAETHLEBEENER L

B - DR FRRAARRMNR
BRI ARSI 1R L B

operating at a loss. The obligation for the future payments of HE0
these communities, net of expected property service income, has

been provided for.

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 BEX - RERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EBRIPLEEF
The reconciliation between the opening and closing 7 E 4 A 25 S 50 o HE 1) % 1
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REBYU RS NG EERETE -
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes KRB SR F D RF ) R FRE
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company'’s MR EEFIEEINNT
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
Company P NN
Retained
Share Earnings/
Share Share option Exchange  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses) Total
REEA/
Bx ROEE  BRERRE Eifie  (RHER) &t
Note RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
i3 ARBTRE  ARBTr  ARMTR  ARETZ  AR¥TR  ARMTR
Balance at 1 January 2017 01751 A1 8268 pl 1,265,824 - 47013 463 1,313,324
Changes in equity for 2017: 2017 FEXEH:
Total comprehensive income ERrERALE
for the year - - - (89.714) (3843 (93,557)
Dividends declared in respect SBEFEERRE 28(b)
of the previous year . (99.939) - - - (99.939)
Balance at 31 December 2017~ ®2017§12A318K
and 1 January 2018 2018%F1 51248 24 1,165,885 - (42,701) (3,380) 1,119,828
Changes in equity for 2018: 2018 FEH2H
Total comprehensive income ERRARAEE
for the year - - - 42,273 81,853 124,126
Equity settled share-based BREENRR AR %5
transactions 3% - - 26,430 - - 26,430
Dividends declared inrespect ~ FLBHFESIRRE 28(0)
of the previous year - (134,368) - - - (134,368)
Balance at 31 December 2018 182018512 831 A 2 2 1,031,517 26,430 (428) 78473 1,136,016
Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 Mist - AEE(BEAREF)K2018F1 A1

B ERERBRENHRELRNFEIN -
RBFTRENEIET L - WEREDL
BER - BREMEE

January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 B - RERKRE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends (b) RE

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:

i)

FARNARAERRRZ
BB

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Final dividend proposed after the ~ REI#ikRZR B B ERE

statement of financial position RHARS B AR
date of HKD0.075 (2017: HKD0.06)  0.07578 7T (2017 4F :
per ordinary share 0.06787T)

177,746 134,368

The final dividend proposed for shareholders’
approval after the end of the reporting period has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

NI EHRRFRRIEZ
BHRERARELRNERE
HARERARAR -

FREHENIRRN Z £—§
B E AN AR R R AR
BB

2018 2017
2018 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR ARBT T

Final dividend in respect of the FREIE KR 2 _E—BE
previous financial year, approved  FERHAREFR0.067ET

and paid during the year, of (2017 & : 0.047% L)
HKDO0.06 per share (2017:
HKDO0.04) 134,368 99,939
(c) Share capital () WA
Issued share capital EEITRAE
2018 2017
20185 20175
No. of shares No. of shares
("000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
RE AR¥TR R& IS
Ordinary shares, issued and BRTRBEEER
fully paid:
At 1 January and 31 December M1 A1HK12A31H 2,777,776 24 2,777,776 24
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(BR

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents the difference between the
total amount of the par value of shares issued and the
amount of the net proceeds received from the public
offering in July 2016. Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group (excluding foreign
investment enterprises) are required to transfer 10%
of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into share
capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held
by them, provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the surplus/deficit between
the consideration paid/received and the net assets of
a subsidiary acquired/disposed regarding the
transactions between the Group and the non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control.

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

28 X - REERRKRE ()

(d) fefE
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 EXR - RERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) REEAMERBESZE)
(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) ERHE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange EHHFEEHEEEPRARE
differences arising from the translation of the financial BINETS BT RKRPTEE
statements of operations outside the mainland China. ZFTBER Z% - ZHEER
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the B 1w 2 @5t E
accounting policies set out in note 1(w). TERZIE o
(v)  Fair value reserve (non-recycling) (v) ATERE(TTEE)
The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the NFEGBECRIEE) S
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity RBEBRBFENRESRS
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that MM ELEBFEIRIETE R
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note AT EFEBEEZBFTA
1(9)). HE2EWRNE=TRE
AT EREEEFRE (R
E1(g)
(e) Capital management (e) EXREH
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are AEEEAREENTERIZARE
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going AREBRHELLENESN  LWEBRE
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for RIGEL R /K EZMEENTEE LI
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing AEKARSRE @ BB AIREIE
services commensurately with the level of risk and by HEREAEMIF D ERERZE -

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans REBMNEARBEBIERITETR
less cash and cash equivalents, and equity of the Group, BERESSEY  MASEEE
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and other mBED TR - RE N RHE
reserves. b fE s -

The directors of the Company review the capital structure RAAREE TR ERERE - R
periodically. Based on the operating budgets, the directors BRETEE  EEEEELANAR
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with HEMBREREBARKE - BBk
each class of capital and balances its overall capital RERE B~ B 1T TR M BT B TS Bk
structure through the payment of dividends, new share BEIRAER @ FEHEREEARR
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of 7o

existing debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject RN T SEEATHE A RN
to externally imposed capital requirements. EEARBKETR ©
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
other entities and movements in its own equity share price.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, other financial assets measured at
amortised cost and trade and other receivables.

Cash at bank
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash at
bank is limited because the counterparties are well-known
financial institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost are
mainly listed bonds with good credit ratings, for which the
Group considered to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due when the receivables are
recognised.

BIAARETTIIR)

29 HIBEREEREMIAND
Fia
AEBRAAXAREBBREPELEZE
B RBES - ﬂ1&,§:ﬁgﬂ % o ANE
BT HEENEMEBORERE REK
HIEEEH M5 R RERER -

TN S ER t A 5 T P IED  E  F RLER B AR
S EBLE I F R AT ER A RB S R R
BIEBRNIEH -

(a) FERMR
EERBERRZHFHERES
FEGMERAEERZHHEK
MER - AEENEERREER
BHIRTTER - REHERAFT ENE
e BB E N R E 5 N E YR
g o

RITER
AEERBTERELNEERR
BR - ARRZHFHR/MZTH
HiE AEERSZSoRBER
BEEERR -

BRERATENEGEREE
REHEKAENEMEREET
ERABRHFEENEN LETE
7 AEERRREEFREERE
R -

B 5 EWRIR

AEENEERRERZZERER
FEENEHMTE MIETFPEBM
EWITESIER A EEERAR
SERENEFPEBNBERES
FERBBESTIEL - ANAS
ENEFHEAERSZ  HUEEER
BETRBER -

HERMBERETEESEZER
BEgTEEER M o HEFE
T EHHURTPBEDHR ZENRT
BRBENRESN  LEREFE
AER M AREPEEMERER
BB - B 5 RUGRIAR EEGK
TRERERILEE -
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 IKEBEEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERE(E)
Trade receivables (continued) B RWFREE)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables AEBUERKATBHREEBEDN
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated THRIAEEHRWFIENEEE
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit - ZEBECRRBEMTE - A
loss experience indicate significantly different loss patterns RAEENESE zAEEERKRA
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based TRRFHENEERAFEAEE
on aging is further distinguished between the Group's B EERRRABEREE—
different types of customers. PEROAEETRERHNES -
The following table provides information about the Group's TREHTAEER20185F12 A4
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at JNAMNERRREE S RIERIETE
31 December 2018: HEEEBERBR
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHERE IREAHE EBEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBTFT ARBTFT
Trade receivables £ ) L e e
Amount due from W ERIEA
non-property owners
Within 1 year —FA 1.23% 193,316 2,376
1to 2 years —EWF - 1,381 -
Over 2 years MEN - 3,043 -
197,740 2,376
Amount due from W EEE
property owners
Within 1 year —FA 5% 428,201 21,410
1to 2 years —EWF 25% 84,689 21,172
Over 2 years ME A 100% 24,739 24,739
735,369 69,697
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience EHEEEERNBE=FE TR
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect EiERE o B KD BT KR
differences between economic conditions during the W fE P SUS HIRS 2 &OBEARR -~ 1R
period over which the historic data has been collected, B SR S B S £ B P 2 5 e U SR B 7B
current conditions and the Group's view of economic HAAEHA > 4IRS RS R o

conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

An amount of RMB4,424,000 is past due over 1 year against
which the Group held collaterals. On that basis,
management consider that no impairment allowance is
necessary.

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was recognised
only when there was objective evidence of impairment (see
note 1()(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018). At
31 December 2017, trade receivables of RMB70,738,000
were determined to be impaired. The aging analysis of
trade receivables that were not considered to be impaired
was as follows:

(B = 1TRERASM -

BIAARETTIIR)

29 BREREEREMIAND

FE (&)
(a) (EELABE(E)
B 5 FE R oR ()

AEBRBB—FHRBEARE
4,424,000 A EMR - Bt - B
BERATAELRERE -

REBEBETERFIVOEZHE
®H

R2018F1A1HRA - BEFEMR
BEEBEEEHERNERL(R
B EE1()0) — i A 201841 A1
HAITAEE) - #2017F 12 A 31
H BB HBZHEARE
70,738,000 L& 7E A RLE © W EAR
VERER B 5 FE U B BR ik /5 4T 40
T~

2017

2017 &

RMB'000

ARETTT

Neither past due nor impaired ANEH TR ARE -
Less than 1 year past due BED R —F 415,212
1 to 2 years past due ERH—FEMF 5,242
Over 2 years past due @M E A £ 5014
425,468

An amount of RMB10,256,000 is past due over 1 years
against which the Group held collaterals. On that basis,
management consider that no impairment allowance is
necessary.

REFERBB—FHRBAARE
10,256,000 T A an o F UL -
EREBRABEELRERE -

2018 FEEHE HWIRBEEBRAR 261



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS HRaR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 IKEBEEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (%)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB(E)
Trade receivables (continued) B RWFREE)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 (continued) RIBEBEERFEIVEZHE
BRI (HE)
Movement in the allowance for impairment of trade FRNE S EWFIERE R GE
receivables during the year, including both specific and (BFEME R M R EEE Y ) Ik -

collective loss components, is as follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Balance at 31 December under RIEEBETAEDZE 395
HKAS 39 M12 31 B2z &6 31,830 24,320
Impact on initial application of BRERBBMBHREEL
HKFRS 9 (note 1(c)(i)) FE A E (FE1(0() 4,170 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January 1A THZERBER 36000 24320
Impairment loss recognised R ZRERR 48,150 35,369
Uncollectible amounts written off g8~ r] Y[l & 28 (14,453) (27,859)
Balance at 31 December R12 A3 Bz &8 69,697 31,830
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 IKEBEEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERE(E)
Other receivables HL At & W B =X
In respect of other receivables, deposits, amounts due from TEAEWRTE - L E - EUREIR
related parties and staff, the Group has assessed that the FREIFEME  AEERER
expected credit loss rate for these receivables is immaterial FAHRECEEAEEER(BREL
under 12 months expected losses method based on BIRE) B A& S RIGRIERTE
historical settlement records and looking-forward HEEEEBEXRE 12 A fEEER
information (including economic environment). SETEAEK
The following table provides information about the Group’s TRIEBEHEAREER2018F12 731
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for other receivables as at AMEARR & EAE S EKRIE
31 December 2018: FRHREEERER -
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHEER IREAH BiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARETT ARBTT

Other receivables (excluding Hfth FEULFRIE (R EIE

Deposits, prepayments REBBANRS -
and other receivables AR H A W)
from related parties)
Within 1 year —FR 1% 52,184 522
1to 2 years —Z2MWF 3% 19,342 580
Over 2 years FELA 5% 3,607 180
75,133 1,282
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(BR

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ST BUAARBITIIR)

29 BREREERSMIAEND
S{E (1)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FREBEELRER
The Group's management reviews the liquidity position of REBENEEERELRTANERN
the Group on an ongoing basis, including review of the MEE SN - RIERFTEHE S
expected cash inflows and outflows and maturity of loans MAREE - ARERRERAE
and borrowings in order to ensure that it maintains A UREREGBRTERSHE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of LEBFESaiE R SEMARE
funding from major financial institutions and/or from other ERRESRHAEERTE - R
Group companies to meet its liquidity requirements in the THEHLNRSARHESENK -
short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRERAEBRSREHRE R
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's BEMNSBTELHEIR » JHRBEASH
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual KRB RE(BEFERELF
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RAEF BN WWEFE - iR
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on EREMROFEAE) RAEE
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the AReEY N REHEEE -
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
2018
2018
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RUAFTRRERE
More than ~ More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
—FR BB—F BBME
HRRER BRER BEER BBRF @zt REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#TRE ARETT ARBTR AR¥TR ARMTR AR¥ET:R
Trade and other payables B NEMENT 1,892,174 - - - 1,892,174 1,892,174
Bank loans BITER 1,006 - - - 1,006 950
2017
20176
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRRFTRRSRL
More than More than
Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
1 year or less than less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years 5years Total amount
R BiB—F BBME
FIREK BRER BREER BBRE @t FREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT
Trade and other payables EHREMENTK 1,303,589 - - - 1,303,589 1,303,589
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

SITEERIN

BIAARETTIIR)

29 BREREEREMIAND

FE (%)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk () RIZEM
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from cash and REEMARERETERGIRS M
cash equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing loans. NEeZEEY - IEFHIRSNAEE
The Group manages its interest rate exposure by R AEBBEBEFSFBENTER
maintaining a prudent mix of fixed and variable rate FEEFBEAEBREFERR
borrowings.
The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk for AEFBWERRERBSEE YK
cash and cash equivalents or restricted cash because the IR HIR & A S EAFERRER
interest rates of cash at bank are not expected to change W EARERSRTERNE A2 E
significantly. EAEH o
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TR AR EE G AT N R
Group's total borrowings: P
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BER= iR
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% AR¥TR % ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: ERMER:
Bank loans BITER 7.1% 950 - -
Total net borrowings EREFE 950
Net fixed rate borrowings as ~ FBEFFHEGER
a percentage of total net BEEANL
borrowings 100%

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings
at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a change in
interest rate at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

AEEBRESTMEBBRBERAF
BYIRREE BERARR o B =

R ERR A DT 8 ¥ B2
pe-
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk

(e)

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of Group
entities.

The Company, the BVI subsidiary and the Hong Kong
subsidiaries’ functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD).
Their businesses are principally conducted in HKD. In
addition, as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the HKD and the USD to be insignificant. The Group's PRC
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB and their businesses
are principally conducted in RMB. So the Group considers
the currency risk to be insignificant.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments held for trading and non-trading
purposes (see note 15). Other than unquoted securities
held for strategic purposes, all of these investments are
listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and are included in the Hang Seng
Index. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities compared to that of the index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity needs.

All of the Group's unquoted investments are held for long-
term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at
least bi-annually against performance of similar listed
entities, based on the limited information available to the
Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to
the Group's long-term strategic plans.

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that equity price risk
of the Group's listed equity securities would be
insignificant.
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BRATTRERASN - BIAARKETTIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29 BREKREERSHMTIAND
FE (18)

(CONTINUED)
(f) Fair value measurement  AFEFE
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRLAFENENESBREER
value =L
Fair value hierarchy A FEZER

TR 25 AEERFEEF
BEREERNATENE
MEBTE LHHAEE
MR E 13 AT
EHE AT =EATE
S - A TESESED
4 TV AR B AT A 18 R
7 B 84 A B B0 ) B S 1
TN -

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

— Level 1 Fair value measured using only —E % RERE-—RBA
valuations: Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted HE: HEFEEAQF
quoted prices in active markets for B BIRNETE R A
identical assets or liabilities at the HREERBER
measurement date BTS2 RESH
BIRE
— Level 2 Fair value measured using Level 2 — B FRE_SEAR
valuations: inputs i.e. observable inputs which e BEFEER/TE -
fail to meet Level 1, and not using BIRBEFAEE
significant unobservable inputs. Z A ERE AR
Unobservable inputs are inputs for R EREARTA
which market data are not available B AR - T
ATER S A BUR TY
TSR R e 1R
Z B ABUE
— Level 3 Fair value measured using — B FREATAER
valuations: significant unobservable inputs HE: BABEFEATF

(=]

AEEBEBEBELAEERY
ERTA(BREIBRATE
RBE =R LEMRAK
BERATEBRRER)ETHE -

The Group involved independent valuation specialist
to perform valuations for the financial instruments,
including unlisted equity investments and convertible
notes which are categorised into Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR = TR -

BIAARKETTIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 BIEREEREBMIANSD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (H 2FEEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAFVEITENESBREER
value (continued) E8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEER (B)
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2018 using
Fair value at AFEHEAR
31 December HZ2018512 831 HILEERA
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
120185
12A31H8
ZAYE -4 ot E=8
Recurring fair value BEMAFEABEE -
measurement Asset:
FVOCl BATEFAEBEEARA
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3 FRAIZE
(note (i)) ko) 12,455 - - 12,455
FVPL —RRVEFARS
— Unlisted equity investments ~ — 3F F IR AR E
(note (i) (FEE) 146,044 - - 146,044
— Listed trading securities — LR HES 2,926 2,926 = =
— Convertible notes (note (i)~ — ATH#ARZE (M (i) 394,538 = = 394,538
— Treasury products —ESEm 2,160 - = 2,160
558,123 2,926 - 555,197
Fair value measurements
Fair value at as at 31 December 2017 using
31 December AFEERR
2017 R2017512A318
(Note) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2017 F
12A31H
ZATFE M) E—0 F_R E=
Recurring fair value BEMLFEE
measurement
Asset; BE:
FVPL BATETARS
— Listed trading securities — LR HER 3476 3476 - -
— Convertible notes (note (i)~ — ATAKZ# (I3 (i) 357,872 - - 357,872
— Treasury products —E&EMm 9,420 - - 9,420
370,768 3476 } 367,292
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B RS HR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (B&

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

29 BREKREERSHMTIAND
FE (18)

(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (H 2FEEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAFEFENSBREER
value (continued) E8E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEER (B)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.

Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. See note 1(c)(i).

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(i)

The valuation of the Group’s unlisted equity

KB E22017F12A318 &
20184 12 A31 HItMEAFE
B F—HHEE_-_HFZH
WEEE RS =R EE A
gEH e  AEBZBREBR
BAEBRERRERA
TEEESSH 2B 5 -

BaE : AEBMR2018F1A1BE X
FEREBMBERELENE?
5% o IRIRFTIRIZEMME %
WESHLLERER - & RHE
(c)(i) °

EERAFEABHEH
() AKEBELHEERE

investments is based on a combination of HEELDERTSEE
market data, valuation models and valuation B EER RSN
report, if any, issued by an independent external BB 1 B B AT EE MR (A =R
valuer. The models incorporate various inputs, H(WB)WESE - %F
including discount rate reflecting specific risks B eSS % IE6E AE
relating to the financial instruments and market BERBEHESRTA

multiples of comparable companies or
comparable transactions with a discount for lack
of marketability as appropriate.

The fair value of convertible notes classified as
FVPL is determined using Binomial Option
Pricing Model and the significant unobservable
inputs are as follows:

5 TE R ) R 3R SR A B
REEANCIEORE =t 63
AR5 - WREE
FLERZ B EHIEREIR -

(i) DEREXIFEFAR
SRR ERERNAF
ERA-—AAREEE
BAEE  EATAR

R ABBOT
Share price f&(E USD1.983%7T
Expected volatility TE AR & 32.4%
Expected dividends TEHARAR S 0.00%
Risk-free rate R e F = 2.54%

There were no changes in valuation
technologies during the year ended 31
December 2018.

& =2018%12A31H
IE BRI R B A
@J o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 IKEBEEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (H 2FEEFEE)
()  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BATVETENSBREER
value (continued) E8E(E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements EZRAFHEGTEHWEL
(continued) (%)
The movements during the year in the balance of WEE=BRAFEFTERTF
these Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: AZEBT -
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T AREFIT
FVPL: RAFEF AR
Balance at 31 December RIEE ST %R
under HKAS 39 E£ 39512 A31H
Pk -3 367,292 -
Impact on initial application HAERAEBMB®RE
of HKFRS 9 (note 1(c)(i) HRIBFHZE
(FH3E 1(0)(0)) 50,153 -
At 1 January B1A1H 417,445 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B B A 7] - 500
Reclassification from the Sl SYNEIPS7 S e
remaining equity =R (FEE130)
interests in an
associate(note 13(i)) 71,735 -
Payment for purchases MEE N 45,496 373,718
Proceeds from sales HeERSZRE (32,410) (5,940)
Changes in fair value FARBERERZ
recognised in profit or NEEEE
loss during the year 21,767 5,311
Exchange differences [ H =58 18,709 (6,297)
At 31 December ®12A831H 15 542,742 367,292
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29 IKEBEEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS e (&)
(CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (H 2FEEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAFEFENSBREER
value (continued) E8E(E)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

E=ZRAFHEHAEBHEH

(continued) (&)
2018 2017
2018 2017 £
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B aE AR®T T AREEFT
FVOCI: RAFEAHM
ZHEBA :
At 1 January ®1A1H = -
Payment for purchases TEER 12,000 -
Exchange differences M 5, = 5E 455 -
At 31 December ®12A31H 15 12,455 -
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) BAFEUNMNIRHNSEE
at other than fair value EREENATE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial AN 62 B4R B AN S 8 B AR B
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not EHeRTENEEAEHRE

20184 & 2017 12 A 31
BORATFEREERER -

materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TaERASN - HUAREITIIR)

30 COMMITMENTS 30 &iE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 (@) MARMR2018F 12 431 HE EIMK
not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: EE 7 KRBT E ANAES S
T~

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARMBTIT

Contracted for REES) 19,664 13,007
(b) At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease (b) F2018%F12A31H @ RETATH
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are S 00 A TR 04 o TR 2R R B A

payable as follows: FEINT

2018 2017

2018 2017

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARMBTFIT

Within 1 year —FE R 76,162 31,306

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERLFA 161,719 61,916

After 5 years hFE 63,382 24,446

301,263 117,668

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of FEERBREMS  NEEAZEYEN
AEBEA - WERE-RNFFHLE—F
ETE UNMSEEREEHEE  BF

HEFEER T IR o

properties for community living services. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 10 years, with an
option to renew lease when all terms are negotiated.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into

the following significant related party transactions.

(a)

parties are considered as related party transactions:

Name of party
B s A8

(BR

Name of and relationship with related parties
During the reporting period, transactions with the following

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

31 EXEBERS
SR A B BRI 7 B M0 AR 7
AR AEERARBRET L T E
R HRS -

RS AR N EBEL NEE
REME BTETNRHH
BREABIRS

(a)

Relationship with the Group
HAKEREZ

Mr. Song Weiping
REFRE

Ms. Xia Yibo
B—R&Zt

Mr. Shou Bainian
SHELE

Ms. Li Hairong
FEELL

Greentown Holdings and its subsidiaries
RRERR R BB A )

Zhejiang Greentown Education Investment
Management Limited

MTHRRBEREEEERAT

Hangzhou Dangui Investment Company Limited

("Hangzhou Dangui Investment”) and
its subsidiaries or joint venture
MMAHEREEBERA T LEME QR
HEENA
Greentown China Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries ("Greentown China”)
AR BERBR AR REWE AR
Greentown Uoko
mHEE
Communities Investment Greentown
ARARI
China CVS

Zhejiang Xinhu and its subsidiaries
pipARCin ) BN = VNG
Shanghai Xinhu and its subsidiaries
=20 ) ENi = VNG

Shareholder of the Company

ZAYNEIL$

Shareholder of the Company

NS E

Shareholder of the Company

AR AR

Shareholder of the Company

ZAYNEIL &

Greentown Holdings is controlled by Mr. Song
Weiping, Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian

RIIERBRETELE E—REE
NEmE Lz

Zhejiang Greentown Education Investment
Management Limited is controlled by Mr. Song
Weiping, Ms. Xia Yibo and Mr. Shou Bainian

MTHARBAREERBERARBREFELE
B Rt REAF AR

Entities jointly controlled by Greentown Holdings

ARk PR KRR I 0 B B8

Mr. Song Weiping is an executive director of
Greentown China

REFREREBPEATES

An associate of the Group before 30 June 2018

REEM 20184 6 A 30 A Z BIAVE: & A A

Associate of the Group

REE LN T

An associate of the Group before 30 November 2018

AEEN 2018 11 A 30 B Z ATEVEE & X F)

Associate of the Group

REEZEENF)

Associate of the Group

REE LN T
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(BR

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Name of and relationship with related parties
(continued)

Name of party
B s A8

ST BUAARBITIIR)

31 BERABBAIRS (&)
BB 7 & T I B B 7 0 A

(&)

(a)

Relationship with the Group
BEAEEE R

Lvman Technology

BRI

Four Seasons Housekeeping

MEER

Xiangtan Chengfa

MR T R 3

Zhejiang Greentown Hospital Investment
Company Limited and its subsidiary

TR BRIREER AT NEMB AR

Bluetown Agriculture Technology

B R ERHR

The English translation of the Company name is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are

in Chinese.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest

Associate of the Group

REBZBERE

A joint venture of the Group before 20 August 2018
REBER2018F8 A20H 2 RIM & &b

A joint venture of the Group

REBZAERE

Mr. Song Weiping is a major shareholder

RETERERTERR
Mr. Song Weiping is a major shareholder
RETREREERR

RA LW RBREHRSE - ZFR
ARAERBRFX

TEEEREAEME

AEETZEEBAEHE (B
BERAR B EFA AR EE
THERE) RETRFHHME T (H

(b)

paid

employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: WAKEE 8 PTHRER) ) A0 T -
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #& ~ ZEE N EWF = 5,662 5,244
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 8,941 8,187
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIE R 578 416

Equity-settled share-based payment  VARAE 45 E 30 LARK D A R REEO

expense AHEZ 4,807 -
19,988 13,847

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see

5(b)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (BR S1TEERASN - HUAREITIIR)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EABEAIXRS (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Significant related party transactions (¢ EXBEAIXS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group N2 bt RE RS 5 A AR RS HARS &Y
and the above related parties during the reporting period BAZSEENMT

are as follows:

2018 2017
2018 & 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥®TR ARETT

Property service and consulting service )% iR X & ARG IRME T -

provided to:
— Subsidiaries of Greentown Holdings — 4% 3 1% A% 2 1 B 2 7 2,398 2,133
Sales of goods to HEEWT
— Bluetown Agriculture Technology ~— — E I B 2RI 29,928 12,712
— Lishui Bluetown Agriculture — BKEETE B R
Development 6,082 -
Loan to: gRE :
Greentown ideal home FIIRARR 3,400 -
Receiving property management BENYEEEIERBERE :
support services from:
— Subsidiaries and joint venture of — N FHER B 2 M B A A
Hangzhou Dangui Investment REgRE 21,826 22,887

Receiving advertising service from: ERHNEERBKE -

— Subsidiary of Greentown Holdings — — &3 42 % 2 BJ & 2 &) 18,268 15,170
Purchasing goods from: KBEEma

— Lansong Supply Chain — EaftrEsE = 11,961
Health inspection service from: iRk :

— Subsidiary of Greentown Hospital — — #E3 2% 2 Bt /B A 7 563 620
Telecommunication services from BARBEKE

— Greentown Telecommunication — ZWIER - 787

Purchasing software and receiving KB RESHNREERERE

related services from

— Lvman Technology — BERHR 26,256 24,910
The directors consider that all related party transactions EXRRBEHNREBB IS
during the reporting period were conducted on normal HEASEHE R —MEBBIEP
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of IR IF B EIGTETT -

the Group's business.
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ST BUAARBITIIR)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EAEEAXS (F)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Balances with related parties (d) BAEES EEER
2018 2017
20184 2017 £
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETF T
Amount due from entities controlled by J&U TR & 12 $Il ) & B2 FUB
Song Wei Ping
— Trade nature —B5HE 9,009 13,845
Amounts due from subsidiaries and FE U AT A AR B B A R I
associates of Greentown Holdings B & A R FRIE
— Trade nature — B 5HE 327 25
Amounts due from associates or joint  FEURHE:Z A Ak A LD EFE
ventures
— Trade nature — g5 Mg 1,816 2,192
— Non-trade nature-loan — FESHHEER 3,400 -
Amounts due to entities controlled by & Us R BT 42 I 40 B B2 018
Song Wei Ping
— Trade nature — B 5HE 609 767
Amounts due to subsidiaries and JE SH A IR R A B BB N B K2
associates of Greentown Holdings Bt N A) K08
— Trade nature —B5HE 1,694 2,481
Amounts due to associates or joint FERBE AR A E D ERIE
ventures
— Trade nature —B5HE 3,887 -

F& Wr — R Bt 2 2 BB 6% F I K #9
BFU§R 20194 11 B30 HEIH -

The loan due from an associate bears an interest at 6% per
annum and will be due on 30 November 2019.

e, FETRERE T R IA (B H1EE)
REERANEE

The other amounts due from/to related parties (trade
nature) are unsecured and interest-free.
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of receiving
services from subsidiary of Greentown Holdings and
subsidiaries and joint venture of Hangzhou Dangui
Investment, purchasing goods from Lansong Supply Chain,
sales of goods to Bluetown Agriculture Technology above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in section “CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” of the Report of Directors.

The related party transactions in respect of receiving
services from the subsidiary of Greentown Hospital and
Greentown Telecommunication, providing services to
subsidiaries of Greentown Holdings above constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

31 EXBABLRS ()

(e)

FERREXZHE 2 LR

B BRE B RMIER Z B A T R
MMAHEEEZMBARNGED
FEDRY - EEHEREERER
i HEBY TERREMEEK
EHARAUEVATE THREER S
HFFEMERS - EWARRE14A
EfREZHRERNESTE®RS
[SERER S —f -

i EEEENER BRG] R
B s BER RIS A RIRERGE T
B AR 2 MY B A R AL LT AR Al
FUAEETNBRER S A IFER
EHR G A ERHERE L
MREREVAEZEB TITHEERTE
FRETDEARRE14A76(MN BT
M&EREKFEHE -
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ST BUAARBITIIR)

32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 ARIEAEMBERIE

FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P 5T AR¥T T AREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interest in joint ventures B E AT 81,674 77,918
Interest in an associate i LN ey = 444,735
Interest in subsidiaries B BB B 2 (a) 380,109 501,479
Other financial assets HihomEE (i) 566,529 62,601
1,028,312 1,086,733
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Nk EmEWRFIE 30,606 1,897
Cash and cash equivalents B KRS EEY 87,956 25,590
Other financial assets HihomEE (i) 13,576 19,812
132,138 47,299
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities EXEHIEEE 4,816 318
4,816 318
Current liabilities FREBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A R R 19,618 13,886
19,618 13,886
Net current assets REEEFHE 112,520 33,413
Total assets less current liabilities #EEBABEE 1,140,832 1,120,146
NET ASSETS EEFH 1,136,016 1,119,828
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E 28(a)
Share capital R& 7K 24 24
Reserves & 1,135,992 1,119,804
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,136,016 1,119,828

(i) The Company has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not
restated. See note 1(c).

(i) ARABR2018F1 A1 EREREEBIE
HREERIE 155 REBUBIRELERNFEIN -
RIBFTEENBES L WESEIHEE
e FREMEC -
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32 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 32 REAIEEMBRRRE)
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
(a) Interest in subsidiaries (a) RHBATHESR
2018 2017
2018 2017 &
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARMBTIT
Costs of investment, unlisted (note (1))  3E TR ERA (B () 26,431 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (ii)) /& Y B 2~ 7 Z I8 (B 5E (i) 353,678 501,478
380,109 501,479
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company granted (i) HZE2018F 12 A3 B I FEHRE -
share options to certain employees of its subsidiaries (see note 25). ARrmENRBARNE TEERE
The Company does not require its subsidiaries to pay for the B (RMIFE25) - AR F T EEB K
Company's shares needed to settle the grant of share options. HHE QR AR BB L B E
Accordingly, the equity-settled share-based payment expenses of FTEHIRMD R o Bt - 1872018 F
RMB26,430,000 allocated to its subsidiaries with no requirement of 12A3NBLFEHBSE T EKE
payments during the year ended 31 December 2018 are recognised AR BEMNRE RS EE ARD
as contributions from the Company and the amount was recorded as BB N 3R 2 AR 5 26,430,000
cost of investments in subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018. TTHERABRNQNRNEE  mzeEs
R RR2018F 12 A3 BRIE A
AR AR o
(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have (i) FEUHT B A RIFRIBEIRIR - BB RR
no fixed term of repayment. BEEENHAR -
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

ST BUAARBITIIR)

33 RBBLARIMWKRE

Proportion of ownership interest

TREFINEAKERE BEMAE
BRIEFENWNBRARFE -B5A
FEASN - PR D R 5 R B AR o

BRERRLE
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AR ELVARE S F5E
NEER REXHY RE&EEX  EREE F0AKE WELARRE IERY
Greentown Service Group BVI USD100/USD100 100% 100% - Investment holding
Investment Co. Ltd. EBRLES  100%T/100%T 100% 100% - RARR
Greentown Service Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD100/HKD100 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Co. Limited
BHRBEE (BE)BRAT Eib 100/87/100 87 100% - 100% RERK
Zigui Technology the PRC USD50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding
MEERRARAR USD18,693,011.30
B 50,000,000% 7z, 100% - 100%  RAER
18,693,011.30% L
Greentown PM the PRC RMB200,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
BRI EEERAR) RMB126,000,000
G AR #200,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% MEEER
N8 126,000,000 70
Zhejiang Lvsheng Property the PRC RMB60,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMBS,000,000
B MERBERAR T AE#60,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% MEER
AEH5,000,00070
Hangzhou Xianggui Hotel the PRC RMB30,000/ 70% - 100%  Hotel management
Management Company Limited RMB30,000
HMERBEERERAT S ARH300007T,/ 70% - 100% EEER
AR 30,0007
Shanghai Lvfeng Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB500,000
LEREnEERERA t ARH5000007T,/ 100% - 100% MEEER
AR 50000070
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SITERAIN  BUAARBITIIR)

33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RIBRAAMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
RERERLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
DRER REXHY RE&EEX  EBREE F0AKE WELAEDRE IERY
Hangzhou Yijia Property Management the PRC RMBS500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB500,000
MR ERBRAR hE AR 500,007,/ 100% - 100% MEER
AR 50000070
Ningbo Lvheng Property Management the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 80% - 80%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
ERKENERBERLRA* il ARH3,0000007,/ 80% - 80% MEER
AEH3,000,00070
Zhejiang Baoye Greentown Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB5,000,000
MIHEEADEREERA A ik AR 5,000,007,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AR 5,000,000
Ningbo Greentown Advertisement the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Advertisement design,
Company Limited RMB1,000,000 producing and releasing
EREHESERAR e AR 1,000,007,/ services
AR 1,000,000 100% - 100% BEERE  REREHRE
Ningbo Greentown Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMBS5,000,000
ERSNEFERERA" il ARH5,0000007,/ 100% - 100% WXER
AEH5,000,00070
Jiaxing Greentown Property Service the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
SEBIMERBARDR Gl AE#3,000,0007,/ 100% - 00% MEER
AR 3,000,000
Shanghai Lvyu Property Management the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
HERTRERERAR FE AR 3,000,007,/ 100% - 100% WEER
AR H3,000,0007C
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 REBARNERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AR EUVARES *£E
NRER REXBE RE&EE ERERE AOEBE WEARNE IEXER
Anhui Greentown Property Management the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMBS5,000,000
ZHEINEERARAF e AR 5,000,007,/ 100% - 100% WEER
AR H5,000,0007C
Beijing Greentown Property Management ~ the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
R NEERERAA e ARH5,000,0007,/ 100% - 100% WXER
AEH3,000,00070
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Consulting Company Limited RMBS50,000,000 other services
TN ES AR EERAR Gik? AR%50,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% EEEE - HERLBRE
AR 50,000,007
Zhejiang Greentown Culture Arts the PRC RMB2,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Recreational activities,
Consulting Company Limited RMB2,000,000 exhibitions and market
LA REER AT promotion services
i AR 2,000,000,/ 100% - 100% FEED  BRERTSHEERSE
ARH2,000,0007C
Zhejiang Greentown Real Estate the PRC RMB 10,000,000/ 55% - 55%  Community leasing, sales and
Agency Company Limited RMB1,000,000 other services
IR EEERBRAT P AR%10,000,0007T,/ 55% - 55% EREE  HEREMRS
AR H1,000,0007C
Greentown Community Service the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Business consultant and
LA FER AR REERA RMB2,000,000 housekeeping services
Gl ARH#10,000,0007T/ 100% - 100% EXBERRZERE
AEH2,000,00070
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RfEARNKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
DRER REXHY RE&EEX  EBREE F0AKE WELAEDRE IERY
Zhejiang Greentown Hotel the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 63% - 63%  Hotel management
Management Company Limited RMB50,000,000
LB EEEBRAR HE AR 50,000,0007T,/ 63% - 3% BEER
AR H50,000,0007C
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Tulip Hotel the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel management
Management Company Limited RMB500,000
HMBLELERBEEEERAR il ARH5000007T, 100% - 100% BEER
AR 50000070
Hangzhou Liuzhuang Hotel Management the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Hotel management
Company Limited RMB3,100,000
MNBHEEEEERAT* Gik? AR%10,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% BEER
AR 3,100,000
Hangzhou Greentown Vocational the PRC RMB600,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management related
Training School RMB600,000 training services
TN TR S SR P A hE AR 600,0007T,/ 100% - 100% DEEREDEIRS
AR 60000070
Xinjiang Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management,
Management Company Limited RMB3,000,000 leasing and housekeeping
HEBEANERBERA services
RE AR 3,000,007,/ 100% - 100% H%ER  HERKERK
AR H3,000,0007C
Shenyang Greentown Property Services the PRC RMB6,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Company Limited RMB6,000,000
BESRNERBERLR il ARH6,0000007,/ 60% - 0%  MEER
AEH6,000,00070
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RfEARNKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
NRER REXBE RE&EEX  EBREE F0AKE WELAEDRE IERY
Shenyang Bihe Real Estate Agency the PRC RMB100,000/ 60% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Company Limited RMB100,000 other services
EBLNEEERARAA" L AR% 1000007,/ 0% - 100% ERAEE - HERAMES
AR100,0007
Qian'an Greentown Services Company The PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Limited RMB500,000
BEBHMEREARLA Gl AR 5000007,/ 100% - 100% MEEE
AR 500,000
Shandong Greentown Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB10,000,000
WREENERBEARDF HE AE#10,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% MEER
AR 10,000,0007T
Zhoushan Greentown Dongsha Hotel the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100%  Undertake convention and
Management Company Limited RMB30,000 exhibition, hotel
(formerlly Zhoushan Greentown Dongsha management
Holiday Inn Management Company M AEH 30,0007/ 100% - 100% HBEREE  EEEE
Limited) AR 30,0007T
RIS BEERERRA
(RE" MLERRDEREE
EBARAA "
Greentown Property Service Group Hong Kong HKD40,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited HKD40,000,000
REMERSEE (BE)BRAR BB 40,000,000 7/ 100% - 100% REER
40,000,000 7% 7T
Lingshui Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/- 100% - 100%  Hotel and resorts
House Management Company Limited management
BN EBEREERERAT" e ARH1,0000007,/- 100% - 100% BEEREREER
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RfEARNKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
DRER REXBE RE&EEX  EBREE F0AKE WELAEDRE IERY
Sanya Greentown Tiantangniao Holiday the PRC RMB1,000,000/- 100% - 100%  Resorts management
House Management Company Limited
CERBREREBEERARA S AR%1,0000007T/- 100% - 00% EBREEE
Chongging Liangjiang Greentown the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Property Service Company Limited RMB5,000,000
ERMIINEREERLA* HE AR 5,000,007,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AR 5,000,000
Hangzhou Greentown Chengpin Property the PRC RMB2,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB2,000,000
mMEAH RN R EEARAR S ABRH2,000,0007,/ 100% - 100% MEER
AR 2,000,0007C
Xinyang Greentown Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB500,000
EESRDERBERR" il ARH5000007T, 100% - 100% WEER
AR 5000007
Hefei Greentown Real Estate Agency the PRC RMB300,000/ 100% - 100%  Community leasing, sales and
Company Limited RMB300,000 other services
BRI EERERAT HE ARH300,0007T,/ 100% - 100% ERBE- HERAMRE
AR 3000007
Greentown Property Service Group the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Jiangsu Company Limited RMB10,000,000
FRMERBEDIHFER AR i AR%10,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% DEER
AK#10,000,0007C
Zhejiang Twin Cities Network Company the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Computer networking
Limited RMB31,000,000 technology, consultant
MIERRENREEERAT service
R AR 50,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100%  BREERENT - F0R%
ARH31,000,0007C
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RIBRAAMNKRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AR EUVARES *£E
NRER REXBE RE&EE ERERE AOEBE WEARNE IEXER
Zhejiang Greentown Yuhua Education the PRC RMB100,000,000/ 90% - 90%  Education consultant service
and Technology Company Limited RMB90,000,000
MIEREEREMEARDA il AR#100,000,0007T,/ 90% - 0% HEFARK
AR#90,000,0007C
Haining Greentown Hongxiang Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Service Company Limited RMB1,000,000
BESRRANEREERAR il ARH3,000,0007,/ 60% - 0%  MEER
AEH1,000,00070
Hangzhou Shide Financial Service the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Financial service outsourcing
Outsourcing Company Limited RMB10,000,000
Nt EE BB BRAF i AR 10,000,0007T,/ 100% - 100% SBEREHNM
AK#10,000,0007C
Zhejiang Anji Greentown Yinrun Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Service Company Limited RMB1,000,000
HIZERARENERBERAF HE AR 3,000,007,/ 60% - 60% MEEE
AR H1,000,0007C
Jiangxi Gantie Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Service Company Limited RMB3,000,000
TEEHRANERBERAR HE AR3,000,000,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AEH3,000,00070
Zhejiang Zhilian Sharing Information the PRC RMB10,000,000/- 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited
BB AR EARRERAR HE AR H10,000,0007,/- 100% - 100% HAZR
Greentown Pension Services Limited HK HKD?24,000,000/ 100% - 100%  Pension Service
EREERBERAT HKD24,000,000
&R 24,000,000,/ 100% - 100%  EEZRH
24,000,000 7T
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33 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33 RfEARNKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
RERERLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
DRER REXHY RESEX  BEREE A0A%F WHARARE IEER
Greentown Education Group BV HKD100/- 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
BB EEERERAR" EBELES 100%7,/~ 100% - 100% HAER
Zhejiang Bokang Pension Service Limited the PRC USD3,000,000/ 90% - 90%  Pension Service
USD3,000,000/
MR EREARAR HE 3,000,000%7T,/ 90% - 0% EERH
3000000%7T,/
Hangzhou Lvju Property Management the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Company Limited RMB3,000,000
MR EDERBBRAF hE AR%10,000,0007,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AR H3,000,0007C
Tangshan Greentown New World Property  the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB300,000
B R ERBERAR e ARH3,000,0007,/ 60% - 0%  MEER
AR 3000007
Suzhou Lvni Property Management the PRC RMB500,000/- 70% - 70%  Property management
Company Limited
FMREMERB AR HE AEH5000007,/- 70% - 0% MEEE
Wenzhou Yayuan Property Management the PRC RMB500,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB500,000
BMEENFERREERAR R ARH5000007T,/ 100% - 100% WXER
AR 500,000
Jilin Tianhsun Property Management the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 70% - 70%  Property management
Company Limited RMBS5,000,000
ENRIEMERB AR Gl AE#5,000,0007,/ 70% - 0% MEEE
AR 5,000,000
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(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
Bl EUVARES F5E
NRER REXHY RE&EEX  EBREE F0AKE WELAEDRE IERY
Changchun Liangcheng Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 42% - 60%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB3,000,000
REMERNEREGRAR il ABRH3,000,0007/ 42% - 0% MEER
AR H3,000,0007C
Tianjin Inter Property Management the PRC RMB10,010,000/ 100% - 100%  Property management
Company Limited RMB8,000,000
REMABNEREERAA Gl AR#10010,0007,/ 100% - 100% MEEE
AEH8,000,00070
Changge Greentown Property the PRC RMB500,000/- 100% - 100%  Property management
Management Company Limited HE AR 5000007/~ 100% - 100% MEER
RETRINERBERLF"
Jiaxing Yada Greentown Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB500,000
REMEEENNERBEERAR i AR 5000007,/ 60% - 0% MEER
AR 50000070
Ji'nan Lixia Greentown Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMBS5,000,000
BEETHIMEERERAR" i ARH10,0000007/ 51% - 51%  MEEE
AR H5,000,0007C
Wuhan Greentown Binjiang Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMB3,000,000
REGBTNXRBERA P AR 3,000,000, 51% - 51%  MEER
AR 3,000,0007
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(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERRLY
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
oA EUVARES *£E
DRER REXBE RE&EE ERER AOEBE WEARARE IEXER
Zhejiang Lvfu Marketing and Planning the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Market Promotion Services
Company Limited RMB1,000,000
AT RITHREBR AR hE AR 10,000,0007T,/ 51% - 51%  TslEERE
AR H1,000,0007C
Greentown Technology Industry Services the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Information Technology
Company Limited RMB 10,000,000 Consultant
BEMREXRBERAR Gl AR 50,000,007,/ 51% - 51%  EERINER
AR 10,000,007
Zhoushan Blessed Housekeeper the PRC RMB30,000/ 100% - 100%  Business consultant and
Community Service Company Limited RMB30,000 housekeeping services
RLUEREFEREERBERAT il ARH300007T,/ 100% - 100% ERERRFBRE
ARH300007T
Lansong Supply Chain the PRC RMB10,010,000/ 51% - 51%  Supply Chain management
WMIEBHERERARARF RMB10,010,000
Eadi i AR 10,010,0007T,/ 51% - 51% HEEER
HLERHERERERAR AR#10,010,0007C
Ningbo Greentown Hotel Management the PRC RMB1,000,000/- 100% - 100%  Hotel management
Company Limited HE AKH1,0000007,/- 100% - 100% JEEER
ERSMEEERERAR"
Ningbo Greentown Yuhua Education the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 90% - 100%  Education consultant service
and Technology Company Limited RMB10,000,000
ERSRA AR HRER AR Gl AE10,000,0007T/ 90% - 100%  HAEFARS
AEH10,000,0007C
Ningbo Greentown Yuhua Yaohong the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 63% - 70%  Education software
Education and Technology Company RMB3,000,000 development
Limited S ABRH3,000,0007/ 63% - 0% HERMHRE
ERSHEERIHRNRBRAF AB#3,000,0007C
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(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERRLA
Place of Registered/ Group's
incorporation issued and effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
itz i/ BB s 30|
RRER REXBE KEfEE  EBRER A0AKE WEAIRE IEBEH
Nanchang Greentown Education the PRC RMB4,000,000/ 90% - 100%  Education consultant service
and Technology Company Limited RMB3 452,000
ERBHEMRARDA" T AR 4,000,007,/ 90% - 100%  HEFARS
AR 34520007
Nanchang Yinqu Education and the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 72% - 80%  Education consultant service
Technology Company Limited RMBA,448,000
HERBAENEARDA" S AR 5,000,007,/ 2% - 80% HBANRS
AR 4,448,0007C
Zhejiang Twin City Cultural and the PRC RMB11,000,000/~ 45% - 45%  Education consultant service
Creative Company Limited e ARH11,000,0007T,/- 45% - 45%  HEEARE
LSS EBRAR
Zhejiang Twin City Sports Cultural the PRC RMB10,010,000/- 34% - 76%  Education consultant service
Development Company Limited M AE# 10,010,000/~ 34% - 76%  HEFARE
MISHEE L BRERAR
Zhejiang Shushu Technology Service the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 65% - 65%  Information Technology
Company Limited RMBA43,000,000 Service
FTHEHBRBERAR HE AR 50,000,0007,/ 65% - 65%  ERBIRE
AR 43,000,0007C
Zhejiang Lvhua International Travel the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 39% - 60%  Travel business
Service Company Limited RMB1,110,210
AT EEIR R TR R AR i AR%3,000,0007,/ 39% - 0% IRBER
ARE11102107
Green Flash Network Technology Co., Ltd. the PRC RMB50,010,000/ 80% - 80%  Foodsale
BREEMEARAR RMB19,023,000
Gl ARH#50,010,0007T/ 80% - 80% Rm#HE
ARH19,023,0007C
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(CONTINUED)
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BRERRLA
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i3uToAvs VAR S *EE
RRER REXBE KEfEE  EBRER A0AKE WEADRE IEEH
Zhejiang Lebo Education Technology the PRC RMB10,000,000/- 63% - 70%  Education Technology
Company Limited HE AR10,000,0007,/- 63% - 70%  #AERR
MIEBAENRERETAR
Hubei Changtou Greentown Property the PRC RMB8,000,000/- 51% - 51%  Property management
Management Company Limited HE AR 8,000,007/~ 51% - 51%  MEEE
B RBAEADERBER AT
Hupan Qinsheng the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 70% - 70%  Education consultant service
MAEREEAIZBRAR RMB10,000,000
HE ARH#10,000,00070,/ 70% - 0%  HEHFARE
AR 10,000,0007T
Hangzhou Faduo Musical Notation the PRC RMB1,300,000/ 42% - 60%  Education consultant service
Culture Company Limited RMB1,300,000
MMERERCEIARAR S AR¥1,300,0007/ 42% - 0% HABEARH
AR 1,300,000
Zhejiang Lvbang Property Management the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Company Limited RMB5,000,000
MIRANFERRRAF HE ARH5,0000007,/ 0% - 0% MEEE
AEH5,000,00070
Hangzhou Wulin Greentown Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Service Company Limited RMB1,000,000.00
MR D ERBEBR LA i AR%3,000,0007T,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AR #1,000,000.00 7T
Hangzhou Lianrui Advertisement the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 55% - 55%  Advertisement design
Company Limited RMB763,800
MNBERERRAR S ABRH3,000,0007/ 55% - 5% EERE
ARE 7638007
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(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interest
FEERRLH
Place of Registered/ Group's
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Name of company and business paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
i3ueAvs VAR S e
RRER FEESE KEfEE  EBRER A0AKE WEAIRE IEBEH
Hangzhou Lvhua Children’s Art Training the PRC RMB6,000,000/ 65% - 100%  Arttraining
Company Limited RMB1,600,000
MG EEBEIEIBRAR HE AR 60000007/ 65% - 100% i3s3
AERH1,600,00070
Hainan Greentown Tianhe Property the PRC RMB5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  Property management
Service Co., Ltd. RMBS5,000,000
BEEHANNREREERDR () hE B 5,000,007,/ 51% - 51%  MEER
AR 5,00000070
Tianjin Tianmu Property Management the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 60% - 60%  Property management
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000
RERANEFERARAR () Gl ARH1,0000007T/ 0% - 0% MEEE
AEH1,000,0007C
Zhejiang Four Seasons Tube Home the PRC RMB50,000,000/ 70% - 70%  Information Technology
Environment Co., Ltd. RMB12,829,721 Service
MINEEERRRBEERAR () i AR 50,000,007,/ 70% - 70%  fERRIERE
AE®1289721 7T
* All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The English translation of * FATRESYAEREEAT - AFARE
the Company name is for reference only. The official names of these HEYBIZEMSE - ZENFNEETLE
companies are in Chinese. BRI o
(i) The subsidiaries were acquired by the Group during 2018. 0] REER2018FREZLENBLRA -
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34 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

35

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(c).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 28(b).

(b) On 25 February 2019, the Group entered into the
cornerstone investment agreement with Binjiang Service
Group Co. Ltd. (B/L RS EFBR A A]), CLSA Limited and
CLSA Capital Markets Limited and acquired 9,870,000
shares of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. accounting for
3.7% of total issued shares of Binjiang Service Group Co.
Ltd., at a total consideration of HKDé48,695,200 (equivalent
to RMB59,194,654) on 15 March 2019.

34

35

BIAARETTIIR)

LR EHE
AEBR2018F1A1BERERETE
B REERFE ISR R BB BHREE
BIZEO5R - RIZATRIBAAE )% - Wik
BIIHERER - BESTEREDNE
— BRI HE -

BEHRNFRABREE

(@) MIBEPRRE EFEHRERY
B B0 B %R IE HA M 5 28(b) B

E‘gc

(b) TH2019F2F258 » AN&EEH H B
IRGEEGRAR  FEESE
RARIRFEEDEFEATEE
RARGYEARERZE &R
20193 A8158H M # % (8
68,695,200 T(MHE R AR
59,194,654 70 ) B B /& )T IR 18 & B
AR Q79,870,000 AL 15 - 15 E
BB TR BRI 3.7% °
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 HL £2018F12H31H Ik &
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

ECBEMAEERERWIEET -
HEARREUTRELENTE

HETZZEU KRz A 8 &6eq
MAeEBmE=20184F12A831H 1t
FREERENE W EAZENTHERKIE
MBI ZIBIERT ~ FNERIRZEE - LT E
IR ERIE RS E AR o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

REUT BB AR B R

ZEHBEN

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
EEUBREENL 165 HE 201917318
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
8 (ARVBRE2RBREER])ERW  FFEFHERES T 20191 A1 H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
BB SRS XER 2015 % 2017 B H 2 S B 20191818
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
ERGERIE28RER]  RHELAREELR R #ER 201941 A 18

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the HKFRS 16 which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standard is initially
applied in the Group's interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standard is initially applied in that financial report.

GREENTOWN SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2018

AEEEHEFEZSTER - EN LR
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EBF ARBEEHER BB B RELE
AIF165R M E T o m Al e AR A M5 R
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

36 B £2018%F12A31A It
B C 6B 15 K £ WA S

-

BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic
basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease.

A
?ﬁéﬁgﬂmﬁéﬁﬁjﬁ‘ééiﬂ’g%%
ERMBREEUL16HEE
MIOME TR - BRI AR
HEZMEARERGERE  BHAT
R EZH (RAREEN D) - &
EE(ERHBA) REMA (F AR
NFTETHRE -

BEHERUW B REEANE16HE I EEH
A ARBRE RSN REHAR
MAEREARTZE - A —BER®
FREVBRELERIE 165 ARAKT
BEIMEMERKEHEE - Bk %
BERERTENRR - AR AR AR
AABABEEOARINERERERE
SRTEEA ARZHERBBEH - &
HARRRERREERANRERER
Lit8HERE  MAHEREENE
Rl EE - RUNTERZEERAR
% AEASHEIHVEABESRMELS
MAMBRX MERBEEERE  MIERN
HERR R REERDRIBEEEROM
EEMNHERXNBRARR - (FRER
BTk AMAREETE LR
AXEANERNEE(BIEAR12EA K
UM REEEEENHEE  RZEFBR
T HeRXBEENEHRNRARE

EEVBHRELENE16RBEIEZERN
SEERBHABARYE - BENR
ARSI ERKEHEE) MG RE.
%o HHERFEAEABEREER
BEHAEMEN MFEREHRNE
SRRSO -
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 HL £2018F12H31H Ik &

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group
will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparative information. As disclosed in note 30(b), at 31
December 2018 the Group's future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount to
RMB298,757,000 and RMB2,506,000 for properties and other
assets respectively, the majority of which is payable either
between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5
years. Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening
balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use
assets will be adjusted to RMB239,440,000 and RMB239,440,000
respectively, after taking account the effects of discounting, as at
1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements from 2019 onwards.
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